

RURAL ELECTRIFICATION & RENEWABLE ENERGY CORPORATION

INVITATION TO TENDER (ITT) No; RFX No. 10000001097

> KAWI HOUSE, SOUTH C, P.O. Box 34585, 00100 Nairobi, Kenya e-mail: **info@rea.co.ke; tenders@rea.co.ke;**

> > TEL NO.254-20-2710955/2713921

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR PROVISION OF CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR MARKET SURVEY ON COMMONLY USED MATERIALS/ITEMS/SERVICES IN RURAL ELECTRIFICATION AND RENEWABLE ENERGY CORPORATION

APRIL, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Contents	
SECTION 1 (A) - REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)	4
SECTION 2. INSTRUCTIONS TO CONSULTANTS AND DATA SHEET	4
SECTION 2 (B). DATA SHEET	18
SECTION 3. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL – STANDARD FORMS	23
2 CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PROPOSAL DETERMINATION	25
3. FORM TECH-2: CONSULTANT'S ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE	
5. FORM TECH-5: WORK SCHEDULE AND PLANNING FOR DELIVERABLES	
6. FORM TECH- 6A: TEAM COMPOSITION, ASSIGNMENT, AND KEY EXPERTS' INPUTS	
7. FORM TECH-6B: CURRICULUM VITAE (CV)	
8. FORMTECH-7: MANDATORY SUPPORT DOCUMENTS	
FORM TECH - 8: SELF-DECLARATIONFORMS	
FORM SD2	
DECLARATION AND COMMITMENT TO THE CODE OF ETHICS	37
FORM TECH - 9: TENDER-SECURING DECLARATION FORM {r 46 and 155(2)}	
SECTION 4. FINANCIALPROPOSAL - STANDARD FORMS	
FORM FIN-1: FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM	40
FORM FIN-1: FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM	40
	40
(Amended and issued pursuant to PPRA CIRCULAR No. 02/2022)	
FORM FIN-2: SUMMARY OF COSTS	
FORM FIN-3A: BREAKDOWN OF REMUNERATION	
FORM FIN 3B: CONSULTANT'S REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COSTS AND CHARGES FORM 3C: FORM FOR CONSULTANT'S REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COSTS AND CHARGES	
FORM FOR FOR CONSULTANT'S REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COSTS AND CHARGES FORM FIN-4 BREAKDOWN OF REIMBURSABLE	
SECTION 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE	
SECTION 6. CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS	
I. FORM OF CONTRACT - LUMP-SUM SECTION 7: GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
SECTION 7: GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
SECTION 9: APPENDICES	
Appendix D - Form of Advance Payment Guarantee PREFACE	
CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT'S SERVICES	
II. TIME-BASED CONTRACT	
Section 8: General Conditions of Contract SECTION 8: SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
SECTION 9: APPENDICES BREAKDOWN OFAGREED FIXED RATES IN CONSULTANT'S CONTRACT	
APPENDIX D: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES COST ESTIMATES	
APPENDIX D: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES COST ESTIMATES	
SECTION 10. NOTIFICATION FORMS	
 i) Short listed Consultants 4. BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM 	
4 BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM	
(Amended and issued pursuant to FERA CIRCULAR INO. 02/2022)	

SECTION 1 (A) - REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

PROCURING ENTITY: RURAL ELECTRIFICATION AND RENEWABLE ENERGY CORPORATION

CONTRACT NAME AND DESCRIPTION: Tender for the Provision of Consultancy Services for Market Survey on commonly used Materials/Items/Services in REREC RFX No. 1000001097.

Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation invites sealed tenders for the **Provision of** Consultancy Services for Market Survey on Commonly used Materials/Items/Services in REREC.

- **1.** 1 Tendering will be conducted under National open competitive method using a standardized tender document. Tendering is open to all qualified and interested Tenderers.
- 2. Qualified interested tenderers may obtain further information during office 8.00am 12.45pm to 1.45pm-4.00pm Monday to Friday at the address given below.
- **3.** A complete set of tender documents may be viewed and downloaded by interested tenderers free of charge electronically from the Website www.rerec.co.ke under April 2024 tender documents, through the e-procurement portal using https://suppliers.rea.co.ke:44300/irj/portal and on the Public Procurement Information Portal https://tenders.go.ke.
- 4. Tenderers who are not yet registered with REREC must register their companies in order to participate in the tender using link below that can be found from the website www.rerec.co.ke Procurement-Supplier registration:https://suppliers.rea.co.ke:44200/supportal(bD1lbiZjPTUwM CZkPW1pbg==)/bspwdapplication.do#VIEW_ANCHOR-ROS_TOP
- **5.** Tender to be accompanied by a Tender Security of Kshs. 100,000/= Bank guarantee. Original guarantee to be submitted before closing date and time in the tender box.
- 6. The Tenderer shall chronologically serialize all pages of the tender document submitted.
- 7. Completed tenders must be delivered to the address below on or before 8th May, 2024 @10.00am
- 8. Only Electronic Tenders will be permitted. Bidders can access bid submission guide from the Corporation's website titled *Bidding Quick Reference https://www.rerec.co.ke/Supplier-Bidding-Quick-reference-quide.pdf*
 - **9.** Any addendum to this tender shall be uploaded to the Corporation's website www.rerec.co.ke under the specific tender documents.
 - **10.** Tenders will be opened immediately after the deadline date and time specified above or any dead line date and time specified later. Tenders will be publicly opened in the presence of the Tenderers' designated representatives who choose to attend at the address below and the results relayed electronically.
 - **11.** Late tenders will be rejected.
 - **12.** The addresses referred to above are:

Address for obtaining further information on tender documents

For hand Courier: Original Bid security delivered to the tender Box (Kawi Complex, Block C, Ground floor, Off Popo Road,). Contact Manager, Supply chain management, telephone number: 0709193000 and e-mail address: tenders@rerec.co.ke

Address for Opening of Tenders. Kawi Complex, Block C, Ground floor, Online system

Designation: Chief Executive Officer

SECTION 2. INSTRUCTIONS TO CONSULTANTS AND DATA SHEET

Section 2(a). Instructions to Consultants (ITC)

[Notes to the Procuring Entity: this part of Section2, Instructions to Consultants, shall not be modified. Any necessary changes, to address specific issues, to supplement, but not over-write, the provisions of the Instructions to Consultants (ITC), shall be introduced through the Data Sheet only. This "Notes to the Procuring Entity" should be deleted from the final RFP issued to the Consultants].

A. GENERALPROVISIONS

1. Meanings/Definitions

- a) "Affiliate(s)" means an individual or an entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Consultant.
- b) "Applicable Law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in Kenya.
- c) "Procuring Entity" means the entity that is carrying out the consultant selection process and signs the Contract for the Services with the selected Consultant.
- d) "Consultant" means a legally-established professional consulting firm or an entity that may provide or provides the Services to the Procuring Entity under the Contract.
- e) "Contract" means a legally binding written agreement signed between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant and includes all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1 (the General Conditions of Contract (GCC), the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC), and the Appendices).
- f) "Data Sheet" means an integral part of the Instructions to Consultants (ITC) Section2thatisusedtoreflect specific assignment conditions to supplement, but not to over-write, the provisions of the ITC.
- g) "Day" means a calendar day unless otherwise specified as "Business Day". A Business Day is any day that is an official working day in Kenya and excludes official public holidays.
- h) "Experts" means, collectively, Key Experts, Non-Key Experts, or any other personnel of the Consultant, Sub-consultant or Joint Venture member(s).
- i) "Government" means the Government of the Republic of Kenya.
- j) "In writing "means communicated in written form such as by mail, e-mail, fax, including, if specified in the Data Sheet, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Procuring Entity with proof of receipt.
- k) "Joint Venture (JV)" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one Consultant where one member has the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for the performance of the Contract.
- 1) "Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose CV is considered in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's proposal.
- m) "ITC" (this Section2 of the RFP) means the Instructions to Consultants that provides the Consultants with all information needed to prepare their Proposals.
- n) "Letter of RFP" means the letter of invitation being sent by the Procuring Entity to the Consultants.
- o) "Non-Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Subconsultant andwhoisassignedtoperformtheServicesoranypartthereofundertheContractandwhoseCVsarenot evaluated individually.
- p) "Proposal" means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal of the Consultant.
- q) "Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA)" means the statutory authority of the Government of Kenya that mandated with the role of regulating and monitoring compliance with the public procurement law and regulations.
- r) "RFP" means the Request for Proposals to be prepared by the Procuring Entity for the selection of Consultants.

- s) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the Contract.
- t) "Sub-consultant" means an entity to whom the Consultant intends to subcontract any part of the Services while the Consultant remains responsible to the Procuring Entity during the whole performance of the Contract.
- v) "Terms of Reference (TORs)" means the Terms of Reference that explains the objectives, scope of work, activities, and tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the Procuring Entity and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the assignment.

2. Introduction

- 2.1 The Procuring Entity named in the Data Sheet intends to select a Consultant from those listed in the Request for Proposals (RFP), in accordance with the method of selection specified in the Data Sheet.
- 2.2 The Consultant are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, for consulting services required for the assignment named in the Data Sheet. The Proposal will be the basis for negotiating and ultimately signing the Contract with the selected Consultant.
- 2.3 The Consultants should familiarize themselves with the local conditions and take them into account in preparing their Proposals, including attending a pre-proposal conference if one is specified in the Data Sheet. Attending any such pre-proposal conference is optional and is at the Consultants' expense.
- 2.4 The Procuring Entity will timely provide, at no cost to the Consultants, the inputs, relevant project data, and reports required for the preparation of the Consultant's Proposal as specified in the Data Sheet.

3. Conflict of Interest

- 3.1 The Consultant is required to provide professional, objective, and impartial advice, always holding the Procuring Entity's interest's paramount, strictly avoiding conflicts with other assignments or its own corporate interests and acting without any consideration for future work.
- 3.2 The Consultant has an obligation to disclose to the Procuring Entity any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts its capacity to serve the best interest of the Procuring Entity. Failure to disclose such situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- 3.3 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, and unless stated otherwise in the Data Sheet, the Consultants hall not be hired under the circumstances set forth below:
 - *i)* Conflicting Activities

Conflict between consulting activities and procurement of goods, works or non-consulting services: a firm that has been engaged by the Procuring Entity to provide goods, works, or non-consulting services for a project, or any of its Affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services resulting from or directly related to those goods, works, or non-consulting services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, or any of its Affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to the consulting services for such preparation or implementation.

ii) Conflicting Assignments

Conflict among consulting assignments: A Consultant (including its Experts and Sub-consultants) or any of its Affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may conflict with another assignment of the Consultant for the same or for another Procuring Entity.

(iii) *Conflicting Relationships*

Relationship with the Procuring Entity's staff: a Consultant (including its Experts and Sub-consultants) that has a close business or personal relationship with senior management or professional staff of the Procuring Entity who has the ability to influence the bidding process and: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the Terms of Reference for the assignment,(ii) the selection process for the Contract, or (iii) the supervision of the Contract, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner that determines there is no conflict to affect this selection process.

iv) Others

Any other types of conflicting relationships as indicated in the Data Sheet.

4. Unfair Competitive Advantage

4.1 Fairness and transparency in the selection process require that the Consultants or their Affiliates competing for a specific assignment do not derive a competitive advantage from having provided consulting services related to the assignment in question. To that end, the Procuring Entity shall indicate in the Data Sheet and make available to all Consultants together with this RFP all information that would in that respect give such Consultant any unfair competitive advantage over competing Consultants.

5. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

5.1 Consultant firms or any of its members shall not be involved in corrupt, coercive, obstructive, collusive or fraudulent practice. Consultant firms or any of its members that are proven to have been involved in any of these practices shall be automatically disqualified and would not be awarded a contract.

5.2 Collusive practices

- 5.2 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the provisions of the Competition Act 2010, regarding collusive practices in contracting. Any Consultant found to have engaged in collusive conduct shall be disqualified and criminal and/or civil sanctions may be imposed. To this effect, Consultants shall be required to complete and sign the "Certificate of Independent Proposal Determination" annexed to the Proposal Form.
- 5.3 In further pursuance of this policy, Consultants shall permit and shall cause their agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, and their personnel, to permit the Government and its agencies to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any short-listing process, Proposal submission, and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors, investigators or compliance officers.

6. Eligibility

- 6.1 In selection of Consultants, short-listing shall be composed of firms or individuals who belong to the same line of professional business and who are almost of the same capability.
- 6.2 Unless otherwise specified in the Data Sheet, the Procuring Entity permits Consultants including proposed experts, joint ventures and individual members from all countries and categories to offer consulting services. The maximum number of members so far JV shall be specified in the TDS.
- 6.3 The Competition Act of Kenya requires that firms wishing to tender as Joint Venture undertakings which may prevent, distort or lessen competition in provision of services are prohibited unless they are exempt in accordance with the provisions of Section 25 of the Competition Act, 2010. JVs will be required to seek for exemption from the Competition Authority. Exemption shall not be a condition for submission of proposals, but it shall be a condition of contract award and signature. AJV tenderer shall be given opportunity to seek such exemption as a condition of award and signature of contract. Application for exemption from the Competition Authority of Kenya may be accessed from the websitewww.cak.go.ke
- 6.4 Public Officers of the Procuring Entity, their Spouses, Child, Parent, Brothers or Sister. Child, Parent, Brother or Sister of a Spouse, their business associates or agents and firms/organizations in which they have a substantial or controlling interest shall not be eligible to tender or be awarded a contract. Public Officers are also not allowed to participate in any procurement proceedings.
- 6.5 It is the Consultant's responsibility to ensure that it's Experts, joint venture members, Sub-consultants, agents (declared or not), sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees meet the eligibility requirements.
- 6.6 As an exception to the foregoing ITC 6.1 and 6.2 above:
 - a) Sanctions-A firm or an individual that has been debarred from participating in public procurement shall be ineligible to be awarded a contract, or to benefit from the contract, financially or otherwise, during the debarment period. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available from the website of PPRA www.ppra.go.ke.
 - b) Prohibitions-Firms and individuals of a country or goods in a country maybe ineligible if:
 - i) As a matter of law or official regulations, Kenya prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - ii) By an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter

VII of the Charter of the United Nations, Kenya prohibits any import of goods or services from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.

- c) Restrictions for Government-ownedEnterprises-Government-ownedenterprisesorinstitutionsinKenya shall be eligible only if they can establish that they
 - i) Are legally and financially autonomous,
 - ii) Operate under commercial law, and
 - iii) That they are not dependent agencies of the Procuring Entity.
- d) Restrictions for public employees Government officials and civil servants and employees of public institutions shall not be hired for consulting contracts.
- 6.7 Margin of Preference and Reservations-no margin of preference shall be allowed in the selection of consultants. Reservations may however be allowed to a specific group of businesses (these groups are Small and Medium Enterprises, Women Enterprises, Youth Enterprises and Enterprises of persons living with disability, as the case may be), and who are appropriately registered as such by the authority to be specified in the Data Sheets. A procuring entity shall ensure that the invitation to submit proposals specifically includes only businesses or firms belonging to one group.

B. Preparation of Proposals

7. General Considerations

7.1 In preparing the Proposal, the Consultant is expected to examine the RFP in detail. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested in the RFP may result in rejection of the Proposal.

8. Cost of Preparation of Proposal

8.1 The Consultant shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Proposal, and the Procuring Entity shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the selection process. The Procuring Entity is not bound to accept any proposal and reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without there by incurring any liability to the Consultant.

9. Language

9.1 The Proposal, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Proposal exchanged between the Consultant and the Procuring Entity shall be written in the English language.

10. Documents Comprising the Proposal

- 10.1 The Proposal shall comprise the documents and forms listed in the Data Sheet.
- 10.2 The Consultant shall declare in the Financial Proposal Submission Form, that in competing for and executing a contract, it shall undertake to observe the laws of Kenya against fraud and corruption including bribery, as well as against anti-competitive practices including bid rigging.
- 10.3 The Consultant shall furnish information on commissions, gratuities and fees, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Proposal and, if awarded, Contract execution, as requested in the Financial Proposal Submission Form.

11. Only One Proposal

- 11.1 The Consultant (including the individual members of any Joint Venture) shall submit only one Proposal, either in its own name or as part of a Joint Venture in another Proposal. If a Consultant, including any Joint Venture member, submits s or participates in more than one proposal, all such proposals shall be disqualified and rejected. This does not, however, preclude Sub-consultant, or the Consultant's staff from participating as Key Experts and Non-Key Experts in more than one Proposal when circumstances justify and if stated in the Data Sheet.
- 11.2 Members of a joint venture may not also make an individual Proposal, be a subcontractor in a separate proposal or be part of another joint venture for the purposes of the same Contract.

11.3 Should a Joint Venture subsequently win the Contract, it shall consider whether an application for exemption from the Competition Authority of Kenya is merited pursuant to Section 25 of the Competition Act 2010.

12. Proposal Validity

a. Proposal Validity Period

- 12.1 The Data Sheet indicates the period during which the Consultant's Proposal must remain valid after the Proposal submission deadline.
- 12.2 During this period, the Consultant shall maintain its original Proposal without any change, including the availability of the Key Experts, the proposed rates and the total price.
- 12.3 If it is established that any Key Expert nominated in the Consultant's Proposal was not available at the time of Proposal submission or was included in the Proposal without his/her confirmation, such Proposal shall be disqualified and rejected for further evaluation and may be subject to sanctions in accordance with IT C5.

b. Extension of Validity Period

- 12.4 The Procuring Entity will make its best effort to complete the negotiations within the proposal's validity period. However, should the need arise, the Procuring Entity may request, in writing, all Consultants who submitted Proposals prior to the submission deadline to extend the Proposals' validity.
- 12.5 If the Consultant agrees to extend the validity of its Proposal, it shall be done without any change in the original Proposal and with the confirmation of the availability of the Key Experts, except asprovidedinITC12.7.
- 12.6 The Consultant has the right to refuse to extend the validity of its Proposal in which case such Proposal will not be further evaluated.

b. Substitution of Key Experts at Validity Extension

- 12.7 If any of the Key Experts become unavailable for the extended validity period, the Consultant shall provide a written adequate justification and evidence satisfactory to the Procuring Entity together with the substitution request. In such case, a replacement Key Expert shall have equal or better qualifications and experience than those of the originally proposed Key Expert. The technical evaluations core, however, will remain to be based on the evaluation of the CV of the original Key Expert.
- 12.8 If the Consultant fails to provide a substitute Key Expert with equal or better qualifications, or if the provided reasons for the replacement or justification are unacceptable to the Procuring Entity, such Proposal will be rejected.

c. Sub-Contracting

12.9 The Consultant shall not subcontract the whole or part of the Services without reasonable justification and written approval of the Procuring Entity.

13. Clarification and Amendment of RFP

- 13.1 The Consultant may request a clarification of any part of the RFP during the period indicated in the Data Sheet before the Proposals' submission deadline. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing, or by standard electronic means, to the Procuring Entity's address indicated in the Data Sheet. The Procuring Entity will respond in writing, or by standard electronic means, and will send written copies of the response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying its source) to all Consultants. Should the Procuring Entity deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure described below:
- 13.2 At any time before the proposal submission deadline, the Procuring Entity may amend the RFP by issuing an amendment in writing or by standard electronic means. The amendment shall be sent to all invited Consultants and will be binding on them. The Consultants shall acknowledge receipt fall amendments in writing.
- 13.3 If the amendment is substantial, the Procuring Entity may extend the proposal submission deadline to give the Consultants reasonable time to take an amendment in to account in their Proposals.

13.4 The Consultant may submit a modified Proposal or a modification to any part of it at any time prior to the proposal submission deadline. No modifications to the Technical or Financial Proposal shall be accepted after the deadline.

14. Preparation of Proposals–Specific Considerations

- 14.1 While preparing the Proposal, the Consultant must give particular attention to the following:
 - (a) If a Consultant considers that it may enhance its expertise for the assignment by associating with other consultants in the form of a Joint Venture or as Sub-consultants, it may do solon gas only one Proposal is submitted, in accordance with ITC 11. Above. A Consultant cannot associate with shortlisted Consultant(s). When associating with non-shortlisted/non-invited firms in the form of a joint venture or a sub-consultancy, the shortlisted/invited Consultant shall be a lead member. If shortlisted/invited Consultant associates with each other, any of them can be a lead member.
 - (b) The Procuring Entity may indicate in the Data Sheet the estimated amount or Key Experts' time input (expressed in person-month), or the Procuring Entity's estimated total cost of the assignment, but not both. This estimate is indicative and the Proposal shall be based on the Consultant's own estimates for the same. This clause shall not apply when using Fixed Budget selection method.
 - (c) For assignments under the Fixed-Budget selection method, the estimated Key Experts' time input shall not be disclosed. Total available budget, with an indication whether it is inclusive or exclusive of taxes, is given in the Data Sheet, and the Financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget.
 - d) Key Experts shall not appear in more than one proposal unless so allowed in the Data Sheet. Invited firms must confirm and ensure their Key experts do not appear in proposal of other invited firms, otherwise proposals with Key experts appearing in other proposals will be rejected.

15. Technical Proposal Format and Content

- 15.1 The Technical Proposal shall be prepared using the Standard Forms provided in Section 3 of the RFP and shall comprise the documents listed in the Data Sheet under ITC 10.1. The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information. A Technical Proposal containing material financial information shall be declared non-responsive.
- 15.2 Consultant shall not propose alternative Key Experts. Only one CV shall be submitted for each Key Expert position. Failure to comply with this requirement will make the Proposal non-responsive.

16. Financial Proposal

16.1 The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the Standard Forms provided in Section 4 of the RFP. It shall list all costs associated with the assignment, including (a) remuneration for Key Experts and Non-Key Experts, (b) reimbursable expenses indicated in the Data Sheet. Irrespective of the consultant selection method, any Consultant that does not submit itemized and priced financial proposal, or merely refers the Procuring Entity to other legal instruments for the applicable minimum remuneration fees shall be considered non-responsive.

a. Price Adjustment

16.2 For assignments with a duration exceeding 18 months, a price adjustment provision for foreign and/or local inflation for remuneration rates apply if so, stated in the Data Sheet.

b. Taxes

16.3 The Consultant and its Sub-consultants and Experts are responsible for meeting all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract unless stated otherwise in the Data Sheet. Information on taxes in Kenya is provided in the Data Sheet.

c. Currency of Proposal

16.4 The Consultant may express the price for its Services in the currency or currencies as stated in the Data Sheet. If indicated in the Data Sheet, the portion of the price representing local cost shall be stated in Kenya Shillings.

d. Currency of Payment

16.5 Payment under the Contract shall be made in the currency or currencies in which the payment is requested in the Proposal.

C. SUBMISSION, OPENINGANDEVALUATION

17. Submission, Sealing, and Marking of Proposals

- 17.1 The Consultant shall submit a signed and complete Proposal comprising the documents and forms in accordance with ITC 10 (Documents Comprising Proposal). Consultants shall mark as "CONFIDENTIAL" information in their Proposals which is confidential to their business. This may include proprietary information, trade secrets or commercial or financially sensitive information. The submission can be done by mail or by hand. If specified in the Data Sheet, the Consultant has the option of submitting its Proposals electronically.
- 17.2 An authorized representative of the Consultant shall sign the original submission letters in the required format for both the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposals and shall initial all pages of both. The authorization shall be in the form of a written power of attorney attached to the Technical Proposal.
- 17.3 A Proposal submitted by a Joint Venture shall be signed by all members so as to be legally binding on all members, or by an authorized representative who has a written power of attorney signed by each member's authorized representative.
- 17.4 Any modifications, revisions, interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Proposal.
- 17.5 The signed Proposal shall be marked "ORIGINAL", and its copies marked "COPY" as appropriate. The number of copies is indicated in the Data Sheet. All copies shall be made from the signed original. If there are discrepancies between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.

18. Sealing and Marking of Proposals

- 18.1 The firm shall deliver the Proposals in a single sealed envelope, or in a single sealed package, or in a single sealed container bearing the name and Reference number of the assignment, addressed to the Procuring Entity and a warning "DO NOT OPEN BEFORE...... (The time and date for proposal opening date". Within the single envelope, package or container, the Firm shall place the following separate, sealed envelopes:
- 18.2 In the single sealed envelope, or in a single sealed package, or in a single sealed container the following documents shall been closed and shall be addressed as follows:
 - i) in an envelope or package or container marked "ORIGINAL", all documents comprising the Technical Proposal, as described in ITC11;
 - ii) in an envelope or package or container marked "COPIES", all required copies of the Technical Proposal;
 - iii) in an envelope or package or container marked "ORIGINAL", all required copies of the Financial Proposal; and
- 18.3 The inner envelopes or packages or containers shall:
 - i) Bear the name and address of the Procuring Entity.
 - ii) Bear the name and address of the Firm; and
 - iii) Bear the name and Reference number of the Assignment.
- 18.4 If an envelope or package or container is not sealed and marked as required, the *Procuring Entity* will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the proposal. Proposals that are misplaced or opened prematurely will not be accepted.
- 18.5 The Proposal or its modifications must be sent to the address indicated in the Data Sheet and received by the Procuring Entity no later than the deadline indicated in the Data Sheet, or any extension to this deadline. Any Proposal or its modification received by the Procuring Entity after the deadline shall be declared late and rejected, and promptly returned unopened.

19. Confidentiality/Canvassing

19.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultant should not contact the Procuring Entity on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Information relating to the evaluation of Proposals and award recommendations shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to any other party not officially concerned with the process, until the publication of the Contract award information.

- 19.2 Any attempt by Consultants or any one on behalf of the Consultant to influence improperly the Procuring Entity in the evaluation of the Proposals or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Proposal and may be subject to the application of prevailing PPRA's debarment procedures.
- 19.3 Notwithstanding the above provisions, from the time of the Proposals' opening to the time of Contract award publication, if a Consultant wishes to contact the Procuring Entity on any matter related to the selection process, it should do so only in writing.

20. Opening of Technical Proposals

- 20.1 The Procuring Entity's opening committee shall conduct the opening of the Technical Proposals in the presence of the Consultants' authorized representatives who choose to attend (in person, or online if this option is offered in the Data Sheet). The opening date, time and the address are stated in the Data Sheet. The envelopes with the Financial Proposal shall remain sealed and shall be securely stored by the Procuring Entity or with a reputable public auditor or independent authority until they are opened in accordance with ITC 22.
- 20.2 At the opening of the Technical Proposals the following shall be read out: (i) the name and the country of the Consultant or, in case of a Joint Venture, the name of the Joint Venture, the name of the lead member and the names and the countries of all members; (ii) the presence or absence of a duly sealed envelope with the Financial Proposal; (iii) any modifications to the Proposal submitted prior to proposal submission deadline; and (iv) any other information deemed appropriate or as indicated in the Data Sheet.

21. Proposals Evaluation

- 21.1 Subject to provision of ITC 15.1, the valuators of the Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded and after the Procuring Entity notifies all the Consultants in accordance with ITC 22.1.
- 21.2 The Consultant is not permitted to alter or modify its Proposal in anyway after the proposal submission deadline except as permitted under ITC12.7. While evaluating the Proposals, the Evaluation Committee will conduct the evaluation solely on the basis of the submitted Technical and Financial Proposals.

22. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

- 22.1 The Procuring Entity's evaluation committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals that have passed the eligibility and mandatory criteria, on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference and the RFP. The eligibility and mandatory criteria shall include the following and any other that may include in the Data sheet.
 - a) Firm has submitted the required number of copies of the Technical Proposals.
 - b) Firm has submitted a sealed financial proposal.
 - c) The Proposal is valid for the required number of days.
 - d) The Technical Proposal is signed by the person with power of attorney, without material deviation, reservation, or omission.
 - e) The Technical Proposal is complete with all the forms and required documentary evidence submitted.
 - f) A valid tax compliance certificate or tax exemption certificate issued by the Kenya Revenue Authority in accordance with ITT 3.14 for Kenyan firms.
 - g) Key Experts are from eligible countries.
 - h) Key Experts do not appear in more than one proposal, if so required.
 - i) A short-listed firm has not participated in more than one proposal, if so required.
 - j) The Consultant is not insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or in the process of being wound up.
 - k) The Consultant, its sub-consultants and experts have not engaged in or been convicted of corrupt or fraudulent practices.
 - 1) The Consultant is neither precluded from entering into a Contract nor debarred by PPRA.
 - m) The firm has not proposed employing public officials, civil servants and employees of public institutions.
 - n) The Consultant, its sub-consultants and experts have no conflicts of interest.
- 22.2 Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score. A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the Data Sheet.

23. Public Opening of Financial Proposals

23.1 Unsuccessful Proposals

After the technical evaluation is completed, the Procuring Entity shall notify those Consultants whose Proposals were considered non-responsive to the RFP and TOR or did not meet the minimum qualifying technical score, advising them the following: (i) their Proposal was not responsive to the RFP and TOR or did not meet the minimum qualifying technical score;(ii)provide information relating to the Consultant's overall technical score, as well as scores obtained for each criterion and sub-criterion; (iii) their Financial Proposals will be returned unopened after completing the selection process and Contract signing; and (iv) notify them of the date, time and location of the public opening of the Financial Proposals and invite them to attend.

23.2 Financial Proposals for QBS, CQS and SSS

Following the ranking of the Technical Proposals, when the selection is based on QBS or CQS, the top-ranked Consultant is invited to negotiate the Contract. Only the Financial Proposal of the technically top-ranked Consultant is opened by the opening committee. All other Financial Proposals shall be returned unopened after the Contract negotiations are successfully concluded and the Contract is signed with the successful Consultant.

When the selection is based on the SSS method and if the invited Consultant meets the minimum technical score required passing, the financial proposal shall be opened and the Consultant invited to negotiate the contract.

23.3 Financial Proposals for QCBS, FBS, LCS

Following the ranking of the Technical Proposals, and after internal approvals, the Procuring Entity shall simultaneously notify in writing those Consultants whose Proposals were considered responsive to the RFP and TOR, and that have achieved the minimum qualifying technical score, advising them the following: (i) their Proposal was responsive to the RFP and TOR and met the minimum qualifying technical score; (ii) provide information relating to the Consultant's overall technical score, as well as scores obtained for each criterion and sub-criterion;(iii) their Financial Proposal will be opened at the public opening of Financial Proposals; and (iv) notify them of the date, time and location of the public opening and invite them for the opening of the Financial Proposals.

23.4 Opening of Financial Proposals

The opening date should allow the Consultants sufficient time to decide for attending the opening and shall be no less than five (5) Business Days from the date of notification of the result s of the technical evaluation, described in ITC 22.1 and 22.2.

The Consultant's attendance at the opening of the Financial Proposals (in person, or online if such option is indicated in the Data Sheet) is optional and is at the Consultant's choice.

The Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly by the Procuring Entity's opening committee in the presence of the representatives of the Consultants and anyone else who chooses to attend. Any interested party who wishes to attend this public opening should contact the Procuring Entity as indicated in the Data Sheet. At the opening, the names of the Consultants, and the overall technical scores, including the break-down by criterion, shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposals will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the total prices read aloud and recorded. Copies of the record shall be sent to all Consultants who submitted Proposals.

24. Correction of Errors

- 24.1 Activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced in the Financial Proposal, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items, and no corrections are made to the Financial Proposal.
- 24.2 Time-Based Contracts-If a Time-Based contract form is included in the RFP, in case of discrepancy between (i) a partial amount(sub-total) and the total amount, or (ii)between the amount derived by multiplication of unit price with quantity and the total price, or (iii) between figures and words, the later will prevail. In case of discrepancy between the Technical and Financial Proposals in indicating quantities of input, the Technical Proposal prevails and the Procuring Entity's evaluation committee shall correct the quantification indicated in the Financial Proposal so as to make it consistent with that indicated in the Technical Proposal, apply the relevant unit price included in the Financial Proposal to the corrected quantity, and correct the total Proposal

cost.

24.3 Lump-Sum Contracts - If a Lump-Sum contract form is included in the RFP, the Consultant is deemed to have included all prices in the Financial Proposal, so neither arithmetical correction nor price adjustments shall be made. The total price, net of taxes understood as per ITC 24 below, specified in the Financial Proposal (Form FIN-1) shall be considered as the offered price.

25. Taxes

- 25.1 Subject to ITC 24.2, all taxes are deemed to be included in the Consultant's financial proposal as separate items, and, therefore, considered in the evaluation.
- 25.2 All local identifiable taxes levied on the contract in voices (such as sales tax, VAT, excise tax, or any similar taxes or levies) and in come and withholding tax payable to Kenya on the remuneration of non-resident Experts for the services rendered in Kenya are dealt with in accordance with the instructions in the Data Sheet.

26. Conversion to Single Currency

26.1 For the evaluation purposes, prices shall be converted to a single currency using the selling rates of exchange, source and date indicated in the Data Sheet.

27. Abnormally Low Prices

- 27.1 An Abnormally Low Price is one where the financial price, in combination with other constituent elements of the proposal, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the price raises material concerns with the Procuring Entity as to the capability of the Consulting firm to perform the Contract for the offered price.
- 27.2 In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Price by the evaluation committee, the Procuring Entity shall seek written clarification from the firm, including a detailed price analyses of its price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, delivery schedule, allocation of risk sand responsibilities and any other requirements of the RFP document.
- 27.3 After evaluation of the price analyses, if the Procuring Entity determines that the firm has failed to demonstrate its capability to perform the contract for the offered price, the Procuring Entity shall reject the firm's proposal.

28. Abnormally High Prices

- 28.1 An abnormally high price is one where the proposal price, in combination with other constituent elements of the proposal, appears unreasonably too high to the extent that the Procuring Entity is concerned that it (the Procuring Entity) may not be getting value for money or it may be paying too high a price for the contract compared with market prices or that genuine competition between Consultants is compromised.
- 28.2 In case of an abnormally high tender price, the Procuring Entity shall make a survey of the market prices, check if the estimated cost of the contract is correct, and review the RFP to check if the specifications, TOR, scope of work and conditions of contract are contributory to the abnormally high proposals. The Procuring Entity may also seek written clarification from the Consultants on the reason or the high proposal price. The Procuring Entity shall proceed as follows:
 - i) If the proposal price is abnormally high based on wrong estimated cost of the contract, the Procuring Entity may accept or not accept the proposal depending on the Procuring Entity's budget considerations.
 - ii) If specifications, TOR, scope of work and/or conditions of contract are contributory to the abnormally high proposal prices, the Procuring Entity shall reject all proposals and may re-invite for proposals for the contract based on revised estimates, specifications, TOR, scope of work and conditions of contract.
- 28.3 If the Procuring Entity determines that the Proposal Price is abnormally too high because <u>genuine competition</u> <u>between Consultants is compromised</u> (often due to collusion, corruption or other manipulations), the Procuring Entity shall reject all Proposals and shall institute or cause competent Government Agencies to institute an investigation on the cause of the compromise, before re-inviting for proposals.

29. Combined Quality and Cost Evaluation

a. Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) Method

29.1 In the case of Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS), the total score is calculated by weighting the technical and financial scores and adding them as per the formula and instructions in the Data Sheet. The Consultant

that achieves the highest combined technical and financial score will be notified and invited for negotiations.

b. Fixed Budget Selection (FBS) Method

29.2 In the case of FBS, those Proposals that exceed the budget indicated in ITC 14.1.4 of the Data Sheet shall be rejected. The Procuring Entity's evaluation committee will select the Consultant with the highest-ranked Technical Proposal that does not exceed the budget indicated in the RFP, notify and invite such Consultant to negotiate the Contract.

c. Least Cost Selection (LCS) Method

29.3 In the case of Least-Cost Selection (LCS), the Procuring Entity's evaluation committee will select the Consultant whose Proposal is the lowest evaluated total price among those Proposals that achieve the minimum technical score required to pass, notify the Consultant and invite the Consultant to negotiate the Contract.

d. Combined Technical and Evaluation Report

29.4 The evaluation committee shall prepare a combined technical and financial evaluation report, with specific recommendations for award or otherwise and subject to the required approvals within the Procuring Entity prior to notifications and invitation of Consultant for negotiations.

30. Notification of Intention to enter into a Contract/Notification of Award

- 30.1 The Procuring Entity shall send to each Consultant (that has not already been notified that it has been unsuccessful) the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract to the successful Consultant. The **Notification of Intention to enter into a Contract / Notification of Award** shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
 - i) The name and address of the Consultant with whom the Procuring Entity successfully negotiated a contract;
 - ii) the contract price of the successful Proposal;
 - iii) a statement of the reasons why the recipient's Proposal was unsuccessful
 - iv) the expiry date of the Standstill Period, and
 - v) instructions on how to request a debriefing and/or submit a complaint during the standstill period;

31. Standstill Period

31.1 The Standstill Period shall be the number of days stated in the Data Sheet. The Standstill Period commences the day after the date the Procuring Entity has transmitted to each Consultant (that has not already been notified that it has been unsuccessful) the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract. The Contract shall not be signed earlier than the expiry of the Standstill Period. This period shall be allowed for aggrieved Consultants to lodge an appeal. The procedure for appeal and the authority to determine the appeal or complaint is as indicated in the Data Sheet.

D. NEGOTIATIONS AND AWARD

32. Negotiations

- 32.1 The negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the Data Sheet with the Consultant's representative(s) who must have written power of attorney to negotiate and sign a Contract on behalf of the Consultant.
- 32.2 The evaluation committee shall prepare minutes of negotiations that are signed by the Accounting Officer and the Consultant's authorized representative.

32.3 Availability of Key Experts

The invited Consultant shall confirm theavailabilityofallKeyExpertsincludedintheProposalasapre-requisite to the negotiations, or, if applicable, a replacement in accordance with ITC 12. Failure to confirm the Key Experts' availability may result in the rejection of the Consultant's Proposal and the Procuring Entity proceeding to negotiate the Contract with the next-ranked Consultant.

32.4 Notwithstanding the above, the substitution Key Experts at the negotiations may be considered if due solely to circumstances outside the reasonable control of and not foreseeable by the Consultant, including but not limited to death or medical in capacity. In such case, the Consultant shall offer a substitute Key Expert within

the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate the Contract, who shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original candidate.

32.5 Technical negotiations

The technical negotiations include discussions of the Terms of Reference (TORs), the proposed methodology, the Procuring Entity's inputs, the special conditions of the Contract, and finalizing the "Description of Services" part of the Contract. These discussions shall not substantially alter the original scope of services under the TOR or the terms of the contract, lest the quality of the final product, its price, or the relevance of the initial evaluation be affected.

32.6 Financial negotiations

The financial negotiations include the clarification of the Consultant's tax liability in Kenya and how it should be reflected in the Contract. All applicable taxes shall be itemized separately and included in the contract price.

- 32.7 If the selection method included cost as a factor in the evaluation (that is QCBS, FBS, LCS), the unit rates and the total price stated in the Financial Proposal for a Lump-Sum contract shall not be negotiated.
- 32.8 Where QBS or CQS methods was used for a *Lump-sum Contract* as indicated in the RFP, the unit rates negotiations shall not take place, except when the offered Key Experts and Non-Key Experts' remuneration rates aremuchhigherthanthetypicallychargedratesbyconsultantsinsimilarcontractsortheprofessional practice. In such case, the Procuring Entity may ask for clarifications and, if the fees are very high, ask to change the rates. The format for (i) providing information on remuneration rates in the case of QB Sand CQS; and (ii) clarifying remuneration rates' structure under this Clause, is provided in Appendix A to the Financial Form FIN-3: Financial Negotiations Breakdown of Remuneration Rates. If after the clarifications, the price is still considered too high, the Procuring Entity may terminate the negotiation and invite the next ranked Consultant to open its financial proposal and negotiate the contract.
- 32.9 In the case of a *Time- Based contract*, negotiation of unit rates shall not take place, except when the offered Key Experts and Non-Key Experts' remuneration rates are much higher than the typically charged rates by consultants in similar contracts. In such case, the Procuring Entity may ask for clarifications and, if the fees are very high, ask to change the rates. The format for (i) providing information on remuneration rates in the case of QBS and CQS; and (ii) clarifying remuneration rates 'structure under this Clause, is provided in Appendix A to the Financial Form FIN-3: Financial Negotiations-Breakdown of Remuneration Rates. If after the clarifications, the price is still considered too high, the Procuring Entity may terminate the negotiation and invite the next ranked Consultant for negotiations.
- 32.10 Where SSS method was used as indicated in the RFP, both the unit rates and total price shall be negotiated. If the negotiations fail, the Procuring Entity shall terminate the Consultant selection process. In that event, the Procuring Entity shall review the consultancy requirements and market conditions prior to deciding to use an appropriate selection method to again procure the consulting services.

33. Conclusion of Negotiations

- 33.1 The negotiations are concluded with a review of the finalized draft Contract, which then shall be initialed by the Accounting Officer and the Consultant's authorized representative and minutes prepared to record the outcome of the negotiations.
- 33.2 If the negotiations fail, the Procuring Entity shall inform the Consultant in writing of all pending issues and disagreements and provide a final opportunity to the Consultant to respond. If disagreement persists, the Procuring Entity shall terminate the negotiations informing the Consultant of the reasons for doing so. The Procuring Entity will invite the next-ranked Consultant to negotiate a Contract. Once the Procuring Entity commences negotiations with the next-ranked Consultant, the Procuring Entity shall not reopen the earlier negotiations.

34. Letter of Award

34.1 Upon expiry of the Standstill Period, specified in ITC 28.1, after satisfactorily addressing any appeal that has been filed within the Standstill Period, and upon successful negotiations, the Procuring Entity shall send a Letter of Award to the successful Consultant. The letter shall confirm the Procuring Entity's award of Contract to the successful Consultant and requesting the Consultant to sign and return the draft negotiated Contract within Twenty-One (21) Days from the date of the Letter of Award.

35. Signing of Contract

35.1 The Contract shall be signed prior to the expiration of the Proposal Validity Period and promptly after expiry

of the Standstill Period, specified in ITC 28.1 and upon satisfactorily addressing any complaint that has been filed within the Standstill Period.

35.2 The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the Data Sheet.

36. Publication of Procurement Contract

- 36.1 Within the period specified in the Data Sheet, the Procuring Entity shall publish the awarded Contract which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information: (a) name and address of the Procuring Entity; (b) name and reference number of the contract being awarded, (c) the selection method used; (d) names of the consultants that submitted proposals; (e) names of all Consultants whose Proposals were rejected or were not evaluated; (f) the name of the successful consultant, the final total contract price, the contract duration and a summary of its scope.
- 36.2 Consider carefully the information on Consultants to be published, particularly evaluation by the Procuring Entity, to avoid disclosing information which can facilitate bid-rigging formation going forward. Suggest amendment as follows:
- 36.3 The awarded Contract shall be published on the Procuring Entity's website with free access if available and in the official procurement tender portal.

37. Procurement Related Complaint and Administrative Review

- 37.1 The procedures for making Procurement-related Complaints shall be specified in the TDS.
- 37.2 A request for administrative review shall be made in the form provided under contract forms.

SECTION 2 (B). DATA SHEET

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS
	A. General Provisions
1(j)	Electronic procurement system shall be used: (a) Yes $$ (b) No If Yes; <i>REREC uses SAP SRM system in tendering processing. To participate in the tender use the link</i> <i>below that can be found on the website www.rerec.co.ke</i>
	New tenderers who have never dealt with us before shall register through Procurement-Supplier registration: https://suppliers.rea.co.ke:44200/supportal(bD1lbiZjPTUwMCZkPW1pbg==)/bspwdapplication.do #VIEW_ANCHOR-ROS_TOP
	Already registered bidders shall process and submit their bids via the Corporation's e-
	Procurement system as follows:
	Login to REREC portal via url https://suppliers.rea.co.ke:44300/irj/portal
	N/B: It is assumed that you have already completed the registration process and that your registration has been approved by REREC and you have created both admin and employee account. An employee user account shall be used to bid and transact with REREC
	The electronic-procurement system shall be used to manage the following aspects of the Tendering process: i. Issuing tendering document, ii. Submissions of tenders, iii. Opening of tenders, iv. Evaluation of tenders and Contracting.
2.1	Name of the Procuring Entity: Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation
	The consultant selection method is: [Procuring Entity to choose ONE of the selection methods by placing an X]
	Quality and Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS)[X]Quality Based Selection Method (QBS)[Least Cost Selection Method (LCS)[Consultant Qualification Selection Method (CQS)[Fixed Budget Selection Method (FBS)[Single Source Selection Method (SSS)[
2.2	Financial Proposal to be submitted together with Technical Proposal in separate envelopes: Yes $_\sqrt{_}$ No $__$
	The name of the assignment is: Provision of Consultancy Services for Market Survey on Commonly used Materials/Items/Services in REREC.
2.3	A pre-proposal conference will be held: Yesor No $_\sqrt{_}$ [<i>If "Yes", fill in the following:</i>] Date of pre-proposal conference:N/A

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS							
2.4	The Procuring Entity will provide the following inputs, project data, reports, etc. to facilitate the preparation of the Proposals: N/A							
3.3 (iv)	[Insert any other conflicting relationships] Bidder to state if any							
4.1	[If "Unfair Competitive Advantage" applies to the selection, explain how it is mitigated, including listing the reports, information, documents, etc. and indicating the sources where these can be downloaded or obtained by the Consultants] None							
6.2	Maximum number of members in the Joint Venture (JV) shall be: None							
6.6 (a)	The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the PPRA's website www.ppra.go.ke or email complaints@ppra.go.ke							
6.7	The business will be registered with: None, open to all							
B. Preparation	on of Proposals							
10.1	The Proposal shall comprise the following two separate submission: 1 st Part; Scanned pdf document with the Technical Proposal: Power of Attorney to sign the Proposal TECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission Form TECH-2: Consultant's Organization and Experience TECH-3: Comments and Suggestions TECH-4: Description of Approach, Methodology and Workplan TECH-5: Work Schedule and Planning for Deliverables TECH-6: Team Composition, Assignment, and Key Experts' Input TECH-7: Mandatory Documentary Evidence AND 2 nd Part; Scanned pdf document with the Financial Proposal: (1) FIN-1: Financial Proposal Submission Form (2) FIN-2: Summary of Costs (3) FIN-3: Breakdown of Remuneration (4) FIN-4: Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses Note: Bidders are advised to submit a maximum of two scans per part; 1 st Part Technical (Maximum scanned documents 2) 2 nd Part Financial proposal.							
11.1	Participation of Sub-consultants, and Key Experts in more than one Proposal is permissible: No							
12.1	Proposals must remain valid for 112days after the proposal submission deadline.							
13.1	Clarifications may be requested no later than <i>3days</i> prior to the submission deadline. The contact information for requesting clarifications is: CEO Kawi House, South C, P.O. Box 34585, 00100 Nairobi, Kenya e-mail: info@rerec.co.ke; tenders@rerec.co.ke; TEL NO.254-20-2710955/2713921							
14 (b) (do not use for Fixed Budget method)	Not applicable							

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS									
14 (c) and 26.2 [use for Fixed Budget method]	input shall not be disclosed. Total available budget, with an indication whether it is inclusive or									
14 (d)	Key Experts shall not appear in more than one proposal. Invited firms must confirm and ensure their Key experts do not appear in proposal of other invited firms, otherwise proposals with Key experts appearing in other proposals will lead to disqualification of both firms									
16.1(b)	Reimbursable expenses: There are no reimbursable expenses									
16.2	A price adjustment provision applies to remuneration rates: No									
16.3	REREC has not obtained a tax exemption applicable to the Contract									
16.4	The Financial Proposal shall be stated in the following currencies: The Financial Proposal should state all costs in Kenya Shillings only.									
C. Submis	sion, Opening and Evaluation									
17.1	The Consultants shall submit their Proposals electronically.									
17.5	The Consultant must submit: (a) Technical Proposal: one (1) original copy in pdf format submitted in the collaboration folder found under collaboration room under Notes and attachment of the SRM portal; (b) Financial Proposal: one (1) original copy in pdf format submitted in the collaboration folder found under collaboration room under Notes and attachment of the SRM portal. (Quick bidding reference can be found in the website under <i>Bidding Quick Reference - https://www.rerec.co.ke/Supplier-Bidding-Quick-reference- quide.pdf</i>									
	Note Bidders are advised to merge all documents into a set of scanned pdf file before submission. They shall submit two different sets of scanned pdf documents, one set for Technical proposal cleared labelled as "Technical" and one set for Financial proposal cleared labelled "Financial"									
18.5	The Proposals must be submitted no later than: Date: 08.05.2024 Time: 1000hrs The Proposal submission address is: Online Through: https://suppliers.rea.co.ke:44300/irj/portal									
20.1	An online option of the opening of the Technical Proposals is offered: Yes i. The opening committee logs in SAP-SRM ii. Click on initiate RFX opening iii. Download the excel file, which is the opening schedule contains the tender number and tenderer's name. The opening shall take place at: Street Address: Kawi House, South C, Floor Number: Ground Floor Room number: Procurement Office City: Nairobi County: Nairobi County: Kenya Date: 08.05.2024									

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS											
Time: 1000hrs												
20.2	In addition, the following information will be read aloud at the opening of the Technical Proposals Submitted bid security Name of Bank Amount of Security											
22.1 Other eligibility and mandatory criteria shall be: As per Terms of Reference												
2.2.2	The Criteria, sub-criteria, and point system for the evaluation of the Technical Proposals:											
	Criteria	Max. Score										
	 RELEVANT EXPERIENCE OF THE CONSULTANCY AND TECHNICAL CAPABILITIES TO CARRY OUT THE ASSIGNMENT Brief description of the following: Description of consultancy/ organization profile indicating that suitability to carry out this specific assignment – 2Marks Technical capabilities and resources to carry out this specificassignment – 3Marks Relevant Experience to carry out this specific assignment – 5Marks 	10										
	 b Number of market surveys previously undertaken. List the names of the organizations where the assignment(s) were carried out and provide dates and contact persons. 5 projects and above 10 points 4 projects 8 marks 3 projects 6 marks 2 projects 4 marks 1 project 2 marks 0 projects 0 marks N.B Attach Certified copies of documentary evidence (i.e Contracts and Completion certificates) 	10										
	2.APPROACH AND METHODOLOGYa.Understanding of and conformity to the terms of reference(TOR's) Consultant's additional suggestions and proposals on the TORs10 marks	15										
	b. Appropriateness of the methodology and survey schedule, and the completeness of the description of the same in relation to the TORs, particularly with respect to the out lined objectives in the terms of reference											
	Completeness and adequacy of the work plan 3. HUMAN RESOURCE CAPACITY	10										
	a. Adequacy of the Organizational structure and sufficiency of staffing.	10										
	 b. Lead Consultant: The lead consultant shall have a bachelor's degree in a relevant field and at least 5 years' experience in statistics, research or project management; including at least twoassignments related to market surveys Qualifications 10 mks Experience 10 mks 	20										
	•	10										
	GRAND TOTAL											
23.4	An online option of the opening of the Financial Proposals is offered: Yes i. The opening committee logs in SAP-SRM ii. Click on initiate RFX opening											

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS							
	 iii. Click on open RFx prices iv. Download the excel file, which is the opening schedule contains the tender number, tenderer's name and quoted prices 							
25.2	For the evaluation, the Procuring Entity will include separate items of: (a) all local identifiable in taxes such as sales tax, excise tax, VAT, or similar taxes levied on the contract's invoices; and additional local indirect tax on the remuneration of services rendered by experts.							
	If a Contract is awarded, at Contract negotiations, all such taxes will be discussed, finalized using the itemized list and included in the Contract amount as a separate line, also indicating which taxes shall be paid by the Consultant and which taxes are withheld and paid by the Procuring Entity on behalf of the Consultant.							
26.1	The single currency for the conversion of all prices expressed in various currencies into a single one is: <u>Kenya Shillings</u> The official source of the selling exchange rate is: <u>CBK rates</u> The date of the exchange rate is: <u>tender closing date</u>							
29.1 (QCBS only)	The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) is given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100. The formula for determining the financial scores (Sf) of all other Proposals is calculated as following: Sf = 100 x Fm/F, in which "Sf" is the financial score, "Fm" is the lowest price, and "F" the price of the proposal under consideration.							
	The weights given to the Technical (T) and Financial (P) Proposals are: T = 0.85 P = 0.15 Proposals are ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) as following: S = St x T% + Sf x P%.							
31	The Standstill Period shall be: 14 days. The procedures for making a procurement related complaint are detailed in the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act and Regulations. If a Consultant wishes to make a procurement relate complaint or appeal, the Consultant shall submit its complaint to the Public Procurement Administrative Review Board.							
	D. Negotiations and Award							
32.1	Expected date and address for contract negotiations: To be communicated after award							
35.2	Expected date for the commencement of the Services: Date: Immediately after contract signature and Purchase order							
36.1	The publication of the contract award information following the completion of the contract negotiations and contract signing will be done as following: The publication will be done within 3 days after the contract signing							
37.1	The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaints are detailed in the "Regulations" available from the PPRA Website www.ppra.go.ke or email complaints@ppra.go.ke . If a Tenderer wishes to make a Procurement-related Complaint, the Tenderer should submit its complaint following these procedures, in writing (by the quickest means available, that is either by hand delivery or email to:							
	For the attention: <i>Dr. Rose N. Mkalama</i> Title/position: <i>Chief Executive Officer</i> Procuring Entity: <i>Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation</i> Email address: <i>info@rerec.co.ke</i>							

Reference to ITC Clause	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS
	In summary, a Procurement-related Complaint may challenge any of the following: (i) the terms of the Tender Documents; and (ii) the Procuring Entity's decision to award the contract.

SECTION 3. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL – STANDARD FORMS

{*Notes to Consultant* shown in brackets {} throughout Section 3 provide guidance to the Consultant to prepare the Technical Proposal; they should not appear on the Proposals to be submitted.}

1. FORMTECH-1: TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

Date:....

To:

.....

Dear Madam:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for

.....*[Insert title of assignment]* in accordance with your RFP dated......*[Insert Date]* and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal sealed in a separate envelope (Scanned in pdf format separately).

{If the Consultant is a joint venture, insert the following: We are submitting our Proposal in association/as a consortium/as a joint venture with: {Insert a list with full name and the legal address of each member, and indicate the lead member}. We have attached a copy {insert: "of our letter of intent to form a joint venture" or, if a JV is already formed, "of the JV agreement"} signed by every participating member, which details the likely legal structure of and the confirmation of joint and severable liability of the members of the said joint venture.

OR

{If the Consultant's Proposal includes Sub-consultants, insert the following :} We are submitting our Proposal with the following firms as Sub-consultants: *{insert a list with full name and address of each Sub-consultant.}*

We hereby declare that:

- a) All the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and we accept that any misinterpretation or misrepresentation contained in this Proposal may lead to our disqualification by the Procuring Entity or maybe sanctioned by the PPRA.
- b) Our Proposal shall be valid and remain binding upon us for the period of time specified in the Data Sheet, Clause 12.1.
- c) We have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITC3.
- d) We meet the eligibility requirements as stated in ITC6, and we confirm our understanding of our obligation to abide by the Government's policy in regard to corrupt, fraudulent and prohibited practices as per ITC5.
- e) In competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the Contract, we undertake to observe the laws against fraud and corruption, including bribery, as well as laws against anti-competitive practices, including bid rigging in force in Kenya; we hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us

or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption or anti-competitive practices.

- f) We confirm that we are not insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or on the process of being of being wound up.
- g) The Consultant shall declare in the Technical Proposal Submission Form, that in competing for and executing a contract, it shall undertake to observe the laws of Kenya against fraud and corruption including bribery, as well as against anti-competitive practices including bid-rigging.
- (h) We are not guilty of any serious violation of fair employment laws and practices. We undertake to observe the laws of Kenya against fraud and corruption including bribery, as well as against collusive and anti-competitive practices, including bid rigging. To this effect we have signed the "Certificate of Independent Proposal Determination" attached below. We also undertake to adhere by the Code of Ethics for persons participating in Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Activities in Kenya, copy available from *www.ppra.go.ke* during the procurement process and the execution of any resulting contract.
- (I) We, along with any of our sub-consultants are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the PPRA.
- (e) Except as stated in the ITC12 and Data Sheet, we undertake to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the proposed Key Experts. We accept that the substitution of Key Experts for reasons other than those stated in ITC Clause12 and ITCClause29.3 and 29.4 may lead to the termination of Contract negotiations.
- (j) Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to any modifications resulting from the Contract negotiations.
- (k) We understand that the Procuring Entity is not bound to accept any Proposal that it receives.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted and the Contract is signed, to initiate the Services related to the assignment no later than the date indicated in Clause 32.2 of the Data Sheet.

We remain,

Yours sincerely,

Authorized Signature
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Consultant (company's name or JV's name):
Contact information (phone and e-mail):

2 CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PROPOSAL DETERMINATION

I, the undersigned, in submitting the accompanying TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM to the_

[Name of Procuring Entity] for:									
	[Name and number of tender] in response to the request for								
tenders made by:	[Name of Tenderer] do hereby make the								
followingstatementsthatIcertifytobetrueandcompleteinever	yrespect:								
I certify, on behalf of	[Name of Tenderer] that:								

- 1. I have read and I understand the contents of this Certificate;
- 2. I understand that the Tender will be disqualified if this Certificate is found not to be true and complete in every respect;
- **3** I am the authorized representative of the Tenderer with authority to sign this Certificate, and to submit the Tender on behalf of the Tenderer;
- 4 For the purposes of this Certificate and the Tender, I understand that the word "competitor" shall include any individual or organization, other than the Tenderer, whether or not affiliated with the Tenderer, who:
 - Has been requested to submit a Tender in response to this request for tenders;
 - could potentially submit a tender in response to this request for tenders, based on their qualifications, abilities or experience;
- 5 The Tenderer discloses that [check one of the following, as applicable]:

The Tenderer has arrived at the Tender independently from, and without consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with, any competitor;

The Tenderer has entered into consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements with one or more competitors regarding this request for tenders, and the Tenderer discloses, in the attached document(s), complete details thereof, including the names of the competitors and the nature of, and reasons for, such consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements;

- **6** In particular, without limiting the generality of paragraphs(5)(a) or (5) (b)above, there has been no consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with any competitor regarding:
 - prices;
 - methods, factors or formulas used to calculate prices;
 - the intention or decision to submit, or not to submit, a proposal; or
 - the submission of a proposal which does not meet the specifications of the request for proposals; except as specifically disclosed pursuant to paragraph(5)(b) above;
- 7. In addition, there has been no consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with any competitor regarding the quality, quantity, specifications or delivery particulars of the works or services to which this RFP relates, except as specifically authorized by the procuring authority or as specifically disclosed pursuant to paragraph(5)(b) above;
- 8 The terms of the RFP have not been, and will not be, knowingly disclosed by the Consultant, directly or indirectly, to any competitor, prior to the date and time of the official proposed opening, or of the awarding of the Contract, which ever comes first, unless otherwise required by law or as specifically disclosed pursuant to paragraph(5)(b) above.

Name		
Title		
Date		

[Name, title and signature of authorized agent of Consultant and Date]

3. APPENDIX TO FORM OF PROPOSAL ON FRAUD AND CORRUPTION CLAUSE (for information)

(Appendix shall not be modified)

Purpose

the government of Kenya's Anti-Corruption and Economic Crime laws and their sanction's policies and procedures, Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act (*no. 33 of 2015*) and its Regulation, and any other Kenya's Acts or Regulations related to Fraud and Corruption, and similar offences, shall apply with respect to Public Procurement Processes and Contracts that are governed by the laws of Kenya.

Requirements

The Government of Kenya requires that all parties including Procuring Entities, Tenderers, (applicants/proposers), Consultants, Contractors and Suppliers; any Sub-contractors, Sub-consultants, Service providers or Suppliers; any Agents (whether declared or not); and any of their Personnel, involved and engaged in procurement under Kenya's Laws and Regulation, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of all contracts ,and refrain from Fraud and Corruption and fully comply with Kenya's laws and Regulations as per paragraphs 1.1 above.

Kenya's public procurement and asset disposal act (*no.33 of 2015*) under Section 66 describes rules to be followed and actions to be taken in dealing with Corrupt, Coercive, Obstructive, Collusive or Fraudulent practices, and Conflicts of Interest in procurement including consequences for offences committed. A few of the provisions noted below highlight Kenya's policy of no tolerance for such practices and behavior:

- (1) a person to whom this Act applies shall not be involved in any corrupt, coercive, obstructive, collusive or fraudulent practice; or conflicts of interest in any procurement or asset disposal proceeding;
- (2) A person referred to under sub section (1) who contravenes the provisions of that sub-section commits an offence;
- (3) Without limiting the generality of the subsection (1) and (2), the person shall be:
 - a) disqualified from entering into a contract for a procurement or asset disposal proceeding; or
 - b) if a contract has already been entered into with the person, the contract shall be avoidable;
- (4) The voiding of a contract by the procuring entity under subsection (7) does not limit any legal remedy the procuring entity may have;
- (5) An employee or agent of the procuring entity or a member of the Board or committee of the procuring entity who has a conflict of interest with respect to a procurement
 - i) Shall not take part in the procurement proceedings;
 - ii) shall not, after a procurement contract has been entered into, take part in any decision relating to the procurement or contract; and
 - iii) Shall not be a sub-contractor for the tender to whom was awarded contract, or a member of the group of tenderers to whom the contract was awarded, but the sub-contractor appointed shall meet all the requirements of this Act.
- (6) An employee, agent or member described in subsection (1) who refrains from doing anything prohibited under that subsection, but for that subsection, would have been within his or her duties shall disclose the conflict of interest to the procuring entity;
- (7) If a person contravenes sub section (1) with respect to a conflict of interest described in subsection (5)(a) and the contract is awarded to the person or his relative or to another person in whom one of them had a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, the contract shall be terminated and all costs incurred by the public entity shall be made good by the awarding officer.
- (8) Incompliance with Kenya's laws, regulations and policies mentioned above, the Procuring Entity:
 - a) Defines broadly, for the purposes of the above provisions, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or

recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;

- iii) "collusive practice "is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - i) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede investigation by Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA) or any other appropriate authority appointed by Government of Kenya into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - ii) Acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PPRA's or the appointed authority's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.3e. below.
- b) Defines more specifically, in accordance with the above procurement Act provisions set forth for fraudulent and collusive practices as follows:

"fraudulent practice" includes a misrepresentation of fact in order to influence a procurement or disposal processortheexerciseofacontracttothedetrimentoftheprocuringentityorthetendererorthecontractor, andincludescollusivepracticesamongsttendererspriortooraftertendersubmissiondesignedtoestablish tender prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the procuring entity of the benefits of free and open competition.

- c) Rejects a proposal or award¹ of a contract if PPRA determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- d) Pursuant to the Kenya's above stated Acts and Regulations, may sanction or debar or recommend to appropriate authority (ies) for sanctioning and debarment of a firm or individual, as applicable under the Acts and Regulations;
- e) Requires that a clause be included in Tender documents and Request for Proposal documents requiring (i) Tenderers (applicants/proposers),Consultants, Contractors, and Suppliers and their Sub-contractors, Sub-consultants, Service providers, Suppliers, Agents personnel, permit the PPRA or any other appropriate authority appointed by Government of Kenya to inspect²all accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the PPRA or any other appropriate authority appointed by Government of Kenya; and
- f) Pursuant to Section 62 of the above Act, requires Applicants/Tenderers to submit along with their Applications/Tenders/Proposals a "Self-Declaration Form" as included in the procurement document declaring that they and all parties involved in the procurement process and contract execution have not engaged/will not engage in any corrupt or fraudulent practices.

¹For the avoidance of doubt, a party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in

A consultancy, and tendering, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and(ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

² Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Investigating Authority or persons appointed by the Procuring Entity to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies there of as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

3. FORM TECH-2: CONSULTANT'S ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE

Form TECH-2: a brief description of the Consultant's organization and an outline of the recent experience of the Consultant that is most relevant to the assignment. In the case of a joint venture, information on similar assignments shall be provided for each partner. For each assignment, the outline should indicate the names of the Consultant's Key Experts and Sub-consultants who participated, the duration of the assignment, the contract amount (total and, if it was done in a form of a joint venture or a sub-consultancy, the amount paid to the Consultant), and the Consultant's role/involvement.

A - Consultant's Organization

Provide here a brief description of the background and organization of your company, and-in case of a joint venture-of each member for this assignment.

B - Consultant's Experience

- 1. List only previous <u>similar</u> assignments successfully completed in the last [5] years.
- 2. List only those assignments for which the Consultant was legally contracted by the Procuring Entity as a company or was one of the joint venture partners. Assignments completed by the Consultant's individual experts working privately or through other consulting firms cannot be claimed as the relevant experience of the Consultant, or that of the Consultant's partners or sub-consultants, but can be claimed by the Experts themselves in their Curriculum Vitae (CV).
- *3.* The Consultant shall substantiate their claimed experience by presenting copies of relevant documents such as the form of contract (not the whole contract), purchase order, service order, performance certificate, etc.; which shall be included in the proposal as part of *Form Tech 7 Mandatory Documentary Evidence*.

Assignment name: Approx. value of the contract [KES, US\$ etc.]:						
Country:	Duration of assignment (months):					
Name of Procuring Entity:	Total $N^{\underline{o}}$ of staff-months of the assignment:					
Contact Address: Email:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract:					
Start date (month/year): Completion date:	$N^{\underline{o}}$ of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:					
Role on Assignment: (E.g. Lead Member in ABC JV, or Sole Consultant):	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed:					
Narrative description of Assignment:	<u> </u>					
Description of actual services provided by your staff within the assignment:						
Name of Consulting Firm: Name and Title of Signatory:						

3 FORM TECH-3: COMMENT SAND SUGGESTIONS

Form TECH-3: The Consultant to provide comments and suggestions on the Terms of Reference, counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the Procuring Entity that could improve the quality/effectiveness of the assignment; and on requirements for counterpart staff and facilities, which are provided by the Procuring Entity, including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.

A - On the Terms of Reference

{Improvements to the Terms of Reference, if any}

B - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

(Include comments on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the Procuring Entity. For example, administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, background reports, etc., if any}

4 FORM TECH-4: DESCRIPTION OF APPROACH, METHODOLOGY, AND WORK PLAN

Form TECH-4: a description of the approach, methodology and work plan in responding to the terms of reference for performing the assignment, including a detailed description of the proposed methodology and staffing for training, if the Terms of Reference specify training as a specific component of the assignment.

{The structure of your Technical Proposal:

- a) Technical Approach and Methodology
- b) Work Plan
- c) Organization and Staffing}
 - *i)* <u>Technical Approach and Methodology.</u> {Please explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment as outlined in the Terms of Reference (TORs), the technical approach, and the methodology you would adopt for implementing the tasks to deliver the expected output(s), and the degree of detail of such output. Please do not repeat/copy the TOR sin here.}
 - ii) <u>Work Plan.</u> {Please outline the plan for the implementation of the main activities/tasks of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the Procuring Entity), and tentative delivery dates of their ports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing your understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents (including reports) to be delivered as final output(s)should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule Form.}
 - *Organization and Staffing. (Please describe the structure and composition of your team, including the list of the Key Experts, Non-Key Experts and relevant technical and administrative support staff.)*

5 FORM TECH-5: WORK SCHEDULE AND PLANNING FOR DELIVERABLES

N°	Deliverables ¹ (D)	Months										
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	 n	TOTAL
D-1	{e.g., Deliverable #1: Report A											
	1) data collection											
	2) drafting											
	3) inception report											
	4) incorporating comments											
	5)											
	6) delivery of final report to Procuring Entity}											
D-2	{e.g., Deliverable #2:}											
N												

1 List the deliverables with the breakdown for activities required to produce them and other benchmarks such as the Procuring Entity's approvals. For phased assignments, indicate the activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.

- 2 Duration of activities shall be indicated in a form of a bar chart.
- 3. Include a legend, if necessary, to help read the chart.

6. FORM TECH- 6A: TEAM COMPOSITION, ASSIGNMENT, AND KEY EXPERTS' INPUTS

N°	Name	Expert's input (in person/month) per each Deliverable (listed in TECH-5)							Total time-input (in Months)					
	i vuille	Position		D-1	D-2	D-3			D			Home	Field	Total
KEY	KEY EXPERTS													
K-1		[Team Leader]	[Home] [Field]	[2 month] [0.5 m]	[1.0] [2.5]	[1.0] [0]								
K-2		-												
K-3														
N														
						Subtotal	L							
NON	-KEY EXPERTS													
N-1			[Home] [Field]											
N-2														
N														
						Subtotal		· ·						
						Total								

1.For Key Experts, the input should be indicated individually for the same positions as required under the ITC Data Sheet 21.2

2.Months are counted from the start of the assignment/mobilization. One (1) month equals twenty-two (22) working (billable) days. One working (billable) day shall be not less than eight (8) working (billable) hours.

3"Home" means work in the office in the expert's country of residence. "Field" work means work carried out in Kenya, or outside the normal residence of the Expert in Kenya or any other country outside the expert's country of residence.



20

7. FORM TECH-6B: CURRICULUM VITAE (CV)

Position Title and No.	{e.g., K-1, Team Leader}
Name of Expert:	{Insert full name}
Date of Birth:	{day/month/year}
Country of Citizenship	

Education: {List college/university or other specialized education, giving names of educational institutions, dates attended, degree(s)/diploma(s) obtained}

Employment record relevant to the assignment: {Starting with present position, list in reverse order. Please provide dates, name of employing organization, titles of positions held, types of activities performed and location of the assignment, and contact information of previous Procuring Entity's and employing organization(s) who can be contacted for references. Past employment that is not relevant to the assignment does not need to be included.}

Period	Employing organization and your title/position. Contact Information for references	Country	Summary of activities performed relevant to the Assignment

Membership in Professional Associations and Publications:

Language Skills (indicate only languages in which you can work):

Adequacy for the Assignment:

Detailed Tasks Assigned on Consultant's Team of Experts:	Reference to Prior Work/Assignments that Best Illustrates Capability to Handle the Assigned Tasks
{List all deliverables/tasks as in TECH- 5 in which the Expert will be involved)	

Expert's contact information :(e-mail.....)

Certification:

I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this CV correctly describes myself, my qualifications, and my experience, and I am available to undertake the assignment in case of an award. I understand that any misstatement or misrepresentation described herein may lead to my disqualification or dismissal by the Procuring Entity, and/or sanctions by the PPRA.

Name of Expert	SignatureDate		
-	-	{day / month/year}	
Name of authorized	Signature	Date	
Representative of the			
~			

Consultant (the same who signs

the Proposal

8. FORMTECH-7: MANDATORY SUPPORT DOCUMENTS

[The Consultant shall use this form to submit all the required support documentary evidence as required in the RFP, especially the mandatory and eligibility criteria specified in the Data Sheet ITC 21.1]

a) Certificate of Incorporation/Certificate of Registration

{Insert here a copy of certificate of incorporation or registration}

b) Tax Compliance Certificate

{Consultant to insert a copy of the tax compliance certificate from Kenya Revenue Authority or similar body in the case of foreign consulting firms}

c) Practice License or Certificate for the Firm

{If required, Consultant to insert a copy of the firm's practice license or registration certificate issued by the professional body specified under Data Sheet ITC 21.1}

d) Similar Consulting Assignments Experience

{Consultant to insert here copies of the form of contract, purchase order, service order, and performance certificate or similar evidence of similar assignments carried out by the firm. The assignments shall be the same as those provided under FORM TECH 2B}

e) Academic Certificates

{Consultant to insert copies of the required relevant academic certificates relevant to the assignment for all the key experts}

f) Professional Certificates

{Consultant to insert copies of professional certificates and relevant short-term trainings to demonstrate professional qualifications for all the key experts}

g) Professional Membership of Key Experts

{If applicable, Consultant to insert copies of professional membership certificate for its key experts}

h) Certificate of Independent Proposal Determination

(The Form is available on Tech FORM TECH-1: TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM).

EVALUATION CRITERIA

1. PRELIMINARY REQUIREMENTS (MANDATORY)

No.	Documents to be submitted	Yes/No
1.	Valid copy of Registration Certificate/Certificate of Incorporation	
2.	Copy of valid Tax Compliance Certificate (to be verified online)	
3.	Confidential Business Questionnaire duly filled, signed & stamped	
4.	Copy of recent CR 12 form (Issued within the last 12 months from the Tender Opening Date)	
5.	Original copy of Tender Security of Ksh.100,000.00 in the form of Unconditional Bank Guarantee from a reputable bank in Kenya valid up to 30 days beyond the tender validity period	
6.	 The Lead Consultant must, be a member of the following bodies, and of current good standing: A member of the Public Relations Society of Kenya (attach evidence) A member of the Media Council of Kenya (attach evidence) 	
7.	 The Producer must be a member of the following bodies, and of current good standing: A member of the Public Relations Society of Kenya (attach evidence) A member of the Media Council of Kenya (attach evidence) 	
8.	Serialization of the tender documents - All pages of the tender document submitted shall be sequentially serialized.	

Bidders are advised to merge all documents into a set of scanned pdf file before submission. They shall submit two different sets of scanned pdf documents, one set for Technical proposal cleared labelled as "Technical" and one set for Financial proposal cleared labelled "Financial"

FORM TECH - 8: SELF-DECLARATIONFORMS

FORM SD1

SELF DECLARATION THAT THE PERSON/TENDERER IS NOT DEBARRED IN THE MATTER OF THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT AND ASSET DISPOSAL ACT 2015.

I,	, of Post Office Box	being a resident of
	in the Republic of	do hereby make a statement as
follows: -	1	2

- 2. THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its Directors and subcontractors have not been debarred from participating in procurement proceeding under Part IV of the Act.
- 3. THAT what is deponed to here in above is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

(Title)	(Signature)	(Date)

Bidder Official Stamp

FORM SD2

SELF DECLARATION THAT THE PERSON/TENDERER WILL NOT ENGAGE IN ANY CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT PRACTICE.

1. THAT I am the Chief Executive/Managing Director/Principal Officer/Director of.....

..... (insert name of the Company) who is a Bidder in respect of **Tender No.**

..... for (insert tender title/description) for (insert name of the Procuring entity) and duly authorized and competent to make this statement.

- 2. THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its servants and/or agents /subcontractors will not engage in any corrupt or fraudulent practice and has not been requested to pay any inducement to any member of the Board, Management, Staff and/or employees and/ or agents of..... (*insert name of the Procuring entity*) which is the procuring entity.
- *3.* THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its servants and/or agents /subcontractors have not offered any inducement to any member of the Board, Management, Staff and/or employees and/or agents of...... (*name of the procuring entity*).
- 4. THAT the aforesaid Bidder will not engage /has not engaged in any corrosive practice with other bidders participating in the subject tender.
- 5. THAT what is deponed to herein above is true to the best of my knowledge information and belief.

(Title)	(Signature)	(Date)

Bidder Official Stamp

DECLARATION AND COMMITMENT TO THE CODE OF ETHICS

(person) on behalf of (Name
of the Business/ Company/Firm) declare that I have read and fully inderstood the contents of the Public Procurement & Asset Disposal Act,2015, Regulations and the Code of Ethics for persons participating in Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Activities in Kenya and my responsibilities under the Code.
do here by commit to abide by the provisions of the Code of Ethics for persons participating in Public Procurement and Asset Disposal.
Name of Authorized signatory
Sign
Position
Office address
E-mail
Name of the Firm/Company
Date

(Company Seal/ Rubber Stamp where applicable)

Witness

Name	
Sign	•
Date	

FORM TECH - 9: TENDER-SECURING DECLARATION FORM {r 46 and 155(2)}

[The Bidder shall complete this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Date:	[insert date (as day, month and year) of Tender Submission]
Tender No.:	[insert number of tendering process]
То:	[insert complete name of Purchaser]

I/We, the undersigned, declare that:

- 1. I/ We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Tender-Securing Declaration.
- 2. I/We accept that I/we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for tendering in any contract with the Purchaser or the period of time of[insert number of months or years] starting on[insert date], if we are in breach of our obligation (s) under the bid conditions, because we–(a) have withdrawn our tender during the period of tender validity specified by us in the Tendering Data Sheet; or (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity,(i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the instructions to tenders.
- 3. I/We understand that this Tender Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Tenderer (s), upon the earlier of:
 - a) Our receipt of a copy of your notification of the name of the successful Tenderer; or
 - b) Thirty days after the expiration of our Tender.
- 4. I/We understand that if I am /we are/in a Joint Venture, the Tender Securing Declaration must be in the name of the Joint Venture that submits the bid, and the Joint Venture has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Tender Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent.

Signed:

Capacity / title (director or partner or sole proprietor, etc.)

Name:

Duly authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of

Tenderer] Dated on day of [Insert date of signing]

Seal or stamp

SECTION 4. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL - STANDARD FORMS

(Notes to Consultant shown in brackets {....} provide guidance to the Consultant to prepare the Financial Proposals; they should not appear on the Financial Proposals to be submitted.)

Financial Proposal Standard Forms shall be used for the preparation of the Financial Proposal according to the instructions provided in Section 2.

FIN-1 Financial Proposal Submission Form

FIN-2 Summary of Costs

FIN-3 Breakdown of Remuneration

FIN-4 Reimbursable expenses

FORM FIN-1: FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

FORM FIN-1: FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM (Amended and issued pursuant to PPRA CIRCULAR No. 02/2022)

Dear Sirs:

{*Please note that all amounts shall be the same as in Form FIN-2*}.

Our Financial Proposal shall be valid and remain binding upon us, subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, for the period of time specified in the ITC12.1 Datasheet.

We commit to provide to the procuring entity the Beneficial Ownership Information in conformity with the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form upon receipt of notification of intention to enter into a contract in the event we are the successful tenderer in this subject procurement proceeding.

Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to an agent or any third party relating to preparation or submission of this Proposal and Contract execution, paid if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below:

Name and Address, Amount and Purpose of Commission of Agents, Currency or Gratuity

{If no payments are made or promised, add the following statement: "No commissions or gratuities have been or are to be paid by us to agents or any third party relating to this Proposal and Contract execution."}

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely,

{For a joint venture, either all members shall sign or only the lead member/consultant, in which case the power of attorney to sign on behalf of all members shall be attached}

FORM FIN-2: SUMMARY OF COSTS

	Cost							
	{Consultant must state the proposed Costs in accordance with ITC 16.4 of the Data Sheet; delete columns which are not used}							
Item	{Insert Foreign Currency #1}	{Insert Foreign Currency # 2, if used}	{Insert Foreign Currency # 3, if used}	{Insert Local Currency, if used and/or required (16.4 Data Sheet}				
Cost of the Financial Proposal								
Including:								
(1) Remuneration								
(2) Reimbursable								
Subtotal [Remuneration + Reimbursable]								
Taxes:								
{insert type of tax e.g., VAT or sales tax}								
{e.g., withholding tax on experts' remuneration}								
{insert type of tax}								
Total Taxes								
Total Cost of the Financial Proposal: {Should match the amount in Form FIN- 1}								

FORM FIN-3A: BREAKDOWN OF REMUNERATION

When used for Lump-Sum contract assignment, information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to demonstrate the basis for the calculation of the Contract's ceiling amount; to calculate applicable taxes at contract negotiations; and, if needed, to establish payments to the Consultant for possible additional services requested by the Procuring Entity. This Form shall not be used as a basis for payments under Lump-Sum contracts.

A. R	emuneratio	n						
No	Name	Position (as in TECH- 6)	Person-month Remuneration Rate	Time Input in Person/Month (from TECH- 6)	{ <i>Currency</i> # 1- as in <i>FIN-2</i> }	{Currency # 2- as in FIN-2}	{Currency# 3- as in FIN-2}	{Local Currency- as in FIN- 2}
	Key Experts							
K- 1			[Home]					
-			[Field]					
K- 2								
4								
	Non- Key Experts		<u> </u>	<u> </u>				
N- 1			[Home]					
N- 2			[Field]	 				
				+				
				Total Costs				

FORM FIN 3B: CONSULTANT'S REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COSTS AND CHARGES

{*This Form FIN 3B shall be used for Time-Based contracts only. If Lump sum Contract is used, the Procuring Entity shall delete the FORMFIN-3B, FORM FIN-3C and FORM FIN-3D from the RFP before issuance to Consultants*}

Consultant:Country: Assignment:Date:

We hereby confirm that:

- a) The basic fees indicated in the attached table are taken from the firm's pay roll records and reflect the current rates of the Experts listed which have not been raised other than within the normal annual pay increase policy as applied to all the Consultant's Experts;
- b) attached are true copies of the latest pay slips of the Experts listed;
- c) theaway-from-homeofficeallowancesindicatedbelowarethosethattheConsultanthasagreedtopayforthis assignment to the Experts listed;
- d) the factors listed in the attached table for social charges and overhead are based on the firm's average cost experiences for the latest three years as represented by the firm's financial statements; and
- e) said factors for overhead and social charges do not include any bonuses or other means of profit-sharing.

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name:	
Fitle:	
Date:	

FORM 3C: FORM FOR CONSULTANT'S REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COSTS AND CHARGES

{This Form FIN 3C shall be used for Time-Based contracts only}

(Expressed in {insert name of currency*})

Personnel		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Name	Position	Basic Remuneration Rate per Working Month/Day/Ye ar	Social Charges	Overhea d ¹	Subtotal	Profit ²	Away from Home Office Allowance	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Day/Hou r	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Day/Hou r ¹
Home Office									
Procuring Enti	ty's Country								

If more than one currency is used, use additional table(s), one for each currency} {*

1.

Expressed as percentage of 1 Expressed as percentage of 4 2.

FORM FIN 3D: BREAKDOWN OF REMUNERATION RATES [FOR TIME BASED CONTRACTS ONLY]

1. Review of Remuneration Rates

- 1.1 The remuneration rates are made up of salary or abase fee, social costs, overheads, profit, and any premium or allowance that may be paid for assignments away from headquarters or a home office. Form FIN3 C can be used to provide a breakdown of rates.
- 1.2 The Form FIN 3C shall be completed and attached to the Financial Form-3. As agreed at the negotiations, breakdown sheets shall form part of the negotiated Contract and included in its Appendix D or C.
- 1.3 At the negotiations the firm shall be prepared to disclose its audited financial statements for the last three years, to substantiate its rates, and accept that its proposed rates and other financial matters are subject to scrutiny. The Procuring Entity is charged with the custody of government funds and is expected to exercise prudence in the expenditure of these funds.

2 Rate details are discussed below:

- (i) <u>Salary</u> is the gross regular cash salary or fee paid to the individual in the firm's home office. It shall not contain any premium for work away from headquarters or bonus, except where these are included bylaw or government regulations.
- (ii) <u>Bonuses</u> are normally paid out of profits. To avoid double counting, any bonuses shall not normally be included in the "Salary" and should be shown separately. Where the Consultant's accounting system is such that the percentages of social costs and overheads are based on total revenue, including bonuses, those percentages shall be adjusted downward accordingly. Where national policy requires that 13 months' pay be given for 12 months' work, the profit element need not be adjusted downward. Any discussions on bonuses shall be supported by audited documentation, which shall be treated as confidential.
- (iii) <u>Social Charges</u> are the costs of non-monetary benefits and may include, inter alia, social security (including pension, medical, and life insurance costs) and the cost of a paid sick and/or annual leave. In this regard, a paid leave during public holidays or an annual leave taken during an assignment if no Expert's replacement has been provided is not considered social charges.
- (iv) <u>Cost of Leave</u> The principles of calculating the cost of total days leave per annum as a percentage of basic salary is normally calculated as follows:

Leave cost as percentage of salary = $\frac{\text{total days leave x 100}}{[365 - w - \text{ph} - v - \text{s}]}$

Where w = weekends, ph = public holidays, v = vacation, and s = sick leave.

Please note that leave can be considered as a social cost only if the Procuring Entity is not charged for the leave taken.

- (v) <u>Overheads</u> are the Consultant's business costs that are not directly related to the execution of the assignment and shall not be reimbursed as separate items under the Contract. Typical items are home office costs (non-billable time, time of senior Consultant's staff monitoring the project, rent of headquarters' office, support staff, research, staff training, marketing, etc.), the cost of Consultant's personnel not currently employed on revenue-earning projects, taxes on business activities, and business promotion costs. During negotiations, audited financial statements, certified as correct by an independent auditor and supporting the last three years' over heads, shall be available for discussion, together with detailed lists of items making up the overheads and the percentage by which each relates to basic salary. The Procuring Entity does not accept an add-on margin for social charges, overhead expenses, etc. for Experts who are not permanent employees of the Consultant. In such case, the Consultant shall be entitled only to administrative costs and a fee on the monthly payments charged for sub-contracted Experts.
- (vi) <u>Profit</u> is normally based on the sum of the Salary, Social costs, and Overheads. If any bonuses paid on a regular basis are listed, a corresponding reduction shall be made in the profit amount. Profit shall not be allowed on travel or any other reimbursable expenses.
- (vii) <u>Away from Home Office Allowance or Premium or Subsistence Allowances</u> Some Consultants pay allowances to Experts working away from headquarters or outside of the home office. Such allowances are calculated as a percentage of salary (or a fee) and shall not draw over heads or profit. Sometimes, by law, such allowances may draw social costs. In this case, the amount of this social cost shall still be shown under social costs, with the net allowance shown separately.

FORM FIN-4 BREAKDOWN OF REIMBURSABLE

When used for Lump-Sum contract assignment, information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to demonstrate the basis for calculation of the Contract ceiling amount, to calculate applicable taxes at contract negotiations and, if needed, to establish payments to the Consultant for possible additional services requested by the Procuring Entity. This form shall not be used as a basis for payments under Lump-Sum contracts. This form shall be filled for Time-Based Contracts to form the basis of contract negotiations.

B. Re	imbursable Expenses							
N°	Type of Reimbursable Expenses	Unit	Unit Cost	Quantity	{Currency # 1- as in FIN- 2}	{Currency # 2- as in FIN- 2}	{Currency# 3- as in FIN-2}	{Local Currency- as in FIN-2}
	{e.g., Per diem allowances**}	{Day}						
	{e.g., International flights}	{Ticket}						
	{e.g., In/out airport transportation}	{Trip}						
	{e.g., Communication costs between Insert place and Insert place }							
	{ e.g., reproduction of reports}							
	{e.g., Office rent}							
	{Training of the Procuring Entity's personnel – if required in TOR}							
	Total Costs							

Legend:

"Per diem allowance" is paid for each night the expert is required by the Contract to be away from his/her usual place of residence. Procuring Entity can set up a ceiling.

- **5.1** Terms of Reference are the initial statement to the consultant of the services to be performed and should therefore be clear and precise and should contain the following sections:
 - (a) Background,
 - (b) Objectives of the assignment,
 - (c) Scope of the Services,
 - (d) Training (where appropriate),
 - (e) Reports and Time Schedule,
 - (f) Data Services, Personnel and Facilities to be provided by the Client, and
 - (g) Terms of Payment.

5.2 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR MARKET SURVEY

5.2.1 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Government of Kenya enacted the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2015 for the purpose of establishing procedures that govern procurement of goods, works and services and disposal of unserviceable,obsolete or surplus equipment by public entities in order to:-

- a. Maximize economy and efficiency
- b. Promote competition and ensure fair treatment for all competitors
- c. Promote integrity and fairness
- d. Increase transparency and accountability
- e. Increase public confidence, and
- f. Promotion local industry and economic development.

Given the dynamic nature of the need to satisfy customers in real time, and the dynamics of technological changes, new and better ideas keep on emerging. Therefore, there is need for continuous improvement of the public procurement and disposal systems through research and development.

One of the biggest challenges that face procurement of commonly used items is the rapid and erratic change in prices due to inflation. As a result of this, there is need to establish a reliable and realistic prevailing market prices of commonly used items that the Corporation requires from time to time. This can only be realized through effective market surveys that can inform appropriate decision making by the Tender committees.

5.2.2 OBJECTIVE

The objective of the consultancy is to prepare a comprehensive market survey report to enable the Corporation achieve value for money by procuring commonly used Materials/Items/Services at market prices.

5.2.3 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The consultancy will involve all the commonly used items by Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation. The exercise will include but not limited to the following:

- a) Have a standardized generic descriptions and specifications for commonly used items;
- b) Development of data collection instruments for the compilation of market price information;
- c) Have a comprehensive list of commonly used items which will be included in the database;
- d) Collect market price data on the comprehensive list of commonly used items identified in "c" above;
- e) Produce a hard and soft copy of comprehensive market survey report/price reference

guide;

f) The consultant is expected to give prices for items to be procured by the client which are not in the comprehensive market survey report as when required and continually update the comprehensive list as and when new items are requisitioned for.

5.2.4 EXPECTED OUTPUTS/DELIVERABLES

The consultant is expected to prepare a comprehensive Market Survey Report/Market Reference Guidedetailing the list of commonly used items and their indicative prices both for the Headquarters and Regions.

5.2.5 **REPORTING REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall be required to submit a report on the 15th day of the ensuing quarter. The report is to be submitted on quarterly basis as agreed by the client based on 24 months contract period.

5.3 THE FIRM, KEY PERSONNEL

The minimum qualification for the key staff shall be as follows:-

The Consultancy Firm

- > The consultancy firm shall be a firm registered under the Companies' Act and is Limited.
- The consultancy firm should have undertaken a similar Market Survey for at least 3 reputable Government parastatals or ministries, or reputable private sector organizations.
- Letters of recommendation containing contract details of key communication personnel for works stated above must be attached for verification and authentication.

Key staff to undertake this assignment shall include:

1. Team leader – 1No.

The minimum required experience of the team leader /lead consultant shall be:

- Degree from a recognized university.
- 10 years' experience in research or development communication. (Please attach relevant certificates and CV)

2. Communication consultant (s) – 1No.

The minimum required experience of the Assisting Consultant shall be:

- > A Bachelor's degree in communication from a recognized university.
- 5 years' experience in research or development communication. (Please attach relevant certificates and CV)

Please note:-

- Specific role of each of the staff members as regards to this assignment must be stated in the Curriculum Vitae or attached before or after the Curriculum Vitae. Each staff proposed for the assignment must have signed the C.V. and the same be countersigned by the firm's representative.
- Working knowledge of English and Kiswahili is required.

5.4 **RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONSULTANT**

The Consultant shall be responsible for all his office and living accommodation, transportation, equipment, secretarial services, investigation, telephones, postage and everything else necessary for the satisfactory execution and completion of the services. The Consultant may however carry out certain assignment within the premises of Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation but must receive prior approval of the Client. The Consultant will closely work with Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation

5.5 FACILITIES TO BE PROVIDED BY RURAL ELECTRIFICATION AND RENEWABLE ENERGY CORPORATION

Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation shall provide the Consultant with all the data and reports in its possession and that it may deem safe to provide, that the Consultant may need to assist them in carrying out these duties.

5.6 **DURATION**

The Assignment is for a period of three (3) months each, four times a year from the date of issuance of the order to commence till the submission of the final reports during the contract period. The Consultant shall be required to submit a report on the 15th day of the ensuing quarter. The report is to be submitted on quarterly basis as agreed by the client based on 24 months contract period.

All the information generated shall remain the property of Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation and cannot be used for any other purposeunless with authority from Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation.

5.7 COPYRIGHT OF THE REPORT

The copyright (ownership) of the reports/documents at the end of the consultancy contract will be vested in the CEO, Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation.

5.8 Materials and Services are as detailed here below

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001001	15KVA,11/0.25KV Transformer	2001057	Spiral (16mm) x 100
1001002	25KVA,11/0.25KV Transformer	2001058	Spiral (18mm) x 100
1001003	50KVA,11/0.433KV Transformer	2001061	Pad, Note Ruled Loose Leaf A4 x 100
1001004	100KVA, 11/0.433KV Transformer	2001062	Paper Punch, DP900
1001005	25KVA,33/0.25KV Transformer	2001063	Paper Punch, medium
1001006	50KVA33/0.433KV Transformer	2001064	Sticker – Glued medium- yellow x 50
1001007	100KVA, 33/0.433KV Transformer	2001065	Urgent stickers 100/PK
1001008	200KVA,33/0.433KV Transformer	2001066	Very Urgent Stickers 100/PK
1001009	200KVA,11/0.433KV Transformer	2001067	Wallet, pocket folder manila standard si
1001011	Surge Diverter 11kv	2001068	File Dividers, A4
1001012	Surge Diverter 33 kv	2001069	Staple Remover
1001013	Cut Out 60/80A L. V. Single	2001070	Stapler, Medium
1001014	Cut Out 60/80A L. V. Double	2001071	Stapler Giant
1001015	Fuse Link Cartridge 60A	2001072	Staple Pins 24/60
1001016	Circuit Breaker Pole Mounted 15KVA	2001073	Staple Pins 50/60
1001017	Circuit Breaker Pole Mounted 25KVA	2001074	PRE PRINTED LETTER HEADS 500/PACK
1001018	Circuit Breaker Pole Mounted 50KVA	2001075	Plastic rulers
1001019	Circuit Breaker Pole Mounted 100KVA	2001081	TONER HP 05 A FOR HP PRINTER 2055 DN
1001020	Circuit Breaker Pole Mounted 200KVA	2001091	POWER EXTENSTION CABLE 4 WAY
1001021	Expulsion Fuse Element 5A Button Head 11	2001092	TONER HP 15 A
1001022	Expulsion Fuse Element 15A 11kv	2001093	TONER HP 53A

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001023	Expulsion Fuse Element 10A 11kv	2001094	YELLOW STICKERS MEDIUM 100/PK
1001024	Expulsion Fuse Element 5A Button Head 33	2001096	YELLOW STICKER LARGE 5 X 3
1001025	Expulsion Fuse Element 15A 33kv	2001097	ENVELOPES B4
1001026	Expulsion Fuse Element 10A 33kv	2001098	ENVELOPES A4
1001027	Expulsion Fuse Mounting 11kv	2001099	ENVELOPES A 5 BIBLE SIZE
1001028	Expulsion Fuse Mounting 33kv	2001100	WAY LEAVES CONSENT FORM
1001029	Isolator Solid Link 33kv	2001101	RUBBER STAMP SELF INKING
1001030	Isolator Solid Link 11kv	2001102	RUBBER STAMP INK
1001031	Isolator Air Break Switches 33kv	2001121	ENVELOPE WHITE DUPLEX BANKERS
1001032	Isolator Air Break Switches 11kv	2001122	CONFIDENTIAL STICKERS 100/PKT
1001033	OVERHEAD FUSE CARRIER 400A	2001123	MASKING TAPE
1001034	11KV Expulsion Fuse C/W Holder	2001131	TONER NASHUATEC MP 2510
1001035	33KV Expulsion Fuse C/W Holder	2001142	BANTEX FOLDER
1001036	FUSE-LINK WEDGE 100A HRC (JPU)	2001143	PRE PRINTED LETTER HEADS
			500/PACK - CEO
1001037	FUSE-LINK WEDGE 125A HRC (JPU)	2001151	CLAIM BOOK A4 3 PIT NCR
1001040	FUSE-LINK WEDGE 63A HRC (JPU)L	2001152	MILEAGE ACCOUNTING A4 3 PIT NCR
1001041	Wood Pole 10m	2001153	CASH ADVANCE FORM A4 3 PIT NCR
1001042	Wood Pole 11m	2001154	CHEQUE PAYMENT 9.5 X 11, 2PIT NCR
1001043	Wood Pole 12m	2001155	RECEIPT LEAVES PERFORATED 9.5 X 11, 2PIT
1001044	Wood Pole 14m	2001156	REQUISITION & ISSUE VOUCHERS A5 3PRT NCR
1001045	Insulation Tape Black	2001158	HP TONER Q6001 A CYAN
1001046	Insulation Tape Red	2001159	HP TONER Q 6002 A YELLOW
1001047	Insulation Tape Yellow	2001160	HP TONER Q 6003 A MAGENTA
1001048	Insulation Tape Blue	2001161	HP TONER CB540 A BLACK
1001049	Insulator Shackle LV	2001162	HP TONER CB541 A CYAN
1001050	Insulator 11kv Stay Insulator	2001163	HP TONER CB542 A YELLOW
1001051	Insulator 33kv Stay Insulator	2001164	HP TONER CB543 A MAGENTA
1001052	Insulator 11kv Tension Composite	2001165	HP TONER Q6000 A BLACK
1001053	Insulator 33kv Tension Composite	2001171	.A5 FILE DIVIDERS
1001054	Insulator Pin Composite Insulator 33kv	2001173	HP BLACK CARTRIDGE No. 130
1001055	Insulator Pin Composite Insulator11kv	2001174	HP BLACK CARTRIDGE No. 134
1001056	Insulator Shackle LV	2001175	HP OFFICE JET 88 N BLACK
1001057	L. V. Stay Insulator	2001182	TOP LEVEL SUSPENSION FILE
1001058	Conductor 50mm2 AA HD Bare	2001183	TONER HP 53A FOR P2015DN
1001059	Conductor 75mm2 ACSR Conductor Bare	2001201	HP OFFICE JET 88 C - CYAN
1001060	Conductor 50mm2 AA.SD PVC	2001202	HP OFFICE JET 88 Y - YELLOW
1001062	Cable 25mm2 4/C Aluminium Cable	2001203	HP OFFICE JET 88 M- MAGENTA
1001063	Cable 16mm2 S/C Concentric AL Pvc cable	2001211	NASHUATEC COPIER TONER MP2510/3010
1001064	Cable 50mm2 S/C Cu Cable	2001222	A4 FILE SEPARATORS
1001065	Cable Guard 11/2"x6'	2001231	EMBEDED FILE DIVIDERS10 'S
1001066	Stay Block 3/4" Concrete	2001237	RECEIPT BOOK CARBONATED
1001067	Stay Block 1/2" Concrete	2001237	HP CATRIDGE 940 BLACK
1001068	Stay Rod 6x1/2"	2001242	HP CATRIDGE 940 CYAN
1001069	Stay Rod 8x3/4"	2001243	HP CATRIDGE 940 YELLOW
1001009	Stay Wire 7/8	2001243	HP CATRIDGE 940 MAGENTA
1001070	Stay Wire 7/14	2001244	TENDER SOFT TISSUES (100 SHEETS 2PLY)
1001072	Stay Wire 4/8	2001248	JOURNAL VOUCHER, A4, 2 PART CARBONATED
1001073	Barbed wire	2001251	AUDIT PAYMENT VOUCHER BOOKS
1001074	Binding wire No. 9 Bare	2001252	STOCK TAKE CARDS

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001075	Cross-arm steel (L1650x70x70mm)11kv	2001262	HP TONER CC 364A- PRINTER HP 4015x
1001076	Cross-arm steel 1650x125x75mm 11kv	2001263	TRANSPORT MILEAGE RETURN BKS A4, 4PRT
1001077	Cross-arm Steel 33kv 2400x100x75x9.5mm	2001264	FUEL & OIL ISSUES RECORD CARDS A4 MANILL
1001078	Cross Member Channel Fuse/Solid link	2001271	TONER HPCE285A
1001079	Cross Member Channel L.V Fuse Bar	2001291	STORES TRANSACTION FORM
1001080	Cross Member Channel Steady Bar	2001292	GATE PASS
1001081	Cross Member Transformer Platform Up To	2001301	HP 507 -BLACK CE400A
1001082	LV Shackle Strap	2001302	HP CE401A
1001083	Terminating Strap Flat 508mm(20") Double	2001303	HP CE402A
1001084	Tie strap angle 33 kv	2001305	HP CE503A
1001085	Terminating Strap Flat 250x75x10mm	2001321	erasers Staedtler
1001086	Tie strap angle 11kv	2001322	HP CE 250A
1001087	Tie strap flat 11kv	2001323	HP CE251A
1001088	Bolt and Nut (Brass) 3/8"x1"	2001324	HP CE252A
1001089	Nail Clout 1"	2001325	HP CE253A
1001090	Nail 2"	2001331	HP 78A TONER
1001091	Eye nut M20	2001344	HP CF280A
1001092	Bolt and Nut (4 1/2"x5/8")	2001345	HP305A
1001093	Bolt and Nut (9"x5/8")	2001351	HP CE410A
1001094	Bolt and Nut 11"x5/8"	2001352	HP CE411A Cyan
1001095	Bolt and Nut (13""x5/8")	2001353	HP CE412A Magenta
1001096	Bolt and Nut M20 x 40mm (3/4"x11/2")	2001354	HP CE413A Yellow
1001097	Bolt and Nut M20 x 280mm (3/4"x11")	2001362	HP 507 BLACK
1001098	Bolt and Nut M20 x 280mm (3/4"x14")	2001363	HP 507 CYAN
1001099	Bolt and Nut Double(3/4"x22")	2001364	HP 507 MAGENTA
1001100	Eye Bolt and Nut M20x600(3/4"x12")H.D Ga	2001365	HP 507 YELLOW
1001101	Eye Bolt and Nut M20x300(3/4"x14")H.D Ga	2001366	HP 950 XL BLACK
1001103	Earth Slat PVC	2001367	HP 951 XL CYAN
1001104	LV Hatari Slab	2001368	HP 951 XL MAGENTA
1001105	Bracket Saddle Steel 247x102x76	2001369	HP 951 XL YELLOW
1001106	Bracket Top Pole 33kV Delta Const.	2001370	HP CE390/90A
1001107	Connector Lug Bimetal (AL/CU) 70mm2	2001381	HP CF280A/80A
1001108	Connector Lug (AL/CU) 100mm2	2001391	Toner Tk - 6705
1001109	Adaptor Ball Clevis M16	2001392	Toner Tk - 6305
1001110	Adaptor Socket Tongue, Double Hole	2001402	Ce Hp 403a
1001111	D-Iron	2001411	Kyocera Toner Tk 590 Black
1001112	Cover Pole Caps	2001412	Kyocera Toner Tk 590 Yellow
1001113	PME Plate	2001413	Kyocera Toner Tk 590 Magenta
1001114	Substation Number plate	2001414	Kyocera Toner Tk 590 Cyan
1001115	Connector P.G Clamp 75mm2-150mm2	2001415	Kyocera Toner Tk 675 Copier Km 2560
1001116	Clamp Dead End 25-75mm2	2001416	KYOCERA TONER TK 6705 COPIER TA 8000i
1001117	Clamp suspension Clevis Ended Hook 75-15	2001417	KYOCERA TONER TK 6305 COPIER KM 5500i
1001118	Clamp Dead End 100mm2-150mm2	2001424	STAPLE PINS 23/15H
1001119	Hooks Ball Ended	2001436	TONER TK 590 Y-YELLOW
1001120	Copper Earth Rod 5'x1/2" c/w clamp	2001437	TONER TK 590 C-BLUE
1001121	Earth stock	2001441	BOX FILE PVC A4 2" LEVER ARCH FILE PP
1001122	Connector Line Tap 50mm2 (AL)	2001452	DELIVERY BOOK
1001123	Connector Line Tap 100mm2 (AL)	2001471	CANON TONER EXV 34 - BLACK
1001124	Turn buckle D/Screw 5/8"x10"	2001472	CANON TONER EXV 34 - CYAN
1001125	Pole No. Plate	2001473	CANON TONER EXV 34 - MAGENTA

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001126	Clamp Dead End 75mm2-150mm2	2001474	CANON TONER EXV 34 - YELLOW
1001127	Turn buckle D\Screw 3/4"x12"	2001481	HP CE255A
1001131	DANGER/HATARI PLATES	2001483	HP305A CE411A
1001141	ADAPTER SOCKET TONGUE SINGLE HOLE M16	2001484	HP305A CE412A
1001142	SCREW COACH M12x75(3"x1/2")GALV.	2001485	HP305A CE413A
1001144	STAY BLOCK 7/8"	2001492	TONER MPC 4501 (BLACK)
1001145	COPPER EARTH ROD 7"x5/8" C/W CLAMP	2001493	TONER MPC 4501 (YELLOW)
1001146	CONNECTOR LIVE LINE TAP 50MM2	2001494	TONER MPC 4501 (MANGENTA)
1001147	BOLT & NUT 1/2"x5")H/D GAL	2001495	TONER MPC 4501 (CYAN)
1001148	CABLE 300MM2 S/C AL PVC 0.6/1KV	2001501	A1 PAPER ROLL T1300PLOTTER
1001150		2001502	61.4CM*50M*2" Toner C9370A-Photo Black
1001150	BOLT & NUT 7"X5/8" H/D GALV.	2001502	
1001151	BOLT RAWL M12x120MM(4 1/2"x1/2")	2001503	Toner C9371A-Cyan
1001152	Concrete Poles Size 10m	2001504	Toner C9372A-Magenta
1001153	Concrete Poles Size 11m	2001505	Toner C9373A-Yellow
1001154	Concrete Poles Size 12m	2001506	Toner C9374A-Grey
1001155	CABLE GUARD (3"X7')	2001507	Toner C9403A-Matte Black
1001158	Bolt and Nut M16 X 50mm (2" X 5/8")	2001508	Toner HP CE505A
1001161	CABLE GUARD (2"x7')	2001511	TONER HP CF226A/26A
1001170	CONNECTING BAR H-POLE SECTION	2001512	TONER HP 312A/CF380A BLACK
1001172	U-Steel Channel 3800*100*75*9.5mm	2001513	TONER HP 312A/CF381A CYAN
1001187	Transformer Insulation meter	2001514	TONER HP 312A/CF382A YELLOW
1001188	Portable Earthing Equipment	2001515	TONER HP 312A/CF383A MAGENTA
1001191	STEADY BAR 11KV FOR CONCRETE POLES	2001516	KYOCERA TONER TK7105 TA 3010i
1001195	Incremental Borer	2001521	KYOCERA TONER TK7105 TA 3010i
1001215	Power Supply	2001531	HP 72 130ml GREY Ink Catridge
1001221	185 MM2 3/C 33KV CABLE	2001532	HP 72 130ml PHOTO BLACK Ink Catridge
1001222	95MM2 3/C 11KV CABLE	2001533	HP 72 130ml MAGENTA Ink Catridge
1001224	Spectroradiometer	2001534	HP 72 130ml CYAN Ink Catridge
1001231	DANGER/HATARI PLATE	2001535	HP 72 130ml YELLOW Ink Catridge
1001241	CONNECTOR LUG TINNED CU 70mm2	2001536	HP 72 130ml MATTE BLACK Ink Catridge
1001242	Earth resistance meter - (Earth Tester /	2001537	HP CF 226A/26A
1001246	Digital Clamp-On Meter	2001539	HP 312 CF 380A BLACK
1001247	Phase Rotation Tester	2001540	HP 312 CF 381A CYAN
1001250	Safety Belts	2001541	HP 312 CF 382A YELLOW
1001251	DENSO TAPE	2001543	HP 312 CF 383A MAGENTA
1001253	Helmet	2001544	HP 304A CC530 BLACK
1001254	Industrial Safety Boots	2001545	HP 304A CC531 CYAN
1001255	Dust Coat	2001546	HP 304A CC532 YELLOW
1001256	Rea Reflector Jackets (High Visibility C	2001548	HP 304A CC533 MAGENTA
1001257	Rain Coat	2001551	KYOCERA TK-665
1001258	Standard Tool Box	2001561	SPIRAL (38MM)
1001259	Overall	2001562	OFFICE GLUE -LIQUID
1001260	Aluminum Ladder Extension	2001563	CARBON PAPER
1001261	REAR TYRE FOR BELL 220 LOGGER	2001564	STAMP PAD
1001262	REAR TUBE FOR BELL 220 LOGGER	2001565	PAPER CLIPS 28MM
1001263	REAR RIM FOR BELL 220 LOGGER	2001586	Bantex Folders 3420
1001264	Climbing Iron For Wooden Poles	2001609	Branded Pencils/Pen
1001265	Climbing Irons For Concrete Poles	2001610	Writing Pads
1001272	Test Bench Spare Part	2001621	Transfer Belt
1001281	STEADY BAR U-CLAMP (FOR CONCRETE	2001631	Shredder
-	POLES)		

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001282	TENSION PLATE (CONCRETE POLES)	2001641	KYOCERA TK 5280Y - YELLOW
1001284	120mm sq. 4/AC AL service cable	2001642	KYOCERA TK 5280K - BLACK
1001351	LV STAY BRACKETS FOR 10M CONCRETE POLES	2001643	KYOCERA TK 5280M - MAGENTA
1001352	U - BOLT FOR 10M CONCRETE POLE	2001644	KYOCERA TK 5280 C - CYAN
1001356	STAY BRACKETS FOR 12M CONCRETE POLES	2001651	HP CF281A/81A
1001357	TENSION PLATE FOR 12M CONCRETE POLE	2001652	Epison C13S015384BA
1001358	U - CLAMP FOR 11M CONCRETE POLE	2001661	LIQUID GEL PEN (BLUE)
1001359	U - CLAMP FOR 12M CONCRETE POLE	2001662	LIQUID GEL PEN (BLACK)
1001361	TENSION PLATE FOR 11M CONCRETE POLE	2001671	KYOCERA TK 6345
1001363	DIGITAL MULTIMETER (RMS)	2001673	KYOCERA TK 6115
1001368	ENERGY LOGGER	2001675	KYOCERA TK 5370 Black
1001370	BATTERY CAPACITY TESTER	2001676	KYOCERA TK 5370 Yellow
1001374	INSULATION RESISTANCE TESTER	2001677	KYOCERA TK 5370 Cyan
1001383	Automatic Voltage Regulator (AVR)	2001678	KYOCERA TK 5370 Magenta
1001384	TERMINATION KIT 11KV OUT DOOR	2001679	Complimentary slips (F.Color conqueror)
1001385	TERMINATION KIT 33KV OUT DOOR	2001681	Paper Binder Clips (Bulldogs) 19mm
1001388	11KV CROSS ARM FOR CONCRETE POLES	2001682	Paper Binder Clips (Bulldogs) 25mm
1001392	TREE CALIPER 500-600	2001683	Paper Binder Clips (Bulldogs) 32mm
1001393	HP TONER FOR FAX NO. 21	2001684	Paper Binder Clips (Bulldogs) 41mm
1001394	HP TONER FOR FAX NO. 22	2001685	Paper Binder Clips (Bulldogs) 51mm
1001413	U-BOLT 33C20	2001686	STAPLE PINS 23/10H
1001434	EARTH RESISTANCE TESTER	2001688	Cross-Cut Shredder (15-20 A4 Sheets)
1001442	16 KVA 19/0.48 KV SWER DIST. TRANSFORMER	2001689	COLOURED PAPER CLIPS 33MM
1001443	25 KVA 33/0.19 KV SWER DIST. TRANSFORMER	2001690	COLOURED PAPER CLIPS 50MM
1001453	Rugged Mobile GNNS Mappers	2001691	COLOURED PAPER CLIPS 78MM
1001481	BRASS DIE (STAMP FOR WOODEN POLES)	2001692	Correctional Pen
1001521	BERBED WIRE	3001011	Toner HP CC364A
1001523	Maintenance kit MK-6305A	3001036	Dot Matrix Printer
1001531	SINGLE PHASE STATIC METER -ACTIVE ENERGY	3001037	Tablets & Mobile Devices
1001532	WHOLE CURRENT STATIC METERS DIRECT ENERG	3001039	IP Phone
1001537	Single Phase Prepaid Meter	3001046	Router
1001543	2.5MVA 11/33KV STEP UP TRANSFORMER	3001047	Access Point
1001545	INSULATOR HORIZONTAL CLAMP 66KV	3001048	WLAN Controller
1001547	BOLT & NUT 13 X 3/4 HD GALV.	3001056	Surveillance Camera
1001548	ALUMINIUM FLAT ARMOUR TAPE 6.35X0.76	3001057	Access Control
1001550	HOOK BALL ENDED 40KN	3001077	Keyboard
1001552	INSULATOR GLASS DISK 70KN	3001078	Mouse
1001554	EYE BOLT & NUT 14X3/4 HOT DIP GALV	3001080	Maintenance Kit MK 665 for copier TA 820
1001555	BOLT & NUT M20X350MM(14 X 3/4) HD GALV.	3001082	Maintenance Kit MK 6705 for copier KM 80
1001557	CROSS-ARM STEEL33KV L7'10"X2"	3001083	Maintenance Kit MK 6305 for copier TA 55
1001559	BOLT & NUT M20X175MM(7X3/4)	3001084	Maintenance Kit MK 590 for copier FSC 20
1001560	BOLT & NUT (18 X 3/4) H/D GALV.	3001085	Maintenance Kit MK 7105 for copier TA 30
1001562	PERFORMED GUY GRIP 19/10 SWG ST	3001086	Maintenance Kit
1001563	EYE BOLT & NUT M20X600MM (24X3/4)	3001087	Rollers
1001566	INSULATOR DOUBLE PERMALI 33KV	3001089	Fuser Kit Kyocera
1001568	STAY ROD 9'X1"	3001090	Laptop Battery

1001571 0 1001575 H 1001577 S 1001583 T 1001595 T 1001601 T 1001602 T 1001642 T 1001644 Z 1001654 C 1001655 H 1001656 H 1001659 H	STAY WIRE 19/10 CONDUCTOR 150MM2 ACSR EYE NUT M20(3/4") SWITCHING DISCONNECTOR 66KV,1250A,31.5KA TYRE SOLID MAGNUM 8.15-15/28X9-15 STD. Tyre Normal 6.50-10. Forklift Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS Channel- 100x50x(10mm)	3001091 3001092 3001093 3001094 3001095 3001095 3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107 3001109	Laptop Hard Disk Laptop Motherboard Laptop Fan Laptop Charger/Adapter Laptop Screen Laptop Keyboard Laptop Ram Computer PSU
1001575 H 1001577 S 1001583 T 1001595 T 1001601 T 1001602 T 1001642 T 1001644 T 1001654 T 1001655 T 1001656 H 1001659 H	EYE NUT M20(3/4") SWITCHING DISCONNECTOR 66KV,1250A,31.5KA TYRE SOLID MAGNUM 8.15-15/28X9-15 STD. Tyre Normal 6.50-10. Forklift Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001093 3001094 3001095 3001096 3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107	Laptop Fan Laptop Charger/Adapter Laptop Screen Laptop Keyboard Laptop Ram Computer PSU
1001577 S 1001583 T 1001595 T 1001601 T 1001602 T 1001642 T 1001644 T 1001654 T 1001655 T 1001645 T 1001656 H 1001659 H	SWITCHING DISCONNECTOR 66KV,1250A,31.5KA TYRE SOLID MAGNUM 8.15-15/28X9-15 STD. Tyre Normal 6.50-10. Forklift Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001094 3001095 3001096 3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107	Laptop Charger/Adapter Laptop Screen Laptop Keyboard Laptop Ram Computer PSU
6 1001583 7 1001595 7 1001601 7 1001602 7 1001642 7 1001644 2 1001654 2 1001655 1 1001656 1 1001656 1 1001659 1	66KV,1250A,31.5KA TYRE SOLID MAGNUM 8.15-15/28X9-15 STD. Tyre Normal 6.50-10. Forklift Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001095 3001096 3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107	Laptop Screen Laptop Keyboard Laptop Ram Computer PSU
1001595 1 1001601 1 1001602 1 1001642 1 1001644 2 1001645 2 1001654 1 1001654 1	STD. Tyre Normal 6.50-10. Forklift Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001096 3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107	Laptop Keyboard Laptop Ram Computer PSU
1001601 1 1001602 1 1001642 1 1001644 2 1001645 2 1001654 0 1001656 H 1001659 H	Tyre Front For Bell 225a Logger Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001097 3001101 3001102 3001107	Laptop Ram Computer PSU
1001602 1 1001642 1 1001644 2 1001645 2 1001654 0 1001656 1 1001659 1	Tyre Rear For Bell 225a Logger Tube 15 X 26 Front 20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	300110130011023001107	Computer PSU
1001642 1 1001644 2 1001645 2 1001654 0 1001656 H 1001659 H	Tube 15 X 26 Front20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001102 3001107	-
1001644 2 1001645 2 1001654 0 1001656 H 1001659 H	20mmx50mm BOLTS AND NUTS 20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS	3001107	DAM
1001645 2 1001654 0 1001656 H 1001659 H	20mmx75mm BOLTS AND NUTS		RAM
1001654 0 1001656 H 1001659 H		2001100	LC-LC fiber patch cord
1001656 H 1001659 H	Channel- 100x50x(10mm)	5001109	SFP Transceiver
1001659 H		3001123	1.5Kva/650Va Ups Battery
	Earth Stock- Angle 40x40x5x1000mmlg	3001126	1.5KVA Smart UPS
1001660	Half Clip	3001133	Datacenter UPS
1001000	T-Brackets	3001135	Antivirus Sofware
1001666 U	U-Channels-380mm Long For Hp	3001138	Homer Licenses
1001668 0	Composite Insulator-Suspension/Tension 6	3001138	Digsilent licenses
1001674 I	Insulator Mounting Clamp 66kv(Vertical T	3001138	Matlab Licenses
1001679 4	48-Core Optical Ground Wire (Opgw)	3001151	Power Cables
	Binding Wire No.9 Bare	3001161	Access control unit
1001681 \$	STAY ROD 6x5/8"	3001172	Copper SFPS
1001683 (Cross Plate 330x70x18(Mm)	3001173	Fibre Long Distance SFPs(80km)
1001685 0	Clamp Suspension Clevis Ended Hook 10 66	3001174	Fibre Patch cords(3 mtrs)
	Adaptor Socket Tongue, Double Hole 66kv	3001175	Copper Patch cords(3 mtrs)
	Concrete Poles 14m	3001176	HD Box Camera 1080P P-Iris
	Concrete Poles 15m	3001177	SMARTNET 8X5XNBD HD Box IP Camera
1001702 H	Earth Rod Connector Clamp Copper 5/8	3001178	Audio video cable for 35XX 6K and 7K
1001711	Transformer 315kva,0.415/11KV	3001179	Megapixel P-Iris Lens 3.1-8mm
1001713	Transformer 100kva, 0.415/33kv	3001180	Cisco Dome IP Camera, Indoor
1001721 H	Front Forklift Tyre 8.15 X 15	3001181	Cisco Dome IP Camera,outdoor
1001724 H	Rear Forklift Tyre 6.5 X 10	3001182	VR Conduit Base for 3520 and 6020
1001742 3	33kv Autorecloser	3001183	Smoked Vandal Resistant Dome
1001743 3	33kv Current Transformers	3001184	Cisco IP Phone 8841 SNTC-8X5XNBD
	33kv Voltage Transformer	3001185	Cisco IP Phone 8861 SNTC-8X5XNBD
	11kv Circuit Breaker	3001186	88000 Series Audio KEM,28 Button
	11kv Autorecloser	3001187	double footstand Cisco IP phone 8800
	11kv Current Transformer	3001188	Ipphone power transformer 89/9900
	11kv Voltage Transformer	3001190	Surface Pen
	11kv Neutral Current Transformer	3001191	Surface Keyboard
	33kv Neutral Current Transformer	3001192	Carrying Case sleeve
	33kv Neutral Voltage Transformer	3001193	Surface Mouse
	Alluminium Flat Armour Tape 6.35 X 0.76	3001194	Mobile category
	Power Saw Husqvarna 365	3001196	Router 4000 series
	Tubes C/W Flap For Forklift Tyres Size 9	3001100	Switches 3800 series
	Tubes C/W Flap For Logger Tyres Size 18.	3001201	Switches 9000 series
	Tubes C/W Flap For Logger Tyres Size 6.5	3001202	Fiber Patch codes
	Tubes C/W Flap For Logger - 8.15 X 15	3001222	Mobile device - iOS,128GB, 2 GB
	Fork Lift Tyre 8.15 X 15 Ply Rating 12	3001222 3001228	Mobile Device-Windows OS,128GB,8GB
	Forklift Tyre Size 9 X 20 Ply Rating 12	3001228	Mobile Device-Android OS, 32GB, 3 GB
	Opgw Inter/Suspension Fittings	3001229	Environmental Monitoring sys. serverroom
	Opgw Inter/Suspension Fittings Opgw Section/Tension Fittings(Set)	3001230	UTP Cable; siemon, giganet or dlink cat

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001807	Opgw Earthing Clamp	3001245	Cable connectors
1001809	Opgw Joint Box	3001249	HP Catrige 477 black
1001811	Opgw Vibration Dampers	3001251	HP 477 Yellow
1001814	Opgw Vibration Excess Cable Rack	3001252	HP 477 Cyan
1001822	178-203 Heavy Duty Clamp Gca 08	3001253	HP 477 Mangenta
1001823	178-203 Heavy Duty Clamp Rl 08	3001263	HP 72 Grey - PhotoBlack Printhead(T1300)
1001824	203-229 Heavy Duty Clamp Ca 09	3001264	HP 72 Magenta - Cyan Printhead(T1300)
1001825	203-229 Heavy Duty Clamp Deg 09	3001265	HP 72 MatteBlack -Yellow Printhead(T1300
1001827	203-229 Heavy Duty Clamp Gca 09	3001268	Trunking: PVC truck metal trunking
1001829	229-254 Heavy Duty Clamp Ca 10	3001269	AMC for network equipment cable manager
1001831	229-254 Heavy Duty Clamp Deg 10	3001270	Macbook
1001832	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp Ca 11	3001271	Imac
1001852	178-203 Heavy Duty Clamp Ca 08	3001282	Multi-functional Printers
1001857	Heavy Duty Clamp 178-203 RL 08	3001292	FlashStorage Battery Module
1001859	Heavy Duty Clamp 203-229 CA 09	3001293	Server hardware
1001861	Heavy Duty Clamp 203-229 GCA 09	3001302	SAN48B-5 12 port 16Gbps
1001864	Heavy Duty Clamp 203-229 RL 09	3001312	Cable Ladders and Trays
1001865	Heavy Duty Clamp 229-254 CA 10	3001313	Split Panel
1001867	Heavy Duty Clamp 229-254 GCA 10	3001314	LV Board
1001870	Heavy Duty Clamp 229-254 DEG 10	3001321	Hyperconverged Infrastructure (HCI)
1001871	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp CA 11	3001323	Unified Communication Manager - Call Man
1001872	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp DEG 10	3001324	UTM Device
1001873	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp DEG 11	3001351	IP Phone Expansion Slot Module
1001874	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp GCA 11	3001362	UPS Batteries
1001875	254-279 Heavy Duty Clamp RL 10	3001362	UPS Batteries (DR UPS)
1001876	Steel Cross Arm 4200 x 100 x 70 x 9.5 mm	3001362	UPS Batteries(HQ UPS)
1001877	Steel Cross Arm 5200 x 100 x 70 x 9.5 mm	3001371	Network Attached Storage
1001878	Steel Cross Arm 4300 x 100 x 70 x 9.5 mm	3001372	Microsoft Surface Pro
1001880	Earth Rod Clamp 5/8"	3001373	Rugged Mobile Device / Tablet
1001881	L.V.Clamp Bracket 1225 x 50 x 50 x 6mm	3001381	Air Filter 900*260*47 G4
1001882	M16 X 750-U Bolt & Nut for LV Bracket	3001393	Compressor ANB33FQFMT
1001883	Fabricated Saddle Clamp-66KV-Concrete Po	3001397	R410 Gas Cylinder
1001884	Cross Arm 2500 x 100 x 75 x 9.5 mm	3001398	AC side/vent grill
1001885	Heavy Duty Clamp 229-254 RL 10	3001399	Conver. Kit Inver PSD0 PSDI 1113 BG2,4,5
1001886	Cross Arm 1770 x 100 x 75 x 9.5 MM	4001243	Branded Tshirts/Polo shirts/Shirts/Blous
1001887	Heavy Duty Clamp 178-203 CA 08	4001244	Branded Bags
1001888	Heavy Duty Clamp 178-203 GCA 08	4001245	Branded Notebook
1001889	Heavy Duty Clamp 203-229 DEG 09	4001255	Reflector Jackets
1001890	Heavy Duty Clamp 203-229 GCA 09	4001260	Gloves
1001892	Heavy Duty Clamp 229-254 RL 09	4001266	Trophies
1001002	Horizontal Clamp	4001200	Newspapers
1001901	Intermediate Pole Clamp	4001270	Plaques
1001902	Section Stay Clamp	4001282	Purchase Of Isuzu TFS 86 D/Cab
1001903	Insulator Double Permali 66KV	4001309	Purchase Of Isuzu mu -X RF35 2.5L 4*4
1001912	Post Insulator 66KV	4001313	Office Chairs - Fabrique
1001913	Hook Ball Clevis 125KN	4001313	Executive Orthopaedic Chairs
1001925	Opgw Inter/Suspension Fitting Set	4001319	Motor Vehicle Fuel
1001925	Opgw Earthing Clamp	4001323	Refreshments & Meals
1001920	Opgw Vibration Access Cable Rack	4001333	Double Cab Pick Up 4*4 4.0 - 4.2
1001927	Double Suspension Sets Oxs-070	4001336	Single Cab Pick Up 4.0 - 4.2 Diesel
1001920	Double Tension Sets Ons-160	4001337	Double Cab Pick Up 4*4 , 2.0 - 2.5
1001929	Corona Coil Fyh-16	4001337	Single Cab Pick Up 4x4, 2.0 - 2.5 Diesel
1001933	Corona Coil Fyh-16	4001338	D Lighters 7watts, 240v
1001934	Fastening Clamp-Tower-Suspension Splint		D Lighters 3watts, 240v
1001933	rastening Clamp-rower-Suspension Splint	4001341	D Lighters Swatts, 2400

Material Code	Item Descriptions	Material Code	Item Descriptions
1001936	Fastening Clamp-Tower-Tension Splint	4001342	2d 3500k Ge Lighting 16watts, 240v
1001937	Down Lead Clamp For Tower Tgy 18-T	4001343	D Lighters Dura Greenh/Td-35 Ac 240v P20
1001938	Terminal Box Tjz 48	4001344	Energy Server Bulb 18watts 240 Screw Typ
1001940	Spiral Vibration Dampers Ftl 19	4001345	4 Feet Florescent Tube 18watts 240v
2001001	Book, Counter 2 Quire X 200 Pg	4001346	2 FEET FLORESCENT TUBE 18WATTS 240V
2001002	Book, Counter 3 Quire X 200pg	4001347	THORNLUX AC ELEC.BALLAST FOR FLORE. LAMP
2001003	Book, Counter 4 quire x 200pg	4001358	Medium back chair, adjust. lumbar support
2001004	Files, Spring (Globe Equivalent)	4001359	High back chair, inbuilt lumbar support
2001005	Files, Box Wide(Globe)	4001360	Executive Desk,Side Return, 2drawer Pede
2001006	Files, Box Pvc	4001361	Steel Cabinets - 4 Drawer
2001010	Bic Black Biro	4001362	Ortopedic Chair Fabric, Foam Cushion
2001011	Bic Blue Biro	4001364	Coffee Table, Scratch Proof &Under Shelf
2001012	Bic Red Biro	4001365	Secretarial Desk Lshaped,3drawer Pedest.
2001013	Pencil, HB Staedtler x 10	4001366	Reception Counter, 2tier Shelf,3drawer
2001014	Photo Copy Paper White A4 80Gsm	4001368	Half Glass Cabinet
2001016	Printing Paper A3 (297mm X420mm) 80gm	4001369	Board Room Chair ,Inbuilt Lumbar Support
2001019	White Out Fluid	4001370	Conference Table, Board Room
2001020	Pritty Glue Sticks	4001371	Meeting Table ,Oval
2001022	Rubber Band 8486	4001372	Aluminium Waste Bin With Side Pedal
2001023	Plastic Paper Basket	4001373	Wooden Office Desk With Pedestal
2001028	Cover, Plastic Transparences– Blue A4	4001374	Visitors Chairs
2001030	Cover, Plastic Transparences clear A4	4001375	Two Seater Link Chair
2001031	Cover, Embossed A4 (blue)	4001376	Three Seater Link Chair
2001032	Cover, Embossed A4 (green)	4001377	Half Glass Cabinet 5 Shelf
2001033	Cover, Embossed A4 (yellow	4001378	Four Way Workstation
2001034	Envelope, Khaki A5	4001379	Coat Hanger
2001035	Envelope, Khaki A4	4001381	Fire Resistance Safe 4 Drawer
2001036	Envelope, Khaki A3	4001471	Staff ID Larnyards
2001037	cheque size	4001482	Kyocera TK 6725
2001039	Document trays	4001485	HIAB tyres Size 11R#22.5
2001040	Pen, Cristal Medium (blue) x 50	4001486	Prime Mover Tyres Size 315/80R22.5
2001041	Pen, Cristal Medium (Red) x 50	4001522	Water Dispensers
2001042	Pen, Cristal Medum (black) of 50	4001524	Land Cruiser Prado 2701-1300cc Automatic
2001043	Pen, Highlighters – assorted x 10	4001525	Toyota Fortuner 2701-3000 Automatic
2001044	Marker Chisel Tip - Black x 12	4001526	Infrared Thermometer
2001045	Pen, Marker Chisel Tip - Blue x 10	4001527	SURGICAL MASK DISPOSABLE 3PLY Pkt Of 50
2001046	Marker Chisel Tip - Red x 12	4001528	Alcohol Based Hand Rub 500ml
2001047	Pen, Marker Chisel Tip - Red x 10	4001529	Alcohol Based Hand Rub 5Litres
2001051	Rubber bands assorted sizes and colours	4001555	Low Back Frabric Mesh Chair
2001053	Rulers, Plastic Transparent Clear	4001556	Plastic Waste Bin
2001054	Spiral (10mm) x100	4001558	Swivel chair
2001055	Spiral (12mm) x 100	4001559	Cantilever PU Leather Visitor
2001056	Spiral (14mm) x 100	4001562	Bell Telleloger

List of Services

Lisi 0j i			
Code	Service Description	Code	Service Description
10000	Annual Maintenance Cost DESKTOP	35134	Transformer Visual inspection
10001	Annual Maintenance Cost LAPTOPS	35135	Transformer Gasket change
10002	Annual Maintenance Cost PRINTERS	35136	Transformer Oil change
10003	Annual Maintenance Cost UPS	35137	Transformer Untanking/ Tanking
10004	Annual Maintenance Cost IPADS	35138	Transformer Painting of transformers ext
10005	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera KM 2560	35139	Transformer Testing
10006	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera TA 820I	35140	Installation of double crossarm - DXA
10007	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera TA 8000I	35141	Installation of Horizontal Structure 2 M
10008	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera TA 3010I	35142	Installation of Horizontal Structure 3 M
10009	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera TA 5500I	35143	Installation of 33KV U/G 185mm2 3 core c
10010	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera TA 55011	35144	Installation of LV Stay - Normal stay
10011	Annual Maintenance Cost For Kyocera FSC 2026	35145	Installation of LV Stay - Structure Pol
10012	Annual Maintenance Cost Sap Support Off-Site	35146	Professional fee for Tag designing
10013	Annual Maintenance Cost Sap Support On-Site	35147	Printing RFID Tags
10014	Annual Maintenance Cost Sap Support Basis	35148	Tagging office Consumables and Equipment
10015	Annual Maintenance Cost Air-Con	35149	Trasport for project tags installation
10016	Annual Maintenance Cost Fire Suppression	35150	Transformer Oven drying
10017	Annual Maintenance Cost Servers	35151	Transformer Complete Bushing and rod per
10018	Annual Maintenance Cost Netbackup Appliance	35152	Transformer Complete Bushing and rod per
10019	Annual Maintenance Cost Datacentre UPS	35153	Transformer Tank Repair
10020	Annual Maintenance Cost Software Support	35154	Transformer Rewinding of HV coil
10021	Annual Maintenance Cost Hardware Support	35155	Transformer Rewinding of LV coil
10022	Annual Maintenance of Installed Air Cond	35156	Transformer Replacement of Paper Insulat
10023	Transformer repairs 15KVA/11KV	35157	Transformer Re-insulation using paper sl
10024	Transformer repairs 25KVA/11KV	35158	Transformer Replacement of coil assembly
10025	Transformer repairs 50KVA/11KV	35159	Transformer Bracing of LV neutral
10026	Transformer repairs 100KVA/11KV	35160	Transformer Repair of Tap Changer
10027	Transformer repairs 200KVA/11KV	35161	All associated Transportation Cost
10028	Transformer repairs 15KVA/33KV	35170	Staff Remuneration for Tags Installation
10029	Transformer repairs 25KVA/33KV	35180	Installation of double crossarm intermed
10030	Transformer repairs 50KVA/33KV	35181	Installation of Horizontal Tension Struc
10031	Transformer repairs 100KVA/33KV	35182	Installation of Horizontal Tension Struc
10032	Transformer repairs 200KVA/33KV	35183	Installation of 33KV U/G 185mm2 XLPE 3 c
10033	repairs and Maintenance of Tx Test Bench	35184	Installation of LV Stay/ Structure Assem
10040	Annual Maintenance	35185	Installation of LV Stay/ Structure Assem
10050	SAP CLOUD PLATFORM SUBSCRIPTIONS	35186	Transformer Visual inspection
10060	Provision of O&M Services-Garissa 50MW	35187	Transformer Gasket change
15000	OUTSIDE CATERING SERVICES	35188	Transformer Oil change
20000	Cleaning Service (Per sq foot)	35189	Transformer Untanking/ Tanking
20010	H/Voltage Work Supervision fee	35190	Transformer Painting of transformers ext
25010	Hosted Dr Collocation Service	35191	Transformer Testing
25020	Consultancy Services (Update Of Rea Mas	35192	Transformer Oven drying
25021	Provision Of Training Services	35193	Transformer Complete Bushing and rod per
25025	Work Environment And Corruption Survey	35194	Transformer Complete Bushing and rod per
35000	H.T-Pole holes digging 6ft (11M poles)	35195	Transformer Tank Repair
35001	H.T-Pole dressing - 3-wire	35196	Transformer Rewinding of HV coil
35002	H.T-Pole erection (Wood) - 11M &12M	35197	Transformer Rewinding of LV coil
35003	H.T-Pole erection (Concrete) - 11 & 12M	35198	Transformer Replacement of Paper Insulat
35004	H.T-Pole Recovery (Wood) - 11M & 12M	35199	Transformer Re-insulation using paper sl

Code	Service Description	Code	Service Description
35005	H.T-Stay hole digging	35200	Transformer Replacement of coil assembly
35006	H.T-Stay making & dressing	35201	Transformer Bracing of LV neutral
35007	H.T-Flying staymaking and Installation	35202	Transformer Repair of Tap Changer
35008	H.T-Bush clearing/tree cutting per km	35203	All associated Transportation Cost
35009	H.T-Single Conductor Stringing per km	35330	Maintenance of existing 3kW wind turbine
35010	H.T-Single Conductor Recovery per km	35331	Servicing and integration of existing so
35011	H.T-Aerial Earth Installation per km	35332	L.T-Pole Recovery (Concrete)
35012	H.T-A/B switch installation	35333	H.T-Pole erection (Concrete) - 14 & 15M
35013	H.T-Auto reclosure installation	35334	H.T-Pole dressing - 1-wire
35014	H.T-Taplin Isolators/Fuse/ Installation	35335	H.T-Pole dressing - 2-wire
35015	H.T-Cable Jointing/Termination	35336	HT Cable laying per meter (33KV)
35016	H.T-Cable Laying	35337	LT pole dressing 4 wire
35017	L.T-Pole holes digging	35340	HT Stay Hole digging (ROCKY)
35018	L.T-Pole dressing	35350	OPGW Cable Testing
35019	L.T-Pole erection (Wood)	35351	Provision of Feasibility Studies service
35020	L.T-Pole erection (Concrete)	35352	Supply, Install, Test & Comm. of biogas
35020	L.T-Pole Recovery (Wood)	35360	General Preliminaries Substation works
35021	L.T-Stay holes digging	35361	Civil & Structural Works Substations
35022	L.T-Stay making & Dressing	35362	Substation & Electrical Works
35023	L.T-Flying stay making and Installation	35370	H.T-Stay hole digging (Rocky)
35024	L.T-Bush clearing/tree cutting per km	35370	H.T-Fly S/Str P/Hole digging-33Kv-Rocky
35025	L.T-Single Conductor stringing per km	35372	L.T-Flying S/str Pole hole digging-Socky
35020	L.T-Single Conductor Recovery per km	35372	L.T-Stay holes digging (Rocky)
35027	L.T-PME Earthing	35373	H.T-Fly S/str P/hole digging(11KV) Rocky
35028	SS-Dressing	50010	General cleaning of solar system
35030	SS-Mounting	50010	Cable laying per meter
35030	SS-Woulding SS-Earthing	50012	wall casing per meter
35032	SS-Commissioning	50012	System Earthing
35032	SS-Recover Tx, A/R, AVR etc to stores	50013	Installation of roof mounting structure
35033	SL-Single phase S/L	50015	Electrical wiring of one class
35035	SL-Three phase S/L	50015	Supply of Highmast Flood Lighting
35036	Sys.Comm-System commissioning > 4km HT	50020	Supply of Fighting
35037	Sys.Comm-System commissioning < 4km HT	50021	Provision of substation fencing services
35040	Line Route Survey	50030	Provision of project management services
35040	Picking Customer premises	50032	Provision of quality assurance services
35041	Picking applicant less than 10 per proje	70011	Wood Pole transp't per lorry load of 30
35042	Picking lines for mains record	70011	Other materials per lorry - 2.3KM line m
35043	Pegging for poles	70012	Concrete Pole transport per km per ton
35044	Wayleave for finalised document	70013	Concrete Pole Line - other materials
35045	Power lines plotting	70014	Transformer Transport(Max. 8pcs per trip
35040	Power line coloring	70100	Hire of Forklifts
35050	Extra Strip Plan Printing A0	90000	Hosted DR Collocation Service
55050		20000	Annual Maintenance Cost for HP design jet TI
35051	Extra Strip Plan Printing	90057	300
35060	HT Aerial earthing recovery per km	90058	Annual Maintenance Cost for Kyocera TA 8002i
35061	HT Pole dressing 2 -Wire	90059	Annual Maintenance Cost for Photocopier
35062	H.T-Pole erection (Wood) - 14M &15M	90060	Provision of Power Infrastructure
35063	H.T-Pole Recovery (Wood) - 14M & 15M	90061	Provision of cooling infrastructure
35064	Pole Recovery (Concrete)	90062	Provision of fire detection and suppress
35065	H.T- Strut-making/Erection	90063	Provision of LAN Connectivity
35066	H.T-Pole holes digging >6ft (>11M poles)	90086	Annual Maintenance Cost for network equipments core switches

Code	Service Description	Code	Service Description
	•		Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35067	L.T- Strut-making/Erection	90087	equipments Routers
25060		00000	Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35068	H.T-Pole holes digging 6ft (Rocky)	90088	equipments mx800 Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35069	H.T-Pole holes digging 7ft(Rocky)	90089	equipments access switch
55007		20002	Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35070	L.T-Pole holes digging 5ft(Rocky)	90090	equipments Nexus
			Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35071	Transformer welding	90091	equipments Fabric interc
25072	UT Elving state note hale diaging (22KV)	90092	Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35072	H.T-Flying s/str pole hole digging(33KV)	90092	equipments Access points Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35073	H.T-Flying s/str pole hole digging(11KV)	90093	equipments Wireless LAN
			Annual Maintenance Cost for network
35074	H.T-Flying stay, stay hole digging	90094	equipments Voice gateway
35075	L.T-Flying stay/strut pole hole digging	130000	M/Vehicle Insurance Service Annual
35076	L.T-Flying stay, stay hole digging	130001	General Insurance cover rate
35080	Mounting of the REA Signage	130002	Wiba Insurance Cover
35100	Underground Cable Trenching	130003	Group Life Cover
35101	Underground Cable Backfilling	130004	General Insurance cover rate
35110	Survey, profiling and bush clearing	130005	Medical & Fire Consequential Loss
35111	Installation of intermediate (support) s	130010	Staff Medical Cover
35112	Installation of Delta Support Structure	140000	Authority Vehicle Towing Services
35113	Installation of Vertical Support Structures	140001	Motor Vehicle Valuation & Drivers Assess
35114	Installation of Vertical Tension Structures	140002	Motor Vehicle Repair & Maintenance Sevic
35115	Installation of Terminal Structure	140003	Generator Fuel Supply/Purchase Service C
35116	Installation of T-off Structure	140004	Generator Service, Repair & Maintenance
35117	Installation of MV Stay Assemblies (Norm	140005	Generator Repairs
35118	Installation of MV Stay Assemblies (Flyi	140006	Mini Grids Repairs
35119	Installation of MV Conductor Stringing	140010	Repair Of Transformers
35120	Installation of Expulsion Fuses (set of	140011	Repair And Maintenance Of Test Bench
35121	Installation of ABS	140020	Hire of Folklift Services
35122	Installation of Auto Reclosures	140021	Hire of Telelogger Services
35123	Installation of Taplins	140022	Hire of Crane Services
35124	Installation of 50kVA 33KV transformers	140030	Vehicle tracking & Fleet management
35125	Installation of 100kVA 33KV transformers	140040	Periodic Panel Cleaning
35125	Installation of 50kVA 11KV transformers	140041	Periodic Vegetation Clearing
35120	Installation of 100kVA 11KV transformers	140041	Skilled Labour Rate(As nd when required)
35127	Installation of 11KV U/G 95mm2 XLPE 3 co	140042	Non Skilled Labour Rate
35128	Installation of MV Aerial Earth Conductors	140043	Provision of vegetation clearing tools
		140044	
35130	Installation of Two-wire, Single phase L		l

NOTE

Comprehensive list to be issued to the consultant at the contract signature stage

SECTION 6. CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS

Preface

- 1. This Section includes two types of standard contract forms for: A Lump-Sum Contract and a Time-Based Contract. Each type includes General Conditions of Contract ("GCC") that shall not be modified, and Special Conditions of Contract ("SCC"). The SCC includes clauses specific to each contract to supplement, but not over- write or otherwise contradict, the General Conditions of Contract.
- 2. Lump-Sum Contract. This type of contract is used mainly for assignments in which the scope and the duration of the Services and the required output of the Consultant are clearly defined. Payments are linked to outputs (deliverables) such as draft or final reports, drawings, bill of quantities, bidding documents, or software programs. Lump-sum contracts are easier to administer because they operate on the principle of a fixed price for a fixed scope, and payments are due on clearly specified out puts and milestones. Never the less, quality control of the Consultant's outputs by the Procuring Entity s paramount.
- 3. Time-Based Contract. This type of contract is appropriate when it is difficult to define or fix the scope and the duration of the services, either because they are related to activities carried out by others for which the completion period may vary, or because the input of the consultants required for attaining the objectives of the assignment is difficult to assess. In time-based contracts the Consultant provides services on a timed basis according to quality specifications, and Consultant's remuneration is determined on the basis of the time actually spent by the Consultant in carrying out the Services and is based on (i) agreed upon unit rates for the Consultant's experts multiplied by the actual time spent by the experts in executing the assignment, and (ii) reimbursable expenses using actual expenses and/or agreed unit prices. This type of contract requires the Procuring Entity to closely supervise the Consultant and to be involved in the daily execution of the assignment.
- 4. The templates are designed for use in assignments with consulting firms and shall not be used for contracting of individual experts. In some consultancy assignments such as design and construction supervision, both Lump- Sum and Time-Based Contracts are used and signed with the Consultant. In that case, the Lump-Sum Contract would apply for the design part of the Services while the construction supervision part would be based on a Time- Based Contract. In such event, both types of contracts shall be signed at the same time.

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT'S SERVICES

[Name of the Procuring Entity]
[Name of the Consultant]

Date:

I. FORM OF CONTRACT - LUMP-SUM

(Text in brackets [] is optional; all notes should be deleted in the final text)

This CONTRACT (herein after called the "Contract") is made the [number] day of the month of [month], [year], between, on the one hand, [name of Procuring Entity] (herein after called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, [name of Consultant] (herein after called the "Consultant").

[If the Consultant consists of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "... (hereinafter called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, a Joint Venture (name of the JV) consisting of the following entities, each member of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for all the Consultant's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of member] and [name of member] (herein after called the "Consultant").]

WHEREAS

- a) The Procuring Entity has requested the Consultant to provide certain consulting services as defined in this Contract (herein after called the "Services");
- b) the Consultant, having represented to the Procuring Entity that it has the required professional skills, expertise and technical resources, has agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract;
- c) the Procuring Entity has set aside a budget and funds toward the cost of the Services and intends to apply a portion of these funds towards payments under this Contract;
 NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
- 1. The following documents attached here to shall be deemed to form an integral part of this Contract:
 - a) The General Conditions of Contract;
 - b) The Special Conditions of Contract;
 - c) Appendices:
 - Appendix A: Terms of Reference
 - Appendix B: Key Experts
 - Appendix C: Breakdown of Contract Price
 - Appendix D: Form of Advance Payments Guarantee

In the event of any inconsistency between the documents, the following order of precedence shall prevail: The Special Conditions of Contract; the General Conditions of Contract; Appendix A; Appendix B; Appendix C; Appendix D. Any reference to this Contract shall include, where the context permits, a reference to its Appendices.

- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of the Procuring Entity and the Consultant shall be asset for thin the Contract, in particular:
 - a) The Consultant shall carryout the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - b) the Procuring Entity shall make payments to the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Parties here to have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of...... [Name of Procuring Entity]

[Authorized Representative of the Procuring Entity–name, title and signature]

For and on behalf of..... [Name of Consultant or Name of a Joint Venture]

[Authorized Representative of the Consultant–name and signature]

[*Note:* For a joint venture, either all members shall sign or only the lead member, in which case the power of attorney to sign on behalf of all members shall be attached.]

For and on behalf of each of the members of the Consultant...... [Insert the Name of the Joint Venture] [Name of the lead member]

[Authorized Representative on behalf of a Joint Venture] [Add signature blocks for each member if all are signing]

SECTION 7: GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

A. General Provisions

1. Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:
 - a) "Applicable Law" means the laws and any other instruments having he force of law in Kenya.
 - b) "Consultant" means a legally-established professional consulting firm or entity selected by the Procuring Entity to provide the Services under the signed Contract.
 - c) "Contract" means the legally binding written agreement signed between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant and which includes all the attached documents listed in its paragraph1of the Form of Contract (the General Conditions (GCC), the Special Conditions (SCC), and the Appendices).
 - d) "Procuring Entity" means the Procuring Entity that signs the Contract for the Services with the selected Consultant.
 - e) "Day" means a working day unless indicated otherwise.
 - f) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GCC 11.
 - g) "Experts" means, collectively, Key Experts, Non-Key Experts, or any other personnel of the Consultant, Sub-consultant or JV member(s) assigned by the Consultant to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract.
 - h) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of Kenya.
 - i) "GCC" mean these General Conditions of Contract.
 - j) "Government" means the government of Kenya.
 - k) "Joint Venture (JV)" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one entity where one member has the authority to conduct all businesses for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for the performance of the Contract.
 - "Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose Curricula Vitae (CV)was taken into account in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's proposal.
 - m) "Local Currency" means the Kenya Shillings, the currency of Kenya.
 - n) "Non-Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Sub-consultant to perform the Services or any part here of under the Contract.
 - o) "Party" means the Procuring Entity or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them.
 - p) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented but not over-written.
 - q) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A hereto.
 - r) "Sub-consultants" means an entity to whom/which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services while remaining solely liable for the execution of the Contract.

(t) "Third Party "means any person or entity other than the Government, the Procuring Entity, the Consultant or a Sub-consultant.

2. Relationship between the Parties

5.3 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relationship of master and servant or of principal and agent as between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant. The Consultant, subject to this Contract, has complete charge of the Experts and Sub-consultants, if any, performing the Services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by them or on their behalf hereunder.

3. Law Governing Contract

5.4 This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the Laws of Kenya.

4. Language

4.1 This Contract has been executed in the English language, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

5. Headings

5.1 The headings shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of this Contract.

6. Communications

- 6.1 Any communication required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing in the English Language. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SCC.
- 6.2 A Party may change its address for notice here under by giving the other Party any communication of such change to the address specified in the SCC.

7 Location

7.1 The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix A hereto and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in Kenya or elsewhere, as the Procuring Entity may approve.

8 Authority of Member in Charge

8.1 In case the Consultant is a Joint Venture, the members hereby authorize them ember specified in the SCC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the Procuring Entity under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the Procuring Entity.

9 Authorized Representatives

9.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by the Procuring Entity or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC.

10 Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

- 10.1 The government requires compliance with its policy regarding corrupt and fraudulent/prohibited practices as set forth in its laws and policies.
- **10.2** Commissions and Fees-The Procuring Entity requires the Consultant to disclose any commissions, gratuities or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to a gents or any other party with respect to the selection process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee. Failure to disclose such commissions, gratuities or fees may result in termination of the Contract by the Procuring Entity and/or sanctions by the PPRA.

B. Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract

11 Effectiveness of Contract

11.1 This Contract shall come into force and effect on the date (the "Effective Date") of the Procuring Entity's notice to the Consultant instructing the Consultant to begin carrying out the Services. This notice shall confirm that the effectiveness conditions, if any, listed in the SCC have been met.

12 Termination of Contract for Failure to Become Effective

12.1 If this Contract has not become effective within such time period after the date of Contract signature as specified in the SCC, either Party may, by not less than twenty-two (22) days written notice to the other Party, declare this Contract to be null and void, and in the event of such a declaration by either Party, neither Party shall have any claim against the other Party with respect there to.

13 Commencement of Services

13.1 The Consultant shall confirm availability of Key Experts and begins carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SCC.

14 Expiration of Contract

14.1 Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GCC19hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the SCC.

15 Entire Agreement

15.1 This Contract contains all covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the Parties. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

16 Modifications or Variations

16.1 Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

17 Force Majeure

- a. Definition
- 17.1 For the purposes of this Contract," Force Majeure" means event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party, is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and makes a Party's performance of its obligations hereunder impossible or so impractical as reasonably to be considered impossible under the circumstances, and subject to those requirements, includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, civil disorder, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather conditions, strikes, lockouts or other industrial action confiscation or any other action by Government agencies.
- 17.2 Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which his caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or such Party's Experts, Sub-consultants or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to both take into account at the time of the conclusion of this Contract and avoid or over come in the carrying out of its obligations here under.
- 17.3 Force Majeure shall not include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required here under.
- **b.** No Breach of Contract
- 17.4 The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations here under shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract in so far as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of this Contract.

c. Measures to be taken

- 17.5 A party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical and shall take all reasonable measures to minimize the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.
- 17.6 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any case not later than fourteen (14) calendar days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give written notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
 - a) Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.
 - b) During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant, upon instructions by the Procuring Entity, shall either:
 - c) demobilize, in which case the Consultant shall be reimbursed for additional costs they reasonably and necessarily incurred, and, if required by the Procuring Entity, in reactivating the Services; or
 - d) Continue with the Services to the extent reasonably possible, in which case the Consultant shall continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract and be reimbursed or additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred.
- 17.7 In the case of disagreement between the Parties as to the existence or extent of Force Majeure, the matter shall be settled according to Clauses GCC 44 & 45.

18 Suspension

18.1 The Procuring Entity may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant here under if the Consultant fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension (i)shall specify the nature of the failure, and (ii) Shall request the Consultant to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty (30) calendar days after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension.

19 Termination

19.1 This Contract may be terminated by either Party as per provisions set up below:

a. By the Procuring Entity

- 19.1.1 The Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause. In such an occurrence, the Procuring Entity shall give at least thirty (30) calendar days' written notice of termination to the Consultant in case of the events referred to in(a)through(d); at least sixty (60) calendar days' written notice in case of the event referred to in (e); and at least five (5) calendar days 'written notice in case of the event referred to in (f):
 - a If the Consultant fails to remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations here under, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to Clause GCC 18;
 - b If the Consultant becomes (or, if the Consultant consists of more than one entity, if any of its members becomes) insolvent or bankrupt or enter into any agreements with their creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or go in to liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary;
 - c If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause GCC 45.1;
 - d If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days;
 - e If the Procuring Entity, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract;
 - f If the Consultant fails to confirm availability of Key Experts as required in Clause GCC13.

19.1.2 Furthermore, if the Procuring Entity determines that the Consultant has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive [or obstructive] practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Procuring Entity may, after giving fourteen (14) calendar days written notice to the Consultant, terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract.

b. By the Consultant

- a) The Consultant may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice to the Procuring Entity, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs(a)through(d)of this Clause.
- b) If the Procuring Entity fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause GCC45.1withinforty-five (45) calendar days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue.
- c) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days.
- d) If the Procuring Entity fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GCC45.1.
- e) If the Procuring Entity is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to this Contract and has not remedied the same within forty-five (45) days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently approved in writing) following the receipt by the Procuring Entity of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach.

c. Cessation of Rights and Obligations

19.1.4 Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GCC 12 or GCC 19 hereof, or upon expiration of this Contract pursuant to Clause GCC14, all rights and obligations of the Parties here under shall cease, except (i) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration, (ii) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in Clause GCC22, (iii) the Consultant's obligation to permit in section, copying and auditing of their accounts and records set forth in Clause GCC25, and (iv) any right which a Party may have under the Applicable Law.

d. Cessation of Services

19.1.5. Upon termination of this Contract by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to Clauses GCC 19a or GCC 19b, the Consultant shall immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum. With respect to documents prepared by the Consultant and equipment and materials furnished by the Procuring Entity, the Consultant shall proceed as provided, respectively, by Clauses GCC27or GCC28.

e. Payment up on Termination

19.1.6 Up on termination of this Contract, the Procuring Entity shall make the following payments to the Consultant:

- a) Payment or Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination; and
- b) In the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (d) and (e) of Clause GCC 19.1.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of this Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Experts.

C. Obligation s of the Consultant

16. General

a. Standard of Performance

20.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out the Services with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as a faithful adviser to the Procuring Entity, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Procuring Entity's legitimate interests in any dealings with the third parties.

- 20.2 The Consultant shall employandprovidesuchqualified and experienced Experts and Sub-consultants as are required to carry out the Services.
- 20.3 The Consultant may subcontract part of the Services to an extent and with such Key Experts and Subconsultants as may be approved in advance by the Procuring Entity. Notwithstanding such approval, the Consultant shall retain full responsibility for the Services.

b. Law Applicable to Services

- 20.4. The Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance with the Contract and the Applicable Law and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that any of its Experts and Sub-consultants, comply with the Applicable Law.
- 20.5 Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Consultants hall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in Kenya when
 - a As a matter of law or official regulations, Kenya prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - b by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, Kenya prohibits any import of goods from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 20.6. The Procuring Entity shall notify the Consultant in writing of relevant local customs, and the Consultant shall, after such notification, respect such customs.

21 Conflict of Interests

21.1 The Consultant shall hold the Procuring Entity's interest paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.

a. Consultant Not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.

- 21.1.1 The payment of the Consultant pursuant to GCC F (Clauses GCC 38 through 42) shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract and, subject to Clause GCC21.1.3, the Consultant shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or in the discharge of its obligations here under, and the Consultant shall use its best efforts to ensure that any Sub-consultants, as well as the Experts and agents of either of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.
- 21.1.2 Furthermore, if the Consultant, as part of the Services, has the responsibility of advising the Procuring Entity on the procurement of goods, works or services, the Consultant shall at all times exercise such responsibility in the best interest of the Procuring Entity. Any discounts or commissions obtained by the Consultant in the exercise of such procurement responsibility shall be for the account of the Procuring Entity.

b. Consultant and Affiliates Not to Engage in Certain Activities

21.1.3 The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub-consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to the Consultant's Services for the preparation or implementation of the project.

c. Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

21.1.4 The Consultant shall not engage and shall cause its Experts as well as its Sub-consultants not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract.

d. Strict Duty to Disclose Conflicting Activities

21.1.5 The Consultant has an obligation and shall ensure that its Experts and Sub-consultants shall have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of their Procuring Entity, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.

22 Confidentiality

22.1 Except with the prior written consent of the Procuring Entity, the Consultant and the Experts shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Experts make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or because of, the Services.

23 Liability of the Consultant

23.1 Subject to additional provisions, if any, set for in the SCC, the Consultant's liability under this Contract shall be as determined under the Applicable Law.

24 Insurance to be taken out by the Consultant

24.1 The Consultant (i) shall take out and maintain and shall cause any Sub-consultants to take out and maintain, at its (or the Sub-consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Procuring Entity, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage specified in the SCC, and (ii) at the Procuring Entity's request, shall provide evidence to the Procuring Entity showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums therefore have been paid. The Consultant shall ensure that such insurance is in place prior to commencing the Services as stated in Clause GCC13.

25 Accounting, Inspection and Auditing

- 25.1 The Consultant shall keep and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Sub-consultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services and in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 25.2 The Consultant shall permit and shall cause its Sub-consultants to permit, the PPRA and/ or persons appointed by the PPRA to inspect the Site and /or all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the PPRA if requested by the PPRA. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause GCC10 which provides, interlaid, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PPRA's inspection and audit rights provided for under this ClauseGCC25.2 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of in eligibility under the PPRA's prevailing sanctions procedures.)

26 Reporting Obligations

26.1 The Consultant shall submit to the Procuring Entity the reports and documents specified in Appendix A, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.

27 Proprietary Rights of the Procuring Entity in Reports and Records

- 27.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the SCC, all reports and relevant data and information such as maps, diagrams, plans, databases, other documents and software, supporting records or material compiled or prepared by the Consultant for the Procuring Entity in the course of the Services shall be confidential and become and remain the absolute property of the Procuring Entity. The Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the Procuring Entity, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents, data and/or software but shall not use the same for purposes unrelated to this Contract without prior written approval of the Procuring Entity.
- 27.2 If license agreements are necessary or appropriate between the Consultant and third parties for purposes of development of the plans, drawings, specifications, designs, databases, other documents and software, the Consultant shall obtain the Procuring Entity's prior written approval to such agreements, and the Procuring Entity shall be entitled at its discretion to require recovering the expenses related to the development of the program(s) concerned. Other restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any, shall be specified in the SCC.

28 Equipment, Vehicles and Materials

28.1 Equipment, vehicles and materials made available to the Consultant by the Procuring Entity or purchased by the Consultant wholly or partly with funds provided by the Procuring Entity, shall be the property of the Procuring Entity and shall be marked accordingly. Upon termination or expiration of this Contract, the Consultant shall make available to the Procuring Entity an inventory of such equipment, vehicles and materials and shall dispose of such equipment, vehicles and materials in accordance with the Procuring Entity's instructions. While in possession of such equipment, vehicles and materials, the Consultant, unless otherwise

instructed by the Procuring Entity in writing, shall insure them at the expense of the Procuring Entity in an amount equal to their full replacement value.

28.2 Any equipment or materials brought by the Consultant or its Experts into Kenya for the use either for the project or personal use shall remain the property of the Consultant or the Experts concerned, as applicable.

D. Consultant's Experts and Sub-consultants

29 Description of Key Experts

29.1 The title, agreed job description, minimum qualification and estimated period of engagement to carry out the Services of each of the Consultant's Key Experts are described in Appendix B.

30 Replacement of Key Experts

- 30.1 Except as the Procuring Entity may otherwise agree in writing, no changes shall be made in the Key Experts.
- 30.2 Notwithstanding the above, the substitution of Key Experts during Contract execution may be considered only based on the Consultant's written request and due to circumstances outside the reasonable control of the Consultant, including but not limited to death or medical in capacity. In such case, the Consultant shall forth with provide as a replacement, a person of equivalent or better qualifications and experience, and at the same rate of remuneration.

31 Removal of Experts or Sub-consultants

- 31.1 If the Procuring EntityfindsthatanyoftheExpertsorSub-consultanthascommittedseriousmisconductorhas been charged with having committed a criminal action, or shall the Procuring Entity determine that Consultant's Expert of Sub consultant have engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive [or obstructive] practice while performing the Services, the Consultant shall, at the Procuring Entity's written request, provide a replacement.
- 31.2 In the event that any of Key Experts, Non-Key Experts or Sub-consultants is found by the Procuring Entity to be in competent or in capable in discharging assigned duties, the Procuring Entity, specifying the grounds therefore, may request the Consultant to provide a replacement.
- 31.3 Any replacement of the removed Experts or Sub consultants shall possess better qualifications and experience and shall be acceptable to the Procuring Entity.
- 31.4 The Consultant shall bear all costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of such Experts.

E. Obligations of the Procuring Entity

32 Assistance and Exemptions

- 32.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Procuring Entity shall use its best efforts to:
 - a Assist the Consultant with obtaining work permits and such other documents as shall be necessary to enable the Consultant to perform the Services.
 - b Assist the Consultant with promptly obtaining, for the Experts and, if appropriate, their eligible dependents, all necessary entry and exit visas, residence permits, exchange permits and any other documents required for their stay in Kenyawhile carrying out the Service sunder the Contract.
 - c FacilitatepromptclearancethroughcustomsofanypropertyrequiredfortheServicesandofthepersonal effects of the Expert sand their eligible dependents.
 - d Issue to officials, agents and representatives of the Government all such instructions and information as may be necessary or appropriate for the prompt and effective implementation of the Services.
 - e Assist the Consultant and the Experts and any Sub-consultants employed by the Consultant for the Services with obtaining exemption from any requirement to register or obtain any permit to practice their profession or to establish themselves either individually or as a corporate entity in Kenya according to the applicable law in Kenya
 - f Assist the Consultant, any Sub-consultants and the Experts of either of them with obtaining the privilege, pursuant to the applicable law in Kenya, of bringing in to Kenya reasonable amounts of foreign currency for the purposes of the Services or for the personal use of the Experts and of withdrawing any such amounts as may be earned therein by the Experts in the execution of the Services.
 - g Provide to the Consultant any such other assistance as may be specified in the SCC.

33 Access to Project Site

33.1 The Procuring Entity warrants that the Consultant shall have, free of charge, unimpeded access to the project

site in respect of which access is required for the performance of the Services. The Procuring Entity will be responsible for any damage to the project site or any property thereon resulting from such access and will indemnify the Consultant and each of the experts in respect of liability for any such damage, unless such damage is caused by the willful default or negligence of the Consultant or any Sub-consultants or the Experts of either of them.

34 Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties

34.1 If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the applicable law in Kenya with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties hereto, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the Contract price amount specified in Clause GCC 39.1

35 Services, Facilities and Property of the Procuring Entity

35.1 The Procuring Entity shall make available to the Consultant and the Experts, for the purposes of the Services and free of any charge, the services, facilities and property described in the Terms of Reference (Appendix A) at the times and in the manner specified in said Appendix A.

36 Counterpart Personnel

- 36.1 The Procuring Entity shall make available to the Consultant free of charge such professional and support counterpart personnel, to be nominated by the Procuring Entity with the Consultant's advice, if specified in Appendix A.
- 36.2 Professional and support counterpart personnel, excluding Procuring Entity's liaison personnel, shall work under the exclusive direction of the Consultant. If any member of the counterpart personnel fails to perform adequately any work as signed to such member by the Consultant that is consistent with the position occupied by such member, the Consultant may request the replacement of such member, and the Procuring Entity shall not unreasonably refuse to act upon such request.

37 Payment Obligation

37.1 In consideration of the Services performed by the Consultant under this Contract, the Procuring Entity shall make such payments to the Consultant for the deliverables specified in Appendix A and in such manner as is provided by GCCF below.

F. Payments to the Consultant

38 Contract Price

- 38.1 The Contract price is fixed and is set forth in the SCC. The Contract price breakdown is provided in Appendix C.
- 38.2 Any change to the Contract price specified in Clause 38.1 can be made only if the Parties have agreed to the revised scope of Services pursuant to Clause GCC 16 and have amended in writing the Terms of Reference in Appendix A.

39 Taxes and Duties

- 39.1 The Consultant, Sub-consultants and Experts are responsible for meeting any and all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract unless it is stated otherwise in the SCC. Currency of Payment
- 39.2 Any payment under this Contract shall be made in the currency (ies) of the Contract.

40 Mode of Billing and Payment

- 40.1 The total payments under this Contract shall not exceed the Contract price set forth in Clause GCC 38.1.
- 40.2 The payments under this Contract shall be made in lump-sum installments against deliverables specified in Appendix A. The payments will be made according to the payment schedule stated in the SCC.
- 40.2.1 <u>Advance payment:</u> Unless otherwise indicated in the SCC, an advance payment shall be made against an advance payment bank guarantee acceptable to the Procuring Entity in an amount (or amounts) and in a currency (or currencies) specified in the SCC. Such guarantee (I) is to remain effective until the advance payment has been fully set off, and (ii) is to be in the form set forth in Appendix D, or in such other form as the Procuring Entity shall have approved in writing. The advance payments will be set off by the Procuring Entity in equal portions against the lump-sum installments specified in the SCC until said advance payments have been fully set off.

- 40.2.2 <u>The Lump-Sum Installment Payments</u>. The Procuring Entity shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60) days after the receipt by the Procuring Entity of the deliverable(s) and the cover invoice for the related lump-sum installment payment. The payment can be withheld if the Procuring Entity does not approve the submitted deliverable(s) as satisfactory in which case the Procuring Entity shall provide comments to the Consultant within the same sixty (60) days period. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections, and there after the fore going process shall be repeated.
- 40.2.3 *The Final Payment:* The final payment under this Clause shall be made only after the final report has been submitted by the Consultant and approved as satisfactory by the Procuring Entity. The Services shall then be deemed completed and finally accepted by the Procuring Entity. The last lump-sum installment shall be deemed approved for payment by the Procuring Entity within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of the final report by the Procuring Entity unless the Procuring Entity, within such ninety (90) calendar day period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail deficiencies in the Services, the final report. The Consultant shall be repeated.
- 40.2.4 All payments under this Contract shall be made to the accounts of the Consultant specified in the SCC.
- 40.2.5 With the exception of the final payment under 40.2.3 above, payments do not constitute acceptance of the whole Services nor relieve the Consultant of any obligations here under.

41 Interest on Delayed Payments

41.1 If the Procuring Entity had delayed payments beyond thirty (30) days after the due date stated in Clause GCC 41.2.2, interest shall be paid to the Consultant on any amount due by, not paid on, such due date for each day of delay at the annual rate stated in the SCC.

G. Fairness and Good Faith

42 Good Faith

42.1 The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of this Contract.

H. Settlement of Disputes

43 Amicable Settlement

- 43.1.2 The Parties shall seek to resolve any dispute amicably by mutual consultation.
- 43.1.3 If either Party objects to any action or in action of the other Party, the objecting Party may file a written Notice of Dispute to the other Party providing in detail the basis of the dispute. The Party receiving the Notice of Dispute will consider it and respond in writing within fourteen (14) days after receipt. If that Party fails to respond within fourteen (14) days, or the dispute cannot be amicably settled within fourteen (14) days following the response of that Party, Clause GCC 45.1 shall apply.

44 Dispute Resolution

44.1.2 Any dispute between the Parties arising under or related to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably may be referred to by either Party to the adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the provisions specified in the SCC.

SECTION 8: SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract						
1.1(a)	The Contract shall be construed in accordance with the law of Kenya						
4.1	The language is: English						
6.1 and 6.2	The addresses are [fill in at negotiations with the selected firm]:						
	Procuring Entity:Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy CorporationAttention:Chief Executive OfficerFacsimile:info@rerec.co.ke						
	Consultant: Attention: Facsimile: E-mail:						
8.1	[If the Consultant consists only of one entity, state "N/A"; OR If the Consultant is a Joint Venture consisting of more than one entity, the name of the JV member whose address is specified in Clause SCC6.1 should be inserted here.] The Lead Member on behalf of the JV is[insert name of the member]						
9.1	The Authorized Representatives are: For the Procuring Entity: Dr. Rose N. Mkalama - CEO For the Consultant: [name, title]						
11.1	The effectiveness conditions are the following: [Note: If there are no effectiveness conditions, state "N/A"]						
	<i>OR</i> <i>List here any conditions of effectiveness of the Contract, e.g., receipt by the Consultant of an</i> <i>advance payment, and by the Procuring Entity of an advance payment guarantee (see Clause</i> <i>SCC45.1(a)), etc.]</i>						
12.1	Termination of Contract for Failure to Become Effective: The time period shall be 6 months						
13.1	Commencement of Services: The number of days shall be as agreed during the inception negotiation meeting.						
	Confirmation of Key Experts' availability to start the Assignment shall be submitted to the Procuring Entity in writing as a written statement signed by each Key Expert.						
14.1	Expiration of Contract: The time period shall be 36months. The contract will be for two years renewable once for one year.						
21.1.3.	The Procuring Entity reserves the right to determine on a case-by-case basis whether the Consultant should be disqualified from providing goods, works or non-consulting services due to a conflict of a nature described in Clause GCC 21.1.3						
	Yes						

[Notes in brackets are for guidance purposes only and should be deleted in the final text of the signed contract]

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
23.1	No additional provisions.
	[OR
	The following limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards the Procuring Entity can be subject to the Contract's negotiations:
	 "Limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards the Procuring Entity: (a) Except in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Consultant or on the part of any person or a firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services, the Consultant, with respect to damage caused by the Consultant to the Procuring Entity's property, shall not be liable to the Procuring Entity: (i) for any indirect or consequential loss or damage; and (ii) for any indirect loss or demage that two times the total value of the Construct.
	 (ii) for any direct loss or damage that exceeds two times the total value of the Contract; (b) This limitation of liability shall not (i) affect the Consultant's liability, if any, for damage to Third Parties caused by the Consultant or any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services; (ii) be construed as providing the Consultant with any limitation or exclusion from liability which is prohibited by the Applicable Law.
	[Notes to the Procuring Entity and the Consultant:
	Any suggestions made by the Consultant in the Proposal to introduce exclusions/limitations of the Consultant's liability under the Contract should be carefully scrutinized by the Procuring Entity prior to accepting any changes to what was included in the issued RFP.
	To be acceptable to the Procuring Entity, any limitation of the Consultant's liability should at the very least be reasonably related to (a) the damage the Consultant might potentially cause to the Procuring Entity, and (b) the Consultant's ability to pay compensation using its own assets and reasonably obtainable insurance coverage. The Consultant's liability shall not be limited to less than a multiplier of the total payments to the Consultant under the Contract for remuneration and reimbursable expenses. A statement to the effect that the Consultant is liable only for the reperformance of faulty Services is not acceptable to the Procuring Entity. Also, the Consultant's liability should never be limited for loss or damage caused by the Consultant's gross negligence or willful misconduct.
	The Procuring Entity does not accept a provision to the effect that the Procuring Entity shall indemnify and hold harmless the Consultant against Third Party claims, except, of course, if a claim is based on loss or damage caused by a default or wrongful act of the Procuring Entity to the extent permissible by the law applicable in Kenya.]
24.1	The insurance coverage against the risks shall be as follows:
	[Delete what is not applicable except (a)].
	(a) Professional liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency which should be not less than the total ceiling amount of the Contract];
	(e) insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.
27.1	The additional rights to the use of the documents are: [If applicable, insert any exceptions to proprietary rights provisions]

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract					
27.2	[If there is to be no restriction on the future use of these documents by either Party, this Clause SCC 27.2 should be indicated as Not Applicable. If the Parties wish to restrict such use, any of the following options, or any other option agreed to by the Parties, could be used:					
	[The Consultant shall not use these [<i>The report findings</i>] for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the Procuring Entity.]					
32.1 (a) through (f)	[List here any changes or additions to Clause GCC 32.1. If there are no such changes or additions, indicate Not Applicable.]					
32.1(g)	[List here any other assistance to be provided by the Procuring Entity. If there is no such other assistance, indicate Not Applicable for this Clause SCC $32.1(g)$.]					
38.1	The Contract price is: Shall be inclusive of all applicable local taxes.					
39.1 and 39.2	 [The Procuring Entity, depending on the source of funds and tax exemptions already granted by the Government, shall decide whether the Consultant (i) should be exempted from local tax, or (ii) should be reimbursed by the Procuring Entity for any such tax they might have to pay (or that the Procuring Entity would pay such tax on behalf of the Consultant] The Procuring Entity warrants that [choose one applicable option consistent with the ITC 16.3 and the outcome of the Contract's negotiations (Form FIN-2] If ITC16.3 indicates a tax exemption status, include the following: "the Consultant, the Subconsultants and the Experts shall be exempt from" OR If ITC16.3 does not indicate the exemption and, depending on whether the Procuring Entity shall pay on behalf of the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts," OR "the Procuring Entity shall reimburse the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts," any taxes, duties, fees, levies and other impositions imposed, under the applicable law in the Procuring Entity's country, on the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts (other than nationals or permanent residents of Kenya), in connection with the carrying out of the Services; (b) any equipment, materials and supplies brought into Kenya by the Consultant or Sub- 					
	 (b) any equipment, internals and suppres brought into receive by the consultant of bub consultants for the purpose of carrying out the Services and which, after having been brought into such territories, will be subsequently withdrawn by them; (c) any equipment imported for the purpose of carrying out the Services and paid for out of funds provided by the Procuring Entity and which is treated as property of the Procuring Entity; (d) any property brought into Kenya by the Consultant, any Sub-consultants or the Experts (other than nationals or permanent residents of Kenya), or the eligible dependents of such experts for their personal use and which will subsequently be withdrawn by them upon their respective departure from the Procuring Entity's country, provided that: (i) the Consultant, Sub-consultants and experts shall follow the usual customs procedures of Kenya in importing property into Kenya; and (ii) if the Consultant, Sub-consultants or Experts do not withdraw but dispose of any property in the Procuring Entity's country upon which customs duties and taxes have been exempted, the Consultant, Sub-consultants or Experts, as the case may be, (a) shall bear such customs duties and 					
	taxes in conformity with the regulations of Kenya, or (b) shall reimburse them to the Procuring Entity if they were paid by the Procuring Entity at the time the property in question was brought into the Procuring Entity's country.					

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract					
40.2	The payment schedule:					
	[Payment of installments shall be linked to the deliverables specified in the Terms of Reference in Appendix A]					
	I^{st} Advance payment: If the first payment is an advance payment (Maximum 20% of contract value), it shall be made against the bank guarantee for the same amount as per GCC 41.2.1].					
	1^{st} Payment: shall be Thirty (30) percent of each year lumpsum contract price shall be paid upon submission and approval of the 1^{st} quarter market survey report.					
	2^{nd} payment: shall be Thirty (30) percent of each year lumpsum Contract Price shall be paid upon submission of an acceptable 2^{nd} quarter market survey report.					
	3^{rd} and Final Payment: shall be forty (40) percent of each year lumpsum Contract Price shall be paid upon submission and approval of the 3^{rd} Quarter and fourth quarter market survey report.					
40.2.1	The following provisions shall apply to the advance payment and the advance bank payment guarantee:					
	(1) An advance payment of 20% of value in Kenya Shillings] shall be made within 30 days after the receipt of an advance bank payment guarantee by the Procuring Entity. The advance payment will be set off by the Procuring Entity in equal portions against [list the payments against which the advance is offset].					
	(2) The advance bank payment guarantee shall be in the amount and in the currency of the currency (ies) of the advance payment.					
	(3) The bank guarantee will be released when the advance payment has been fully set off.					
40.2.4	The accounts are:					
	for foreign currency: [insert account]. for local currency: [insert account].					
41.1	The interest rate is: [Nil].					
44.1	Disputes shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the following provisions: 1. <u>Selection of Arbitrators</u> . Each dispute submitted by a Party to arbitration shall be heard by a sole arbitrator or an arbitration panel composed of three (3) arbitrators, in accordance with the following provisions:					
	(a) Where the Parties agree that the dispute concerns a technical matter, they may agree to appoint a sole arbitrator or, failing agreement on the identity of such sole arbitrator within thirty (30) days after receipt by the other Party of the proposal of a name for such an appointment by the Party who initiated the proceedings, either Party may apply to <i>[name an appropriate international professional body, e.g., the Federation Internationale des Ingenieurs-Conseil (FIDIC) of Lausanne, Switzerland]</i> for a list of not fewer than five (5) nominees and, on receipt of such list, the Parties shall alternately strike names therefrom, and the last remaining nominee on the list shall be the sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute. If the last remaining nominee has not been determined in this manner within sixty (60) days of the date of the list, <i>[insert the name of the same professional body as above]</i> shall appoint, upon the request of either Party and from such list or otherwise, a sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute.					
	(b) Where the Parties do not agree that the dispute concerns a technical matter, the Procuring					

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract					
	Entity and the Consultant shall each appoint one (1) arbitrator, and these two arbitrators shall jointly appoint a third arbitrator, who shall chair the arbitration panel. If the arbitrators named by the Parties do not succeed in appointing a third arbitrator within thirty (30) days after the latter of the two (2) arbitrators named by the Parties has been appointed, the third arbitrator shall, at the request of either Party, be appointed by [name an appropriate international appointing authority, e.g., the Secretary General of the Permanent Court of Arbitration, The Hague; the Secretary General of the International Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes, Washington, D.C.; the International Chamber of Commerce, Paris; etc.].					
	(c) If, in a dispute subject to paragraph (b) above, one Party fails to appoint its arbitrator within thirty (30) days after the other Party has appointed its arbitrator, the Party which has named an arbitrator may apply to the <i>[name the same appointing authority as in said paragraph (b)]</i> to appoint a sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute, and the arbitrator appointed pursuant to such application shall be the sole arbitrator for that dispute.					
	2. <u>Rules of Procedure</u> . Except as otherwise stated herein, arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure for arbitration of the United Nations Commission on International Trade Law (UNCITRAL) as in force on the date of this Contract.					
	3. <u>Substitute Arbitrators</u> . If for any reason an arbitrator is unable to perform his/her function, a substitute shall be appointed in the same manner as the original arbitrator.					
	4. <u>Nationality and Qualifications of Arbitrators</u> . The sole arbitrator or the third arbitrator appointed pursuant to paragraphs 1(a) through 1(c) above shall be an internationally recognized legal or technical expert with extensive experience in relation to the matter in dispute and shall not be a national of the Consultant's home country [<i>If the Consultant consists of more than one entity, add:</i> or of the home country of any of their members or Parties] or of the Government's country. For the purposes of this Clause, "home country" means any of:					
	(a) the country of incorporation of the Consultant [If the Consultant consists of more than one entity, add: or of any of their members or Parties]; or					
	(b) the country in which the Consultant's [or any of their members' or Parties'] principal place of business is located; or					
	(c) the country of nationality of a majority of the Consultant's [or of any members' or Parties'] shareholders; or					
	(d) the country of nationality of the Sub-consultants concerned, where the dispute involves a subcontract.					
	 5. <u>Miscellaneous</u>. In any arbitration proceeding hereunder: (a) proceedings shall, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, be held in <i>[select a country which is neither the Procuring Entity's country nor the Consultant's country]</i>; (b) the <i>[type of language]</i> language shall be the official language for all purposes; and (c) the decision of the sole arbitrator or of a majority of the arbitrators (or of the third arbitrator if there is no such majority) shall be final and binding and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction, and the Parties hereby waive any objections to or claims of immunity in respect of such enforcement. 					

SECTION 9: APPENDICES

Appendix A – Terms of Reference

[*Note*: This Appendix shall include the final Terms of Reference (TORs) worked out by the Procuring Entity and the Consultant during the negotiations; dates for completion of various tasks; location of performance for different tasks; detailed reporting requirements and list of deliverables against which the payments to the Consultant will be made; ProcuringEntity's input, including counterpart personnel assigned by the ProcuringEntity to work on the Consultant's team; specific tasks or actions that require prior approval by the ProcuringEntity.

Insert the text based on the Section 5 (Terms of Reference) of the ITC in the RFP and modified based on the Forms TECH-1 through TECH-5 of the Consultant's Proposal. Highlight the changes to Section 5 of the RFP]

.....

Appendix B - Key Experts

[Insert a table based on Form TECH-6 of the Consultant's Technical Proposal and finalized at the Contract's negotiations. Attach the CVs (updated and signed by the respective Key Experts) demonstrating the qualifications of Key Experts.]

.....

Appendix C – Breakdown of Contract Price

{Insert the table with the unit rates to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price. The table shall be based on [Form FIN-3andFIN-4] of the Consultant's Proposal and reflect any changes agreed at the Contract negotiations, if any. The footnote shall list such changes made to [FormFIN-3andFIN-4] at the negotiations or state that none has been made.}

Appendix D - Form of Advance Payment Guarantee

[Note: See Clause GCC 41.2.1 and SCC 41.2.1]

Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment [Bank's Name and Address of Issuing Branch or Office] Beneficiary: [Name and Address of Procuring Entity]
Date:

ADVANCEPAYMENTGUARANTEE No.:

 We have been informed that ______ [name of Consultant or a name of the Joint Venture, same as appears on the signed Contract] (herein after called" the Consultant") has entered into Contract No. ______ [reference number of the contract] dated ______ with you, for the provision of ______ [brief description of Services] (herein after called" the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum of *[amount in figures]* () *[amount in words]* is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Consultant, we <u>[name of bank]</u> here by irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of <u>[amount in figures]</u> () [amount in words]¹ upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Consultant are in b reach of their obligation under the Contract because the Consultant have used the advance payment for purposes other than toward providing the Services under the Contract.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Consultant on their account number_____at____[name and address of bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Consultant as indicated in copies of certified monthly statements which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of the monthly payment certificate indicating that the Consultant has made Full repayment of the amount of the advance payment, or on the day of ______,² whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

[Signature]

Note: All italicized text is for indicative purposes only to assist in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

PREFACE

This Section includes a Time-Based Contract. It includes General Conditions of Contract ("GCC") that shall not be modified, and Special Conditions of Contract ("SCC"). The SCC include clauses specific to each contract to supplement, but not over-write or otherwise contradict, the General Conditions of Contract.

Time-Based Contract. This type of contract is appropriate when it is difficult to define or fix the scope and the duration of the services, either because they are related to activities carried out by others for which the completion period may vary, or because the input of the consultants required for attaining the objectives of the assignment is difficult to assess. In time-based contracts the Consultant provides services on a timed basis according to quality specifications, and Consultant's remuneration is determined on the basis of the time actually spent by the Consultant in carrying out the Services and is based on (i) agreed upon unit rates for the Consultant's experts multiplied by the actual time spent by the experts in executing the assignment, and (ii) reimbursable expenses using actual expenses and/or agreed unit prices. This type of contract requires the Procuring Entity to closely supervise the Consultant and to be involved in the daily execution of the assignment.

The template is designed for use in assignments with consulting firms and shall not be used for contracting of individual experts. In some consultancy assignments such as design and construction supervision, both Lump-Sum and Time- Based Contracts are used and signed with the Consultant. In that case, the Lump-Sum Contract would apply for the design part of the Services while the construction supervision part would be based on a Time-Based Contract. In such event; both types of contracts shall be signed at the same time.

In case a Time-Based Contract is not used, please delete the contract template for time-based contract before issuance of the RFP to Consultants.

¹The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency (ies) of the advance payment as Specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Procuring Entity.

²Insert the expected expiration date. In the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract the Procuring Entity would need to request an extension of This guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Procuring Entity might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Procuring Entity's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT'S SERVICES

II. TIME-BASED CONTRACT

Consulting Services for:

Contract No.:_____

Contract Description:_____

between

[Name of the Procuring

Entity] and

[Name of the Consultant]

Date:

II: FORM OF CONTRACT-TIME-BASED

(Text in brackets [] is optional; all notes should be deleted in the final text)

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the *[number]* day of the month of *[month]*, *[year]*, between, on the one hand, *[name of Procuring Entity]* (herein after called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, *[name of Consultant]* (hereinafter called the "Consultant").

[Note: If the Consultant consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "... (herein after called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, a Joint Venture (name of the JV) consisting of the following entities, each member of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for all the Consultant's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of member] and [name of member] (hereinafter called the "Consultant").]

WHEREAS

- a) the Procuring Entity has requested the Consultant to provide certain consulting services as defined in this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- b) the Consultant, having represented to the Procuring Entity that it has the required professional skills, expertise and technical resources, has agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract;
- c) The Procuring Entity has set aside a budget and funds towards the cost of the services and intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the Contract.

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

- 1. The following documents attached here to shall be deemed to form an integral part of this Contract:
 - a) The General Conditions of Contract;
 - b) The Special Conditions of Contract;
 - c) Appendices:

Appendix A: Terms of Reference

Appendix B: Key Experts Appendix C: Remuneration Cost Estimates Appendix D: Reimbursable Cost Estimates Appendix E: Form of Advance Payments Guarantee

In the event of any in consistency between the documents, the following order of precedence shall prevail: The Special Conditions of Contract; the General Conditions of Contract; Appendix A; Appendix B; Appendix C and Appendix D; Appendix E. Any reference to this Contract shall include, where the context permits, a reference to its Appendices.

- 2. ThemutualrightsandobligationsoftheProcuringEntityandtheConsultantshallbeassetforthintheContract, in particular:
 - a) The Consultant shall carryout the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - b) The Procuring Entity shall make payments to the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Parties here to have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of _____ [Name of Procuring Entity] [Authorized Representative of the Procuring Entity–name title and signature]

For and on behalf of _____ [Name of Consultant or Name of a Joint Venture] [Authorized Representative of the Consultant–name and signature]

[Note: For a joint venture, either all members shall sign or only the lead member, in which case the power of attorney to sign on behalf of all members shall be attached.]

For and on behalf of each of the members of the Consultant...... *[insert the name of the Joint Venture]* [Name of the lead member]

[Authorized Representative on behalf of a Joint Venture] [add signature blocks for each member if all are signing]

Section 8: General Conditions of Contract

A. GENERALPROVISIONS

1. Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:
 - a) "Applicable Law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in Kenya.
 - b) "Procuring Entity" means the Procuring Entity that signs the Contract for the Services with the Selected Consultant.
 - c) "Consultant" means a legally established professional consulting firm or entity selected by the Procuring Entity to provide the Services under the signed Contract.
 - d) "Contract" means the legally binding written agreement signed between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant and which includes all the attached documents listed in its paragraph 1 of the Form of Contract (the General Conditions (GCC), the Special Conditions (SCC), and the Appendices).
 - e) "Day" means a working day unless indicated otherwise.
 - f) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GCC11.
 - g) "Experts" means, collectively, Key Experts, Non-Key Experts, or any other personnel of the Consultant, Sub-consultant or JV member(s) assigned by the Consultant to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract.
 - h) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the Kenya Shilling.
 - i) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract.
 - j) "Government" means the government of Kenya.
 - k) "Joint Venture (JV)" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one entity where one member has the authority to conduct all businesses for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for the performance of the Contract.
 - "Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose Curricula Vitae (CV) was taken in to account in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's proposal.
 - m) "Local Currency" means the Kenya Shilling.
 - n) "Non-Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Subconsultant to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract.
 - o) "Party" means the Procuring Entity or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both.
 - p) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented but not over-written.
 - q) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A hereto.
 - r) "Sub-consultants" means an entity to whom/which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services while remaining solely liable for the execution of the Contract.
 - s) "Third Party" means any person or entity other than the Government, the Procuring Entity, the Consultant or a Sub-consultant.

2. Relationship between the Parties

5.5 Nothing contained here in shall be construed as establishing a relationship of master and servant or of principal and agent as between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant. The Consultant, subject to this Contract, has complete charge of the Experts and Sub-consultants, if any, performing the Services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by the moron their behalf here under.

6 Law Governing Contract

6.2 This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the Applicable Law.

7 Language

7.2 This Contract has been executed in the language specified in the SCC, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

8 Headings

8.2 The headings shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of this Contract.

9 Communications

- 9.2 Any communication required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing in the language specified in Clause GCC4. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been give nor made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SCC.
- 9.3 A party may change its address for notice here under by giving the other Party any communication of such change to the address specified in the SCC.

10 Location

7.1. The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix A here to and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in Kenya or elsewhere, as the Procuring Entity may approve.

11 Authority of Member in Charge

11.2 In case the Consultant is a Joint Venture, the members hereby authorize the member specified in the SCC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the Procuring Entity under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the Procuring Entity.

9. Authorized Representatives

9.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by the Procuring Entity or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC.

10 Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

10.1 The Governmentrequirescompliance with its policy and laws in regard to corrupt and fraudulent or prohibited practices as set forth in its laws and policies.

a. Commissions and Fees

10.2 The Procuring Entity requires the Consultant to disclose any commissions, gratuities or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the selection process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or the other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee. Failure to disclose such commissions, gratuities or fees may result in termination of the Contract by the Procuring Entity and/or sanctions by the PPRA.

Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract.

11 Effectiveness of Contract

11.1 This Contract shall come into force and effect on the date (the "Effective Date") of the Procuring Entity's notice to the Consultant instructing the Consultant to begin carrying out the Services. This notice shall confirm that the effectiveness conditions, if any, listed in the SCC have been met.

12 Termination of Contract for Failure to Become Effective

12.1 If this Contract has not become effective within such time period after the date of Contract signature as specified in the SCC, either Party may, by not less than twenty-two (22) days written notice to the other Party, declare this contract to be null and void, and in the event of such a declaration by either Party, neither Party shall have any claim against the other Party with respect hereto.

13 Commencement of Services

13.1 The Consultant shall confirm availability of Key Experts and begin carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SCC.

14. Expiration of Contract

14.1 Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GCC 19 hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the SCC.

15 Entire Agreement

15.1 This Contract contains all covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the Parties. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

16 Modifications or Variations

16.1 Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

16.2 In cases of substantial modifications or variations.

17 Force Majeure

a. Definition

- 17.1 For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party, is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and makes a Party's performance of its obligations here under impossible or so impractical as reasonably to be considered impossible under the circumstances, and subject to those requirements, includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, civil disorder, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather conditions, strikes, lockouts or other industrial action confiscation or any other action by Government agencies.
- 17.2 Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which is caused by then negligence or intentional action of a Party or such Party's Experts, Sub-consultants or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to both take into account at the time of the conclusion of this Contract and avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations here under.
- 17.3 Force Majeure shall not include in sufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required here under.

b. No Breach of Contract

17.4 The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations here under shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract in so far as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of this Contract.

c. Measures to be taken

- 17.5 A party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical and shall take all reasonable measures to minimize the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.
- 17.6 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any case not later than fourteen (14) calendar days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give written notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- 17.7 Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be

extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

- 17.8 During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant, upon instructions by the Procuring Entity, shall either:
 - a demobilize, in which case the Consultant shall be reimbursed for additional costs they reasonably and necessarily incurred, and, if required by the Procuring Entity, in reactivating the Services; or
 - b Continue with the Services to the extent reasonably possible, in which case the Consultant shall continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract and be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred.
- 17.9 In the case of disagreement between the Parties as to the existence or extent of Force Majeure, the matter shall be settled according to Clauses GCC 47 & 48.

18 Suspension

18.1 The Procuring Entity may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant here under if the Consultant fails to per for many of its obligations under this Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension (i) shall specify the nature of the failure, and (ii) shall request the Consultant to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty (30) calendar days after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension.

19 Termination

19.1 ThisContractmaybeterminatedbyeitherPartyasperprovisionssetupbelow:

a. By the Procuring Entity

- 19.1.1 The Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause. In such an occurrence, the Procuring Entity shall give at least thirty (30) calendar days' written notice of termination to the Consultant in case of the events referred to in (a) through (d); at least sixty (60) calendar days' written notice in case of the event referred to in (e); and at least five (5) calendar days' written notice in case of the event referred to in (f):
 - a If the Consultant fails to remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations here under, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to Clause GCC 18;
 - b If the Consultant becomes (or, if the Consultant consists of more than one entity, if any of its members becomes) insolvent or bankrupt or enter into any agreements with their creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or go into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary;
 - c If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause GCC 48.1;
 - d If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days;
 - e If the Procuring Entity, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract;
 - f If the Consultant fails to confirm availability of Key Experts as required in Clause GCC 13.
- 19.1.2 Furthermore, if the Procuring Entity determines that the Consultant has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive [or obstructive] practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Procuring Entity may, after giving fourteen (14) calendar days written notice to the Consultant, terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract.

b. By the Consultant

- 19.1.3 The Consultant may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice to the Procuring Entity, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Clause.
 - a If the Procuring Entity fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract and not subject

to dispute pursuant to Clauses GCC 48.1 within forty-five (45) calendar days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue.

- b If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days.
- c If the Procuring Entity fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GCC 48.1.
- d If the Procuring Entity is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to this Contract and has not remedied the same within forty-five (45) days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently approved in writing) following the receipt by the Procuring Entity of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach.

c. Cessation of Rights and Obligations

19.1.4 Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GCC 12 or GCC 19 hereof, or upon expiration of this Contract pursuant to Clause GCC 14, all rights and obligations of the Parties here under shall cease, except (i) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration, (ii) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in Clause GCC 22, (iii) the Consultant's obligation to permit inspection, copying and auditing of their accounts and records set forth in Clause GCC 25, and (iv) any right which a Party may have under the Applicable Law.

d. Cessation of Services

19.1.5 Upon termination of this Contract by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to Clauses GCC 19a or GCC 19b, the Consultant shall, immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum. With respect to documents prepared by the Consultant and equipment and materials furnished by the Procuring Entity, the Consultant shall proceed as provided, respectively, by Clauses GCC 27 or GCC 28.

e. Payment upon Termination

- 19.1.6 Upon termination of this Contract, the Procuring Entity shall make the following payments to the Consultant:
 - a remuneration for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination, and reimbursable expenditures for expenditures actually incurred prior to the effective date of termination; and pursuant to Clause 42;
 - b In the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (d)and(e) of Clause GCC 19.1.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of this Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Experts.

C. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT

20 General

a. Standard of Performance

- 20.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out the Services with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as a faithful adviser to the Procuring Entity, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Procuring Entity's legitimate interests in any dealings with the third parties.
- 20.2 The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Experts and Sub-consultants as are required to carry out the Services.
- 20.3 The Consultant may subcontract part of the Services to an extent and with such Key Experts and Subconsultants as may be approved in advance by the Procuring Entity. Notwithstanding such approval, the Consultant shall retain full responsibility for the Services.

b. Law Applicable to Services

- 20.4 The Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance with the Contract and the Applicable Law and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that any of its Experts and Sub-consultants, comply with the Applicable Law.
- 20.5 Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Consultant shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in Kenya when
 - a As a matter of law or official regulations, Kenya prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - b by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations,
- 20.6 The Procuring Entity shall notify the Consultant in writing of relevant local customs, and the Consultant shall, after such notification, respect such customs.

21 Conflict of Interests

21.1 The Consultant shall hold the Procuring Entity's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.

a. Consultant Not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.

- 21.1.1 The payment of the Consultant pursuant to GCC F (Clauses GCC 41 through 46) shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract and, subject to Clause GCC 21.1.3, the Consultant shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or in the discharge of its obligations here under, and the Consultant shall use its best efforts to ensure that any Sub-consultants, as well as the Experts and agents of either of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.
- 21.1.2 Furthermore, if the Consultant, as part of the Services, has the responsibility of advising the Procuring Entity on the procurement of goods, works or services, shall at all times exercise such responsibility in the best interest of the Procuring Entity. Any discounts or commissions obtained by the Consultant in the exercise of such procurementresponsibilityshallbefortheaccountoftheProcuringEntity.

b. Consultant and Affiliates Not to Engage in Certain Activities

21.1.3 The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub-consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or non-consulting services resulting from or directlyrelatedtotheConsultant'sServicesforthepreparationorimplementationoftheproject.

c. Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

21.1.4 The Consultant shall not engage and shall cause its Experts as well as its Sub-consultants not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract.

d. Strict Duty to Disclose Conflicting Activities

21.1.5 The Consultant has an obligation and shall ensure that its Experts and Sub-consultants shall have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of their Procuring Entity, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.

22 Confidentiality

22.1 Except with the prior written consent of the Procuring Entity, the Consultant and the Experts shall not at any timecommunicatetoanypersonorentityanyconfidentialinformationacquiredinthecourseoftheServices, nor shall the Consultant and the Experts make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or because of, the Services.

23 Liability of the Consultant

23.1 Subject to additional provisions, if any, set forth in the SCC, the Consultant's liability under this Contract shall be as determined under the Applicable Law.

24 Insurance to be taken out by the Consultant

24.1 The Consultant (I) shall takeout and maintain and shall cause any Sub-consultants to takeout and maintain, at its (or the Sub-consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Procuring Entity, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage specified in the SCC, and (ii) at the Procuring Entity's request, shall provide evidence to the Procuring Entity showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums therefore have been paid. The Consultant shall ensure that such insurance is in place prior to commencing the Services as stated in ClauseGCC13.

25 Accounting, Inspection and Auditing

- 25.1 The ConsultantshallkeepandshallmakeallreasonableeffortstocauseitsSub-consultantstokeep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services and in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 25.2. The Consultant shall permit and shall cause its Sub-consultants to permit, the PPRA and/or persons appointed by the PPRA to inspect the Site and /or all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the PPRA if requested by the PPRA. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause GCC10which provides, interlaid, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PPRA's inspection and audit rights provided for under this Clause GCC25.2 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of in eligibility under the PPRA's prevailing sanctions procedures.)

26 Reporting Obligations

26.1 The ConsultantshallsubmittotheProcuringEntitythereportsanddocumentsspecifiedinAppendixA, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.

27 Proprietary Rights of the Procuring Entity in Reports and Records

- 27.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the SCC, all reports and relevant data and information such as maps, diagrams, plans, databases, other documents and software, supporting records or material compiled or prepared by the Consultant for the Procuring Entity in the course of the Services shall be confidential and become and remain the absolute property of the Procuring Entity. The Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the Procuring Entity, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents, data and/or software but shall not use the same for purposes unrelated to this Contract without prior written approval of the Procuring Entity.
- 27.2 If license agreements are necessary or appropriate between the Consultant and third parties for purposes of development of the plans, drawings, specifications, designs, databases, other documents and software, the Consultant shall obtain the Procuring Entity's prior written approval to such agreements, and the Procuring Entity shall be entitled at its discretion to require recovering the expenses related to the development of the program(s) concerned. Other restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any, shall be specified in the SCC.

28 Equipment, Vehicles and Materials

28.1 Equipment, vehicles and materials made available to the Consultant by the Procuring Entity, or purchased by the Consultant wholly or partly with funds provided by the Procuring Entity, shall be the property of the Procuring Entity and shall be marked accordingly. Upon termination or expiration of this Contract, the Consultant shall make available to the Procuring Entity an inventory of such equipment, vehicles and materials and shall dispose of such equipment, vehicles and materials in accordance with the Procuring Entity's instructions. While in possession of such equipment, vehicles and materials, the Consultant, unless otherwise instructed by the Procuring Entity in writing, shall insure the mat the expense of the Procuring Entity in an amount equal to their full replacement value.

28.2 Any equipment or materials brought by the Consultant or its Experts into, as applicable.

D. CONSULTANT'S EXPERTS AND SUB-CONSULTANTS

29 Description of Key Experts

- 29.1 The title, agreed job description, minimum qualification and time-input estimates to carry out the Services of each of the Consultant's Key Experts are described in Appendix B.
- 29.2 If required to comply with the provisions of Clause GCC 20 a, adjustments with respect to the estimated timeinput of Key Experts set forth in Appendix B may be made by the Consultant by a written notice to the Procuring Entity, provided (i) that such adjustments shall not alter the original time-input estimates for any individual by more than 10% or one week, whichever is larger; and (ii)that the aggregate of such adjustments shall not cause payments under this Contract to exceed the ceilings set forth in ClauseGCC41.2.
- 29.3 If additional work is required beyond the scope of the Services specified in Appendix A, the estimated timeinput for the Key Experts may be increased by agreement in writing between the Procuring Entity and the Consultant. In case where payments under this Contract exceed the ceilings set forth in Clause GCC41.1, the Parties shall sign a Contract amendment.

30 Replacement of Key Experts

- 30.1 Except as the Procuring Entity may otherwise agree in writing, no changes shall be made in the Key Experts.
- 30.2 Notwithstanding the above, the substitution of Key Experts during Contract execution may be considered only based on the Consultant's written request and due to circumstances outside the reasonable control of the Consultant, including but not limited to death or medical in capacity. In such case, the Consultant shall forth with provide as are placement, a person of equivalent or better qualifications and experience, and at the same rate of remuneration.

31 Approval of Additional Key Experts

31.1 If during execution of the Contract, additional Key Experts are required to carry out the Services, the Consultant shall submit to the Procuring Entity for review and approval a copy of their Curricula Vitae (CVs). If the Procuring Entity does not object in writing (stating the reasons for the objection) within twenty-two (22) days from the date of receipt of such CVs, such additional Key Experts shall be deemed to have been approved by the Procuring Entity.

32 Removal of Experts or Sub-consultants

- 32.1 If the Procuring Entity finds that any of the Experts or Sub-consultant has committed serious misconduct or has been charged with having committed a criminal action, or shall the Procuring Entity determine that Consultant's Expert or Sub-consultant has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practice while performing the Services, the Consultant shall, at the Procuring Entity's written request, provide a replacement.
- 32.2 In the event that any of Key Experts, Non-Key Experts or Sub-consultants is found by the Procuring Entity to be in competent or in capable in discharging assigned duties, the Procuring Entity, specifying the grounds therefore, may request the Consultant to provide a replacement.
- 32.3 Any replacement of the removed Experts or Sub-consultants shall possess better qualifications and experience and shall be acceptable to the Procuring Entity.

33 Replacement/ Removal of Experts–Impact on Payments

33.1 Except as the Procuring Entity may otherwise agree, (i) the Consultant shall bear all additional travel and other costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement, and (ii) the remuneration to be paid for any of the Experts provided as a replacement shall not exceed the remuneration which would have been payable to the Experts replaced or removed.

34 Working Hours, Overtime, Leave, etc.

- 34.1 Working hours and holidays for Experts a reset forth in Appendix B. To account for travel time to/from Kenya, experts carrying out Services inside Kenya shall be deemed to have commenced or finished work in respect of the Services such number of days before their arrival in, or after their departure from, Kenya as is specified in Appendix B.
- 34.2 The Experts shall not be entitled to be paid for overtime nor to take paid sick leave or vacation leave except as specified in Appendix B, and the Consultant's remuneration shall be deemed to cover these items.
- 34.3 Any taking of leave by Key Experts shall be subject to the prior approval by the Consultant who shall ensure that absence for leave purposes will not delay the progress and or impact adequate supervision of the Services.

E. Obligations of the Procuring Entity

35 Assistance and Exemptions

- 35.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Procuring Entity shall use its best efforts to:
 - a Assist the Consultant with obtaining work permits and such other documents as shall be necessary to enable the Consultant to perform the Services.
 - b Assist the Consultant with promptly obtaining, for the Experts and, if appropriate, their eligible dependents, all necessary entry and exit visas, residence permits, exchange permits and any other documents required for their stay in Kenya while carrying out the Services under the Contract.
 - c Facilitate prompt clearance through customs of any property required for the Services and of the personal effects of the Experts and their eligible dependents.
 - d Issue to officials, agents and representatives of the Government all such instructions and information as may be necessary or appropriate for the prompt and effective implementation of the Services.
 - e Assist the Consultant and the Experts and any Sub-consultants employed by the Consultant for the Services with obtaining exemption from any requirement to register or obtain any permit to practice their profession or to establish themselves either individually or as a corporate entity in Kenya according to the applicable law in Kenya.
 - f Assist the Consultant, any Sub-consultants and the Experts of either of the mwith obtaining the privilege, pursuant to the applicable law in Kenya, of bringing into Kenya reasonable amounts of foreign currency for the purposes of the services or for the personal use of the Experts and of withdrawing any such amounts as may be earned there in by the Experts in the execution of the Services.
 - g Provide to the Consultant any such other assistance as may be specified in the SCC.

36 Access to Project Site

36.1 The Procuring Entity warrants that the Consultant shall have, free of charge, unimpeded access to the project site in respect of which access is required for the performance of the Services. The Procuring Entity will be responsible for any damage to the project site or any property thereon resulting from such access and will indemnify the Consultant and each of the experts in respect of liability for any such damage, unless such damage iscausedbythewillfuldefaultornegligenceoftheConsultantoranySub-consultantsortheExpertsofeitherof them.

37 Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties

37.1 If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the applicable law in Kenya with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties hereto, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the ceiling amounts specified in Clause GCC41.1

38 Services, Facilities and Property of the Procuring Entity

- 38.1 The Procuring Entity shall make available to the Consultant and the Experts, for the purposes of the Services and free of any charge, the services, facilities and property described in the Terms of Reference (Appendix A) at the times and in the manner specified in said Appendix A.
- 38.2 In case that such services, facilities and property shall not be made available to the Consultant as and when

specified in Appendix A, the Parties shall agree on (i) any time extension that it may be appropriate to grant to the Consultant for the performance of the Services,(ii) the manner in which the Consultant shall procure any such services, facilities and property from other sources, and (iii) the additional payments, if any, to be made to the Consultant as a result there of pursuant to Clause GCC 41.3.

39 Counterpart Personnel

- 39.1 The Procuring Entity shall make available to the Consultant free of charge such professional and support counterpart personnel, to be nominated by the Procuring Entity with the Consultant's advice, if specified in Appendix A.
- 39.2 If counterpart personnel are not provided by the Procuring Entity to the Consultant as and when specified in Appendix A, the Procuring Entity and the Consultants hall agree on (i) how the affected part of the Services shall be carried out, and (ii) the additional payments, if any, to be made by the Procuring Entity to the Consultant as a result there of pursuant to Clause GCC 41.3.
- 39.3 Professional and support counterpart personnel, excluding Procuring Entity's liaison personnel, shall work under the exclusive direction of the Consultant. If any member of the counterpart personnel fails to perform adequately any work assigned to such member by the Consultant that is consistent with the position occupied by such member, the Consultant may request the replacement of such member, and the Procuring Entity shall not unreasonably refuse to act upon such request.

40 Payment Obligation

40.1 In consideration of the Services performed by the Consultant under this Contract, the Procuring Entity shall make such payments to the Consultant and in such manner as is provided by GCCF below.

A. PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

41 Ceiling Amount

- 41.1 An estimate of the cost of the Services is set forth in Appendix C (Remuneration) and Appendix D ([Reimbursable expenses]).
- 41.2 Payments under this Contract shall not exceed the ceilings in foreign currency and in local currency specified in the SCC.
- 41.3 For any payments in excess of the ceilings specified in GCC 41.2, an amendment to the Contract shall be signed by the Parties referring to the provision of this Contract that evokes such amendment.

42 Remuneration and Reimbursable Expenses

42.1 The Procuring Entity shall pay to the Consultant

(i)remuneration that shall be determined on the basis of time actually spent by each Expert in the performance of the Services after the date of commencing of Services or such other date as the Parties shall agree in writing; and

(ii) reimbursable expenses that are actually and reasonably incurred by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.

- 42.2 All payments shall be at the rates set forth in Appendix C and Appendix D.
- 42.3 Unless the SCC provides for the price adjustment of the remuneration rates, said remuneration shall be fixed for the duration of the Contract.
- 42.4 The remuneration rates shall cover:

(i)such salaries and allowances as the Consultant shall have agreed to pay to the Experts as well as factors for social charges and overheads (bonuses or other means of profit-sharing shall not be allowed as an element of overheads),

- (ii) the cost of backstopping by home office staff not included in the Experts 'list in Appendix B,
- (iii) the Consultant's profit, and
- (iv) any other items as specified n the S CC.
- 42.5 Any rates specified for Experts not yet appointed shall be provisional and shall be subject to revision, with the written approval of the Procuring Entity, once the applicable remuneration rates and allowances are known.

43 Taxes and Duties

43.1 The Consultant, Sub-consultants and Experts are responsible for meeting any and all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract unless it is stated otherwise in the SCC.

44 Currency of Payment

44.1 Any payment under this Contract shall be made in the currency or currencies specified in the SCC.

45 Mode of Billing and Payment

- 45.1 Billing and payments in respect of the Services shall be made as follows:
 - a <u>Advance payment</u>. Within the number of days after the Effective Date, the Procuring Entity shall pay to the Consultant an advance payment as specified in the SCC. Unless otherwise indicated in the SCC, an advance payment shall be made against an advance payment bank guarantee acceptable to the Procuring Entity in an amount (or amounts) and in a currency (or currencies) specified in the SCC. Such guarantee (i) is to remain effective until the advance payment has been fully set off, and (ii) is to be in the form set forth in Appendix E. The advance payments will be set off by the Procuring Entity in equal installments against the statements for the number of months of the Services specified in the SCC until said advance payments have been fully setoff.
 - b <u>*The Itemized Invoices.*</u> As soon as practicable and not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month during the period of the Services, or after the end of each time interval otherwise indicated in the SCC, the Consultant shall submit to the Procuring Entity, in duplicate, itemized invoices, accompanied by the receipts or other appropriate supporting documents, of the amounts payable pursuant to Clauses GCC 44 and GCC 45 for such interval, or any other period indicated in the SCC. Separate invoices hall be submitted for expenses incurred in foreign currency and in local currency. Each invoice shall show remuneration and reimbursable expenses separately.
 - c <u>The Procuring Entity shall pay the Consultant's invoices</u> within sixty (60) days after the receipt by the Procuring Entity of such itemized invoices with supporting documents. Only such portion of an invoice that is not satisfactorily supported may be withheld from payment. Should any discrepancy be found to exist between actual payment and costs authorized to be incurred by the Consultant, the Procuring Entity may add or subtract he difference from any subsequent payments.
 - d <u>*The Final Payment*</u>: The final payment under this Clause shall be made only after the final report and a final invoice, identified as such, shall have been submitted by the Consultant and approved as satisfactory by the Procuring Entity. The Services shall be deemed completed and finally accepted by the Procuring Entity and the final report and final invoice shall be deemed approved by the Procuring Entity as satisfactory ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of the final report and final invoice by the Procuring Entity unless the Procuring Entity, within such ninety (90) calendar day period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail deficiencies in the Services, the final report or final invoice. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections, and thereafter the foregoing process shall be repeated. Any amount that the Procuring Entity has paid or has caused to be paid in accordance with this Clause in excess of the amounts payable in accordance with the provisions of this Contract shall be reimbursed by the Consultant to the Procuring Entity within thirty (30) days after receipt by the Consultant of notice thereof. Any such claim by the Procuring Entity for reimbursement must be made within twelve (12) Calendar month s after receipt t by the Procuring Entity of a final report and a final invoice approved by the Procuring Entity in accordance with the above.
 - e All payments under this Contract shall be made to the accounts of the Consultant specified in the SCC.
 - f With the exception of the final payment under (d) above, payments do not constitute acceptance of the Services nor relieve the Consultant of any obligations here under.

46 Interest on Delayed Payments

46.1 If the Procuring Entity had delayed payments beyond thirty (30) days after the due date stated in Clause GCC 45.1(c), interest shall be paid to the Consultant on any amount due by, not paid on, such due date for each day of delay at the annual rate stated in the SCC.

G. Fairness and Good Faith

47 Good Faith

47.1 The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of this Contract.

H. Settlement of Disputes

48 Amicable Settlement

- 48.1 ThePartiesshallseektoresolveanydisputeamicablybymutualconsultation.
- 48.2 If either Party objects to any action or inaction of the other Party, the objecting Party may file a written Notice of Dispute to the other Party providing in detail the basis of the dispute. The Party receiving the Notice of Dispute will considerate and responds in writing within fourteen (14) days after receipt. If that Party fails to respond within fourteen (14) days, or the dispute cannot be amicably settled within fourteen (14) days following the response of that Party, Clause GCC 49.1 shall apply.

49 Dispute Resolution

49.1 Any dispute between the Parties arising under or related to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably may be referred to by either Party to the adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the provisions in the SCC.

SECTION 8: SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

[Notes in brackets are for guidance purposes only and should be deleted in the final text of the signed contract]

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract						
1.1(a)	The Contract shall be construed in accordance with the law of Kenya						
4.1	The language is English						
6.1 and 6.2	The addresses are [fill in at negotiations with the selected firm]:						
	Procuring Entity:Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy CorporationAttention:Chief Executive OfficerFacsimile:info@rerec.co.ke						
	Consultant: Attention: Facsimile: E-mail:						
8.1	[Note: If the Consultant consists only of one entity, state "Not Applicable";						
	OR						
	If the Consultant is a Joint Venture consisting of more than one entity, the name of the JV member whose address is specified in Clause SCC6.1 should be inserted here.]						
	The Lead Member on behalf of the JV is [insert name of the member]						
9.1	The Authorized Representatives are:						
	For the Procuring Entity: Dr. Rose N. Mkalama						
	For the Consultant: [name, title]						
11.1	The effectiveness conditions are the following: [insert "Not Applicable" or list the conditions]						
12.1	Termination of Contract for Failure to Become Effective:						
	The period shall be 6months						
13.1	Commencement of Services:						
	The number of days shall be as agreed during the inception negotiation meeting.						
	Confirmation of Key Experts' availability to start the Assignment shall be submitted to the Procuring Entity in writing as a written statement signed by each Key Expert.						
14.1	Expiration of Contract:						
	The period shall be 36 months						
23.1	No additional provisions.						
	[OR:						
	The following limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards the Procuring Entity can be subject to						

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract					
	the Contract's negotiations:					
	 "Limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards the Procuring Entity: (a) Except in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Consultant or or the part of any person or a firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services, the Consultant, with respect to damage caused by the Consultant to the Procuring Entity's property, shal not be liable to the Procuring Entity: (i) for any indirect or consequential loss or damage; and (ii) for any direct loss or damage that exceeds [insert a multiplier, e.g.: one, two, three times the total value of the Contract; 					
	 (b) This limitation of liability shall not (i) affect the Consultant's liability, if any, for damage to Third Parties caused by the Consultant or any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services; (ii) be construed as providing the Consultant with any limitation or exclusion from liability which is prohibited by the Applicable Law. 					
24.1	The insurance coverage against the risks shall be as follows:					
	(e) insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.					
27.1	As per clause 27.1					
27.2	[If there is to be no restriction on the future use of these documents by either Party, this Clause SC 27.2 should be indicated "Not Applicable". If the Parties wish to restrict such use, any of the followid options, or any other option agreed to by the Parties, could be used:					
	[The Consultant shall not use these [report findings] for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the Procuring Entity.]					
35.1 (a) through (f)	[List here any changes or additions to Clause GCC 35.1. If there are no such changes or additions, indicate "Not Applicable"]					
35.1(g)	[List here any other assistance to be provided by the Procuring Entity. If there is no such other assistance, indicate "Not Applicable" for this Clause SCC $35.1(g)$.]					
41.2	The ceiling in foreign currency is: [insert amount and currency] [indicate: inclusive or exclusive] of local indirect taxes.					
	The ceiling in local currency is: [insert amount and currency] [indicate: inclusive or exclusive] of local indirect taxes.					
	Any local taxes chargeable in respect of this Contract for the Services provided by the Consultant shall "be paid" by the Consultant.					
	The amount of such taxes is All applicable taxes under Kenyan laws					
42.3	Price adjustment on the remuneration "does not apply" If the price adjustment applies, indicate the formula and procedure to be used for the adjustments.					
42.4(iv)	The other remuneration items are:					
43.1	[The Procuring Entity shall decide whether the Consultant (i) should be exempted from local tax, or (ii) should be reimbursed by the Procuring Entity for any such tax they might have to pay (or that the Procuring Entity would pay such tax on behalf of the Consultant]					

Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
The Procuring Entity warrants that [choose one applicable option consistent with the ITC 16.3 and the outcome of the Contract's negotiations (Form FIN-2, part B "Local Taxes"): If ITC 16.3 indicates a tax exemption status, include the following: "the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts shall be exempt from" OR
If ITC16.3 does not indicate the exemption and, depending on whether the Procuring Entity shall pay the withholding tax or the Consultant has to pay, include the following: "the Procuring Entity shall pay on behalf of the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts," OR "the Procuring Entity shall reimburse the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts" Any taxes, duties, fees, levies and other impositions imposed, under the Applicable Law in Kenya, on the Consultant, the Sub-consultants and the Experts
The currency or currencies of payment shall be the following: Kshs.
[The advance payment could be in either the foreign currency, or the local currency, or both; select the correct wording in the Clause here below. The advance bank payment guarantee should be in the same currency(ies)]
The following provisions shall apply to the advance payment and the advance bank payment guarantee:
(1) An advance payment [of 20% of 1^{st} year contract value] in local currency] shall be made within [30] days after the Effective Date. The advance payment will be set off by the Procuring Entity in equal installments against the statements for the first [6] months of the Services until the advance payment has been fully set off.
(2) The advance bank payment guarantee shall be in the amount and in the currency of the currency (ies) of the advance payment.
The Consultant shall submit to the Procuring Entity itemized statements at time intervals of 3 months/every quarter.
The accounts are:
for foreign currency: [insert account]. for local currency: [insert account].
The interest rate is: [Nil].
Disputes shall be settled by arbitration by the Nairobi Centre for International Arbitrations.

SECTION 9: APPENDICES

Appendix A – Terms of Reference

[This Appendix shall include the final Terms of Reference (TORs) worked out by the Procuring Entity and the Consultant during the negotiations; dates for completion of various tasks; location of performance for different tasks; detailed reporting requirements; Procuring Entity's input, including counterpart personnel assigned by the Procuring Entity to work on the Consultant' steam; specific tasks that require prior approval by the Procuring Entity.

Insert the text based on the Section 5 (Terms of Reference) of the ITC in the RFP and modified based on the Forms TECH-1 through TECH-5 in the Consultant's Proposal. Highlight the changes to Section 5 of the RFP]

If the Services consist of or include the supervision of civil works, the following action that require prior approval of the Procuring Entity shall be added to the Reporting Requirements" section of the TORs: Taking any action under a civil works contract designating the Consultant as Engineer", for which action, pursuant to such civil works contract, the written approval of the Procuring Entity is required.

Appendix B - Key Experts

[Insert a table based on Form TECH-6 of the Consultant's Technical Proposal and finalized at the Contract's negotiations. Attach the CVs (updated and signed by the respective Key Experts) demonstrating the qualifications of Key Experts.]

[Specify Hours of Work for Key Experts: List here the hours of work for Key Experts; travel time to/ from Kenya; entitlement, if any, to leave pay; public holidays in Kenya that may affect Consultant's work; etc. Make sure there is consistencywithFormTECH-6. In particular: one month equals twenty-two (22) working (billable) days. One working (billable) day shall be not less than eight (8) working (billable) hours.]

Appendix C – Remuneration Cost Estimates

1. Monthly rates for the Experts:

[Insert the table with the remuneration rates. The table shall be based on [Form FIN-3] of the Consultant's Proposal and reflect any changes agreed at the Contract negotiations, if any. The footnote shall list such changes made to [Form FIN-3] at the negotiations or state that none has been made.]

2 [When the Consultant has been selected under Quality-Based Selection method, or the Procuring Entity has requested the Consultant to clarify the breakdown of very high remuneration rates at the Contract's negotiations also add the following:

"The agreed remuneration rates shall be stated in the attached Form: Breakdown of Agreed Fixed Rates in Consultant's Contract. This form shall be prepared on the basis of Appendix A to Form FIN-3 of the RFP "Consultants' Representations regarding Costs and Charges" submitted by the Consultant to the Procuring Entity prior to the Contract's negotiations.

Should these representations be found by the Procuring Entity (either through inspections or audits pursuant to Clause GCC 25.2 or through other means) to be materially in complete or in accurate, the Procuring Entity shall be entitled to introduce appropriate modifications in the remuneration rates affected by such materially in complete or inaccurate representations. Any such modification shall have retroactive effect and, in case remuneration has already been paid by the Procuring Entity before any such modification,(i) the Procuring Entity shall been titled to offset any excess payment against the next monthly payment to the Consultants, or (ii) if there are no further payments to be made by the Procuring Entity to the Consultants, the Consultants shall reimburse to the Procuring Entity any excess payment with in thirty (30)days of receipt of a written claim of the Procuring Entity. Any such claim by the Procuring Entity for reimbursement must be made within twelve (12) calendar months after receipt by the Procuring Entity of a final report and a final statement approved by the Procuring Entity in accordance with Clause GCC45. 1(d) of this Contract."

BREAKDOWN OF AGREED FIXED RATES IN CONSULTANT'S CONTRACT

We hereby confirm that we have agreed to pay to the Experts listed, who will be involved in performing the Services, the basic fees and away from the home office allowances (if applicable) indicated below:

(*Expressed in [insert name of currency]*) *

Experts		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Name	Position	Basic Remuneration rate per Working Month/Day/Year	Social Charges	Overhea d ¹	Subtotal	Profit ²	Away from Home Office Allowance	Agreed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Day/Hou r	Agreed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Day/Hour ¹
Home Office									
Work in Keny	ya								

Expressed as percentage of 1

1 Expressed as percentage of 4

* If more than one currency, add a table

Signature_____Date_____

Name and Title:_____

APPENDIX D: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES COST ESTIMATES

- 1. {Insert the table with the Reimbursable Expenses rates. The table shall be based on [Form FIN-4] of the Consultant's Proposal and reflect any changes agreed at the Contract negotiations, if any. The foot note shall list such changes made to [FormFIN-4] at the negotiations or state that none has been made.]
- 2. All reimbursable expenses shall be reimbursed at actual cost, unless otherwise explicitly provided in this Appendix, and in no event shall reimbursement be made in excess of the Contract amount.

APPENDIX E: FORM OFADVANCE PAYMENTS GUARANTEE

[Note: See Clause GCC 41.2 and

SCC41.2] Bank Guarantee for Advance

Payment

[Bank's Name and Address of Issuing Branch or Office] Beneficiary: [Name and Address of Procuring Entity] Date:

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.

We have been informed that _____ [name of Consultant or a name of the Joint Venture, same as appears on the signed Contract] (herein after called" the Consultant") has entered into Contract No._____

[*Reference number of the contract*] dated ______ with you, for the provision of ______ [*brief description of Services*] (hereinafter called" the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum of *[Amount in figures] () [amount in words]* is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Consultant, we_____[name of bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of_____[amount in figures] () [amount in words]¹upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Consultant are in breach of their obligation under the Contract because the Consultant have used the advance payment for purposes other than toward providing the Services under the Contract.

Itisaconditionforanyclaimandpaymentunderthisguaranteetobemadethattheadvancepaymentreferredto above must have been received by the Consultant on their account number______at_____[name and address of bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Consultant as indicated in copies of certified monthly statements which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of the monthly payment certificate indicating that the Consultant has made full repayment of the amount of the advance payment, or on the day of ______, 2___,² whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office o n or before that

date. This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No.758.

[Signature (s)]

Note: All italicized text is for indicative purposes only to assist in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency (ies) of the advance payment as Specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Procuring Entity.

²Insert the expected expiration dates. In the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Procuring Entity would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the procuring Entity might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Procuring Entity's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

SECTION 10. NOTIFICATION FORMS

1. NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO AWARD

Procuring Entity:	[insert the name of the Entity]
Contract title:	[insert the name of the
contract] RFP No:	[insert RF Preference number]

This Notification of Intention to Award (Notification) notifies you of our decision to award the above contract. The transmission of this Notification begins the Standstill Period. During the Standstill Period you may:

- a) Request a debriefing in relation to the evaluation of your Proposal, and/or
- b) Submit a Procurement-relatedComplaintinrelationtothedecisiontoawardthecontract.

The successful Consultant

Name:	[insert name of successful Consultant]
Address:	[insert address of the successful Consultant]
Contract price:	[insert contract price of the successful Consultant]

i) Short listed Consultants

[INSTRUCTIONS: insert names of allshort-listedConsultantsandindicatewhichConsultantssubmittedProposals. Where the selection method requires it, state the price offered by each Consultant as readout, and as evaluated. Include overalltechnicalscoresandscoresassignedforeachcriterionandsub-criterion.]

	Submitted Proposal	Overall technical score	Financial Proposal Price	Evaluated Financial Proposal Price (If applicable)	Combined Score and ranking (if applicable)
[insert name]	[yes/no]	Criterion (i): [insert score] Criterion (ii): [insert score] Criterion (iii): [insert score] Sub-criterion a: 1: [insert score] 2: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 2: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 3: [insert score] Sub-criterion c: etc. Criterion (iv): [insert score] Criterion (v): [insert score] Total score: [insert score]	[Proposal price]	[evaluated price]	Combined Score: [combined score] <u>Ranking</u> : [ranking]
[insert name]	[<i>yes/no</i>]	Criterion (i): [insert score]Criterion (ii): [insert score]Criterion (iii): [insert score]Sub-criterion a:1: [insert score]2: [insert score]3: [insert score]2: [insert score]3: [insert score]2: [insert score]3: [insert score]3: [insert score]3: [insert score]3: [insert score]3: [insert score]3: [insert score]Criterion c:etc.Criterion (v): [insert score]Criterion (v): [insert score]Total score: [insert score]	[Proposal price]	[evaluated price]	Combined Score: [combined score] Ranking: [ranking]
[insert name]	[yes/no]	Criterion (i): [insert score] Criterion (ii): [insert score] Criterion (iii): [insert score] Sub-criterion a: 1: [insert score] 2: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 2: [insert score] 3: [insert score] 3: [insert score] Sub-criterion c: etc. Criterion (iv): [insert score] Criterion (v): [insert score] Total score: [insert score]	[Proposal price]	[evaluated price]	<u>Combined</u> <u>Score</u> : [combined score] <u>Ranking</u> : [ranking]
[insert name]					

(ii) **Reason/s why your Proposal was unsuccessful** [Delete if the combined score already reveals the reason].

[INSTRUCTIONS; State the reason/s why <u>this</u> Consultant's Proposal was unsuccessful. Do NOT include: (a) a point by point comparison with another Consultant's Proposal or (b) information that is marked confidential by the Consultant in its Proposal.]

iii) **How to request a debriefing** [*This applies only if your proposal was unsuccessful as stated under point (3) above*].

DEADLINE: The deadline to request a debriefing expires at midnight on [*insert date*] (local time). You may request a debriefing in relation to the results of the evaluation of your Proposal. If you decide to request a debriefing your written request must be made within five (5) Business Days of receipt of this Notification of Intention to Award.

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Consultant, contact details; and address the request for debriefing as follows:

Attention: [insert full name of person, if applicable] Title/position: [insert title/position] Agency: Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation Email address: [insert email address] Fax number: [insert fax number] delete if not used

If your request for a debriefing is received within the 5 Business Days deadline, we will provide the debriefing within five (5) Business Days of receipt of your request. If we are unable to provide the debriefing within this period, the Standstill Period shall be extended by five (5) Business Days after the date that the debriefing is provided. If this happens, we will notify you and confirm the date that the extended Standstill Period will end.

The debriefing may be in writing, by phone, video conference call or in person. We shall promptly advise you in writing how the debriefing will take place and confirm the date and time.

If the deadline to request a debriefing has expired, you may still request a debriefing. In this case, we will provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fourteen (14) Business Days from the date of publication of the Contract Award Notice.

(iv) How to Make a Complaint

DEADLINE: The deadline for submitting a Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award the contract expires on midnight, [*insert date*] (local time).

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Consultant, contact details; and address the Procurement-related Complaint as follows:

Attention: [insert full name of person, if applicable]

Title/position: [insert title/position]

Agency: Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation

Email address: [insert email address]

Fax number: [insert fax number] delete if not used

[At this point in the procurement process] [Upon receipt of this notification] you may submit a Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award the contract. You do not need to have requested, or received, a debriefing before making this complaint. Your complaint must be submitted within the Standstill Period and received by us before the Standstill Period ends.

In summary, there are four essential requirements:

You must be an 'interested party'. In this case, that means a Consultant who has submitted a Proposal in this selection process and is the recipient of a Notification of Intention to Award.

The complaint can only challenge the decision to award the contract.

You must submit the complaint within the deadline stated above.

You must include, in your complaint, all of the information required by the Procuring Entity.

(v) Standstill Period

DEADLINE: The Standstill Period is due to end at midnight on [insert date] (local time).

The Standstill Period lasts ---- (specify the number of business days as per Data Sheet 30.1) Business Days as specified in the Data Sheet after the date of transmission of this Notification of Intention to Award. The Standstill Period may be extended. This may happen where we are unable to provide a debriefing within the five (5) Business Day deadline. If this happens, we will notify you of the extension.

If you have any questions regarding this Notification, please do not hesitate to contact us.

On behalf of	[insert the name of the Procuring Entity]:
Signature:	
Telephone:	
Email:	

FORM FOR REVIEW(r.203(1))

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION NO......OF......20......

BETWEEN

.....APPLICANT

AND

REQUEST FOR REVIEW

1	•
2	

By this memorandum, the Applicant requests the Board for an order/orders that:

1.

2.

SIGNEDday of/...20.....

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY Lodged with the Secretary Public Procurement Administrative Review Board on......day of20......

SIGNED

Board Secretary

3. LETTER OF AWARD

[use letterhead paper of the Procuring Entity] [date]_____To: _____[name and address of the winning

Consultant] Subject: Notification of Award Contract No.....

agency.

You are requested to:(i) sign and return the draft negotiated Contract attached here with within eight (8) Business Days from the date of receipt of this notification; and (ii) furnish the additional information on beneficial ownership in accordance with the Data Sheet of ITC 32.1 within eight (8) days using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, included in Section 7 of the Request of Proposals.

Authorized Signature:_____

Name and Title of Signatory:_____

Name of Agency:_____

Attachment: Draft Negotiated Contract

4 BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM (Amended and issued pursuant to PPRA CIRCULAR No. 02/2022)

INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE FORM

This Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form ("Form") is to be completed by the successful tenderer pursuant to Regulation 13 (2A) and 13 (6) of the Companies (Beneficial Ownership Information) Regulations, 2020. In case of joint venture, the tenderer must submit a separate Form for each member. The beneficial ownership information to be submitted in this Form shall be current as of the date of its submission.

For the purposes of this Form, a Beneficial Owner of a Tenderer is any natural person who ultimately owns or controls the legal person (tenderer) or arrangements or a natural person on whose behalf a transaction is conducted, and includes those persons who exercise ultimate effective control over a legal person (Tenderer) or arrangement.

Tender Reference No.:		[insert identification
<i>no</i>] Name of the Tender Title/D	Description:	[insert name of the
assignment] to:	[insert complete name of Procuring En	ıtity]

In response to the requirement in your notification of award dated *[insert date of notification of award]* to furnish additional information on beneficial ownership: *[select one option as applicable and delete the options that are not applicable]*

I) We here by provide the following beneficial ownership information.

Details of beneficial ownership

	Details of all Beneficia	al Owners	% of shares a person holds in the company Directly or indirectly	% of voting rights a person holds in the company	Whether a person directly or indirectly holds a right to appoint or remove a member of the board of directors of the company or an equivalent governing body of the Tenderer (Yes / No)	Whether a person directly or indirectly exercises significant influence or control over the Company (tenderer) (Yes / No)
	Full Name		Directly	Directly % of voting	1. Having the right to appoint a majority	1. Exercises significant
1.	National identity card number or Passport number		Indirectly of shares	rights Indirectly % of voting rights	of the board of the directors or an equivalent governing body of the Tenderer: Yes No 2. Is this right held directly or	influence or control over the Company body of the Company (tenderer) YesNo
	Personal Identification Number (where applicable)					
	Nationality				indirectly?:	
	Date of birth [<i>dd/mm/yyyy</i>]				Direct	2. Is this influence or
	Postal address					control exercised
	Residential address					directly or
	Telephone number				Indirect	indirectly?
	Email address					Direct
	Occupation or profession					
						Indirect

	Details of all Beneficial Owners	% of shares a person holds in the company Directly or indirectly	% of voting rights a person holds in the company	Whether a person directly or indirectly holds a right to appoint or remove a member of the board of directors of the company or an equivalent governing body of the Tenderer (Yes / No)	Whether a person directly or indirectly exercises significant influence or control over the Company (tenderer) (Yes / No)
2.	Full NameNational identity card number or Passport numberPersonal Identification Number (where applicable)Nationality(ies)Date of birth [dd/mm/yyyy]Postal addressResidential addressTelephone numberEmail addressOccupation or profession	Directly of shares Indirectly of shares	Directly% of voting rights Indirectly% % of voting rights	 Having the right to appoint a majority of the board of the directors or an equivalent governing body of the Tenderer: Yes No Is this right held directly or indirectly?: Direct Indirect 	 Exercises significant influence or control over the Company body of the Company (tenderer) YesNo
3.					
e.t .c					

- II) Am fully aware that beneficial ownership information above shall be reported to the Public Procurement Regulatory Authority together with other details in relation to contract awards and shall be maintained in the Government Portal, published and made publicly available pursuant to Regulation 13(5) of the Companies (Beneficial Ownership Information) Regulations, 2020.(Notwithstanding this paragraph Personally Identifiable Information in line with the Data Protection Act shall not be published or made public). Note that Personally Identifiable Information (PII) is defined as any information that can be used to distinguish one person from another and can be used to deanonymize previously anonymous data. This information includes National identity card number or Passport number, Personal Identification Number, Date of birth, Residential address, email address and Telephone number.
- III) In determining who meets the threshold of who a beneficial owner is, the Tenderer must consider a natural person who in relation to the company:
 - (a) holds at least ten percent of the issued shares in the company either directly or indirectly;
 - (b) exercises at least ten percent of the voting rights in the company either directly or indirectly;
 - (c) holds a right, directly or indirectly, to appoint or remove a director of the company; or
 - (d) exercises significant influence or control, directly or indirectly, over the company.

IV) What is stated to herein above is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Name of the Tenderer:*[insert complete name of the Tenderer]_____

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Tender on behalf of the Tenderer: ** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Tender]

above]

Date this [insert date of signing] day of...... [Insert month], [insert year]

Bidder Official Stamp

Request for Proposal Reference No.:	[insert identification		
A A _			

no] Name of the Assignment: *[insert name of the assignment]* to:

[insert complete name of Procuring Entity]

In response to your notification of award dated ______ [insert date of notification of award] to furnish additional information on beneficial ownership: ______ [select one option as applicable and delete the options that are not applicable]

V) We here by provide the following beneficial ownership information.

Details of beneficial ownership

Identity of Beneficial Owner	Directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares (Yes / No)	Directly or indirectly holding 25 % or more of the Voting Rights (Yes / No)	Directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of the directors or an equivalent governing body of the Consultant (Yes / No)
[include full name (last, middle, first), nationality, country of residence]			

OR

ii) We declare that there is no Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions: directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares. Directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights. Directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Consultant.

OR

 iii) We declare that we are unable to identify any Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions. [If this option is selected, the Consultant shall provide explanation on why it is unable to identify any Beneficial Owner] Directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares. Directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights.

Directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Consultant]"

Name of the Consultant:*[insert complete name of the Consultant]_____

NameofthepersondulyauthorizedtosigntheProposalonbehalfoftheConsultant: ** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Proposal]

^{**}Person signing the Proposal shall have the power of attorney given by the Consultant. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Proposal Schedules.

^{*}In the case of the Proposal submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Consultant. In the event that the Consultant is a Joint venture, each reference to "Consultant" in the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form (including this Introduction there to) shall be read to refer to the joint venture member.